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access to deposits may also be affected by the liquidity needs of our depositors. A substantial majority of our liabilities
are demand, savings, interest checking and money market deposits, which are payable on demand or upon several days'
notice, while by comparison, a substantial portion of our assets are loans, which cannot be called or sold in the same time
frame. We may not be able to replace maturing deposits and advances as necessary in the future, especially if a large
number of our depositors sought to withdraw their accounts, regardless of the reason. Our access to deposits may be
negatively impacted by, among other factors, periods of low interest rates or higher interest rates which could promote
increased competition for deposits, including from new financial technology competitors, or provide customers with
alternative investment options. Additionally, negative news about us or the banking industry in general could negatively
impact market and / or customer perceptions of our company, which could lead to a loss of depositor confidence and an
increase in deposit withdrawals, particularly among those with uninsured deposits. Furthermore, as we and other
regional banking organizations experienced in 2023, the failure of other financial institutions may cause deposit outflows
as customers spread deposits among several different banks so as to maximize their amount of FDIC insurance, move
deposits to banks deemed" too big to fail" or remove deposits from the banking system entirely. As of December 31,
2024, approximately 15 % of our deposits were uninsured, and we rely on these deposits for liquidity. A failure to
maintain adequate liquidity could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations. ADVERSE CHANGES IN THE REAL ESTATE MARKET COULD CAUSE INCREASES IN
DELINQUENCIES AND NON- PERFORMING ASSETS, INCLUDING ADDITIONAL LOAN CHARGE- OFFS, AND
COULD DEPRESS OUR INCOME, EARNINGS AND CAPITAL. At December 31, 2024, approximately 24. 8 % and
51. 9 %, respectively, of our loan portfolio was comprised of residential and commercial real estate loans. Adverse
changes in economic conditions both nationally and in the communities we serve may cause deterioration to the value of
real estate Civista uses to secure its loans. Adverse changes in the economy, deterioration of our real estate portfolio, a
decrease in real estate values, an increase in unemployment, decreased or nonexistent housing price appreciation or
increases in interest rates could reduce our earnings and consequently our financial condition because borrowers may
not be able to repay their loans. The value of the collateral securing our loans and the quality of our loan portfolio may
decline and customers may not want or need our products and services. Any of these scenarios could cause us to make
fewer loans, increase delinquencies and non- performing assets, require us to charge off a higher percentage of our loans or
result in additional increases to our provision for credit losses in future periods, which could adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations. CHANGES IN INTEREST RATES COULD HAVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE
EFFECT ON OUR NET INTEREST INCOME. Our results of operations are affected principally by net interest income, which
is the difference between interest earned on loans and investments and interest expense paid on deposits and other borrowings.
We cannot predict or control changes in interest rates. National, regional and local economic conditions and the policies of
regulatory authorities, including monetary policies of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, affect the
movement of interest rates and our interest income and interest expense. If the interest rates paid on deposits and other borrowed
funds increase at a faster rate than the interest rates received on loans and other investments, our net interest income, and
therefore earnings, could be adversely affected. Earnings could also be adversely affected if the interest rates received on loans
and other investments fall more quickly than the interest rates paid on deposits and other borrowed funds. In addition, certain
assets and liabilities may react in different degrees to changes in market interest rates. For example, interest rates on some types
of assets and liabilities may fluctuate prior to changes in broader market interest rates, while interest rates on other types may
lag behind. Some of our assets, such as adjustable rate mortgages, have features that restrict changes in their interest rates,
including rate caps. We believe that the impact on our cost of funds from a rise in interest rates will depend on a number of
factors, including but not limited to, the competitive environment in the banking sector for deposit pricing, opportunities for
clients to invest in other markets such as fixed income and equity markets, and the propensity of customers to invest in their
businesses. The effect on our net interest income from an increase in interest rates will ultimately depend on the extent to which
the aggregate impact of loan re- pricings exceeds the impact of increases in our cost of funds. Changes in interest rates may
affect the level of voluntary prepayments on our loans and may also affect the level of financing or refinancing by customers.
Changes in interest rates may also negatively affect the ability of the Company’ s borrowers to repay their loans, particularly as
interest rates rise and adjustable rate loans become more expensive. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors that are
beyond our control. Some of these factors include: ¢ inflation; * recession; * unemployment; * money supply; ¢ international
disorders; and ¢ instability in domestic and foreign financial markets. The Company’ s management uses various measures to
monitor interest rate risk and believes it has implemented effective asset and liability management strategies to reduce the
potential adverse effects of changes in interest rates on the Company’ s financial condition and results of operations.
Management also periodically adjusts the mix of assets and liabilities to manage interest rate risk. However, any significant,
unexpected, prolonged change in market interest rates could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results
of operations. See the discussion under" Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk ” en-pages++
through18-of the- Annual-Repert-for additional information related to the Company” s interest rate risk. A transition away from
LIBOR as a reference rate for financial contracts could negatively IMPACT our income and expenses and the value of various
financial contracts. LIBOR was used extensively in the United States and globally for many years as a benchmark for various



commercial and financial contracts, including adjustable rate mortgages, corporate debt, interest rate swaps and other
derivatives. LIBOR is-was set based on interest rate information reported by certain banks. In the U. S., as a result of efforts to
identify a set of alternative U. S. dollar reference interest rates the Alternative Reference Rate Committee (“ ARRC )
recommended the use of a Secured Overnight Funding Rate (“ SOFR ”) as the set of alternative U. S. dollar reference interest
rates. SOFR is different from LIBOR in that it is a backward looking secured rate rather than a forward looking unsecured rate.
These differences could lead to a greater disconnect between our costs to raise funds for SOFR as compared to LIBOR. For cash
products and loans, ARRC has also recommended Term SOFR, which is a forward looking SOFR based on SOFR futures and
may in part reduce differences between SOFR and LIBOR. There are operational issues which may create a delay in the
transition to SOFR or other substitute indices, leading to uncertainty across the industry. These consequences cannot be entirely
predicted and could have an adverse impact on the market value for or value of LIBOR- linked securities, loans, and other
financial obligations or extensions of credit. The Company’ s primary exposure to LIBOR was related to its promissory notes
with borrowers, swap contracts with clients and offsetting swap contracts with third parties related to the swap contracts with
clients. As of July 2023, all promissory notes and swap contracts were transitioned to SOFR. RISKS RELATED TO OUR
BUSINESS OPERATIONS WE ARE EXPOSED TO OPERATIONAL RISK. We are exposed to many types of operational
risk, including reputational risk, legal and compliance risk, cybersecurity risk, the risk of fraud or theft by employees or
outsiders, unauthorized transactions by employees or operational errors, including clerical or record- keeping errors or those
resulting from faulty or disabled computer or telecommunications systems. We rely heavily on communications and information
systems to conduct our business. Any failure, interruption or breach in security of these systems could result in failures or
disruptions in our customer relationship management, general ledger, deposit, loan and other systems. We may be subject to
disruptions of our operating systems arising from events that are wholly or partially beyond our control, which may include, for
example, computer viruses, cyber- attacks, spikes in transaction volume and / or customer activity, electrical or
telecommunications outages, or natural disasters. Although we have programs in place related to business continuity, disaster
recovery and information security to maintain the confidentiality, integrity and availability of our systems, business applications
and customer information, such disruptions may give rise to interruptions in service to customers, loss of data privacy and loss
or liability to us. Any failure or interruption in our operations or information systems, or any security or data breach, could
cause reputational damage, jeopardize the confidentiality of customer information, result in a loss of customer business, subject
us to regulatory intervention or expose us to civil litigation and financial loss or liability, any of which could have a material
adverse effect on us. Given the volume of transactions we process, certain errors may be repeated or compounded before they
are discovered and successfully rectified. Our necessary dependence upon automated systems to record and process our
transaction volume may further increase the risk that technical system flaws or employee tampering or manipulation of those
systems will result in losses that are difficult to detect. We may also be subject to disruptions of our operating systems arising
from events that are wholly or partially beyond our control (for example, computer viruses or electrical or telecommunications
outages), which may give rise to disruption of service to customers and to financial loss or liability. We are further exposed to
the risk that our external vendors may be unable to fulfill their contractual obligations (or will be subject to the same risk of
fraud or operational errors by their respective employees as we are) and to the risk that our (or our vendors’) consumer
compliance, business continuity and data security systems prove to be inadequate. Negative public opinion can result from our
actual or alleged conduct in any number of activities, including lending practices, corporate governance and acquisitions, social
media and other marketing activities, the implementation of environmental, social and governance (ESG) practices, and from
actions taken by governmental regulators and community organizations in response to any of the foregoing activities. Negative
public opinion could adversely affect our ability to attract and keep customers, could expose us to potential litigation and
regulatory action, and could have a material adverse effect on the price of our common shares or result in heightened volatility
of our stock price. UNAUTHORIZED DISCLOSURE OF SENSITIVE OR CONFIDENTIAL CLIENT INFORMATION OR
BREACHES IN SECURITY OF OUR SYSTEMS, COULD SEVERELY HARM OUR BUSINESS. As part of our financial
institution business, we collect, process and store sensitive consumer data by utilizing computer systems and
telecommunications networks operated by both us and third- party service providers. Our necessary dependence upon automated
systems to record and process transactions poses the risk that technical system flaws, employee errors, tampering or
manipulation of those systems, or attacks by third parties will result in losses and may be difficult to detect. We have security
and backup and recovery systems in place, as well as a business continuity plan, to ensure the computer systems will not be
inoperable, to the extent possible. The Company also routinely reviews documentation of such controls and backups related to
third- party service providers. Our inability to use or access these information systems at critical points in time could
unfavorably impact the timeliness and efficiency of our business operations. In recent years, some banks have experienced
denial of service attacks in which individuals or organizations flood the bank' s website with extraordinarily high volumes of
traffic, with the goal and effect of disrupting the ability of the bank to process transactions. Other businesses have been victims
of ransomware attacks in which the business becomes unable to access its own information and is presented with a demand to
pay a ransom in order to once again have access to its information. We could be adversely affected if one of our employees or a
third- party service provider causes a significant operational break- down or failure, either as a result of human error or where an
individual purposefully sabotages or fraudulently manipulates our operations or systems. We are further exposed to the risk that
our third- party service providers may be unable to fulfill their contractual obligations (or will be subject to the same risks as
faced by us). These disruptions may interfere with service to our customers, cause additional regulatory scrutiny and result in a
financial loss or liability. We are also at risk of the impact of natural disasters, terrorism and international hostilities on our
systems and effects of outages or other failures involving power or communications systems operated by others. Misconduct by
employees could include fraudulent, improper or unauthorized activities on behalf of clients or improper use of confidential
information. We may not be able to prevent employee errors or misconduct, and the precautions we take to detect this type of



activity might not be effective in all cases. Employee errors or misconduct could subject us to civil claims for negligence or
regulatory enforcement actions, including fines and restrictions on our business. In addition, there have been instances where
financial institutions have been victims of fraudulent activity in which criminals pose as customers to initiate wire and automated
clearinghouse transactions out of customer accounts. Although we have policies and procedures in place to verify the
authenticity of our customers, we cannot assure that such policies and procedures will prevent all fraudulent transfers. Such
activity can result in financial liability and harm to our reputation. We have implemented security controls to prevent
unauthorized access to the computer systems, and we require our third- party service providers to maintain similar controls.
However, we cannot be certain that these measures will be successful. A security breach of our computer systems and loss of
confidential information, such as customer account numbers and related information, could result in a loss of customers’
confidence and, thus, loss of business. While Civista maintains specific “ cyber ” insurance coverage, which would apply in the
event of various breach scenarios, the amount of coverage may not be adequate in any particular case. Furthermore, because
cyber threat scenarios are inherently difficult to predict and can take many forms, some breaches may not be covered under our
cyber insurance coverage. Further, we may be impacted by data breaches at retailers and other third parties who participate in
data interchanges with us and our customers that involve the theft of customer credit and debit card data, which may include the
theft of our debit card personal identification numbers (PINs) and commercial card information used to make purchases at such
retailers and other third parties. Such data breaches could result in us incurring significant expenses to reissue debit cards and
cover losses, which could result in a material adverse effect on our results of operations. There can be no assurance that we will
not suffer such cyber- attacks or other information security breaches or attempted breaches, incur resulting losses in the future.
Our risk and exposure to these matters remains heightened because of, among other things, the evolving nature of these threats,
and our plans to continue to implement internet and mobile banking capabilities to meet customer demand. As cyber and other
data security threats continue to evolve, we may be required to expend significant additional resources to continue to modify and
enhance its protective measures or to investigate and remediate any security vulnerabilities. Our assets at risk for cyber- attacks
include financial assets and non- public information belonging to customers. We use several third- party vendors who have
access to our assets via electronic media. Certain cyber security risks arise due to this access, including cyber espionage,
blackmail, ransom, and theft. All of the types of cyber incidents discussed above could result in damage to our reputation, loss
of customer business, costs of incentives to customers or business partners in order to maintain their relationships, litigation,
increased regulatory scrutiny and potential enforcement actions, repairs of system damage, increased investments in
cybersecurity (such as obtaining additional technology, making organizational changes, deploying additional personnel, training
personnel and engaging consultants), increased insurance premiums, and loss of investor confidence and a reduction in the price
of our common shares, all of which could result in financial loss and material adverse effects on our results of operations and
financial condition. Noncompliance with the Bank Secrecy Act (" BSA ") and other anti- money laundering statutes and
regulations could cause a material financial loss. The BSA and the Patriot Act contain anti- money laundering and financial
transparency provisions intended to detect and prevent the use of the U. S. financial system for money laundering and terrorist
financing activities. The BSA, as amended by the Patriot Act and the AMLA, requires depository institutions and their holding
companies to undertake activities including maintaining an anti- money laundering program, verifying the identity of clients,
monitoring for and reporting suspicious transactions, reporting on cash transactions exceeding specified thresholds, and
responding to requests for information by regulatory authorities and law enforcement agencies. Financial Crimes Enforcement
Network (also known as " FinCEN "), a unit of the Treasury Department that administers the BSA, is authorized to impose
significant civil money penalties for violations of those requirements and has recently engaged in coordinated enforcement
efforts with the federal bank regulatory agencies, as well as the U. S. Department of Justice, Drug Enforcement Administration,
and Internal Revenue Service. The AMLA is intended to be a comprehensive reform and modernization to U. S. bank secrecy
and anti- money laundering laws, which includes a codified risk- based approach to anti- money laundering compliance for
financial institutions; requires the development of standards for evaluating technology and internal processes for BSA
compliance; expands enforcement- related and investigation- related authority, including increasing available sanctions for
certain BSA violations and instituting BSA whistleblower incentives and protections. There is also increased scrutiny of
compliance with the rules enforced by the Office of Foreign Assets Control (also known as " OFAC "). If the Company’ s
policies, procedures, and systems are deemed deficient, or if the policies, procedures, and systems of the financial institutions
that the Company has already acquired or may acquire in the future are deficient, the Company may be subject to liability,
including fines and regulatory actions such as restrictions on the Company’ s ability to pay dividends and the necessity to obtain
regulatory approvals to proceed with certain planned business activities, including acquisition plans, which could negatively
impact our business, financial condition, and results of operations. Failure to maintain and implement adequate programs to
combat money laundering and terrorist financing could also have serious reputational consequences for the Company. Our
business could be adversely affected through third parties who perform significant operational services on our behalf. The third
parties performing operational services for the Company are subject to risks similar to those faced by the Company relating to
cybersecurity, breakdowns or failures of their own systems, or misconduct of their employees. Like many other community
banks, Civista also relies, in significant part, on a single vendor for the systems which allow Civista to provide banking services
to Civista’ s customers, for which the systems are maintained on Civista’ s behalf by this single vendor. One or more of the third
parties utilized by us may experience a cybersecurity event or operational disruption and, if any such event does occur, it may
not be adequately addressed, either operationally or financially, by such third party. Certain of these third parties may have
limited indemnification obligations to us in the event of a cybersecurity event or operational disruption, or may not have the
financial capacity to satisfy their indemnification obligations. Financial or operational difficulties of a third - party provider
could also impair our operations if those difficulties interfere with such third party’ s ability to serve the Company. If a critical
third- party provider is unable to meet the needs of the Company in a timely manner, or if the services or products provided by



such third party are terminated or otherwise delayed and if the Company is not able to develop alternative sources for these
services and products quickly and cost- effectively, our business could be materially adversely effected. Additionally, regulatory
guidance adopted by federal banking regulators addressing how banks select, engage and manage their third- party relationships,
affects the circumstances and conditions under which we work with third parties and the cost of managing such relationships.
STRONG COMPETITION WITHIN OUR MARKET AREA MAY REDUCE OUR ABILITY TO ATTRACT AND RETAIN
DEPOSITS AND ORIGINATE LOANS. We face competition both in originating loans and in attracting deposits within our
market area, which includes North Central, West Central and South Western Ohio, South Eastern Indiana and Northern
Kentucky. We compete for clients by offering personal service and competitive rates on our loans and deposit products. The
type of institutions we compete with include large regional financial institutions, community banks, thrifts and credit unions
operating within our market areas. Nontraditional sources of competition for loan and deposit dollars come from captive auto
finance companies, mortgage banking companies, internet banks, brokerage companies, insurance companies and direct mutual
funds. As a result of their size and ability to achieve economies of scale, certain of our competitors offer a broader range of
products and services than we offer. We expect competition to remain intense in the future as a result of legislative, regulatory
and technological changes and the continuing trend of consolidation in the financial services industry. In addition, to stay
competitive in our markets we may need to adjust the interest rates on our products to match the rates offered by our
competitors, which could adversely affect our net interest margin. As a result, our profitability depends upon our continued
ability to successfully compete in our market areas while achieving our investment objectives. OUR ALLOWANCE FOR
CREDIT LOSSES MAY PROVE TO BE INSUFFICIENT TO ABSORB POTENTIAL LOSSES IN OUR LOAN
PORTFOLIO. We maintain an allowance for credit losses that we believe is a reasonable estimate of known and inherent losses
within the loan portfolio. We make various assumptions and judgments about the collectability of our loan portfolio, including
the creditworthiness of our borrowers and the value of the real estate and other assets serving as collateral for the repayment of
loans. Through a periodic review and consideration of the loan portfolio, management determines the amount of the allowance
for credit losses by considering general market conditions, the credit quality of the loan portfolio, the collateral supporting the
loans and the performance of customers relative to their financial obligations with us. However, every loan we make carries a
risk of non- payment. This risk is affected by, among other things, cash flow of the borrower and / or the project being financed,
changes and uncertainties as to the future value of the collateral securing such loan, the credit history of the particular borrower,
changes in economic and industry conditions, and the duration of the loan. The amount of future losses is also susceptible to
changes in economic, operating and other conditions, including changes in interest rates, which may be beyond our control, and
these losses may exceed current estimates. We cannot fully predict the amount or timing of losses or whether the allowance for
credit losses will be adequate in the future. If our assumptions prove to be incorrect, our allowance for credit losses may not be
sufficient to cover losses inherent in our loan portfolio, resulting in additions to the allowance, which would adversely affect our
earnings. Excessive loan losses and significant additions to our allowance for credit losses could have a material adverse impact
on our financial condition and results of operations. In addition, bank regulators periodically review our allowance for credit
losses and may require us to increase our allowance for credit losses or recognize further loan charge- offs. Moreover, the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (" FASB") has changed its requirements for establishing the allowance for credit losses.
On June 16, 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standard Update (" ASU") 2016- 13" Financial Instruments- Credit Losses",
which replaces the incurred loss model with an expected loss model, and is referred to as the current expected credit loss ("
CECL") model. Under the incurred loss model, loans are-were recognized as impaired when there s-was no longer an
assumption that future cash flows sw#H-would be collected in full under the originally contracted terms. Under the CECL model,
financial institutions are required to use historical information, current conditions and reasonable forecasts to estimate the
expected loss over the life of the loan. The transition to the CECL model requires significantly greater data requirements and
changes to methodologies to accurately account for expected losses under the new parameters. If the methodologies and
assumptions that we use in the CECL model are proven to be incorrect, or inadequate, the allowance for credit losses may not be
sufficient, resulting in the need for additional allowance for credlt losses to be establlshed whlch could have a materlal adverse
1mpact on our ﬁnanmal cond1t10n and results of operatlons —Fthe

eporting-pertods-and-interimreporting-pertods-withinthese-annual-periods; beg TheCompany
adopted ASU 2016 13 effectlve January 1, 2023 and, upon adoptlon recognlzed a one- time curnulatlve effect adjustment
(increase) to the retained earnings upon adoptlon in the first quarter of 2023 of $ 6, 069. If real estate markets or the economy in
general deteriorate, Civista may experience increased delinquencies and credit losses. The allowance for credit losses may not be
sufficient to cover actual loan- related losses. Additionally, banking regulators may require Civista to increase its allowance for
credit losses in the future, which could have a negative effect on Civista’ s financial condition and results of operations.
Additions to the allowance for credit losses will result in a decrease in net earnings and capital and could hinder our ability to
grow our assets. Any increase in our allowance for credit losses or loan charge- offs as required by these regulatory authorities
could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. THE SMALL TO MEDIUM SIZED
BUSINESSES THAT WE LEND TO MAY HAVE FEWER RESOURCES TO WEATHER ADVERSE BUSINESS
CONDITIONS, WHICH MAY IMPAIR THEIR ABILITY TO REPAY LOANS, AND SUCH IMPAIRMENT COULD
ADVERSELY AFFECT OUR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION. Our business development
and marketing strategies primarily result in us serving the banking and financial services needs of small to medium- sized
businesses. These businesses generally have fewer financial resources in terms of capital or borrowing capacity than larger
entities, frequently have smaller market shares than their competition, may be more vulnerable to economic downturns, often
need substantial additional capital to expand or compete and may experience substantial volatility in operating results, any of



which may impair a borrower’ s ability to repay a loan. In addition, the success of a small to medium- sized business often
depends on the management skills, talents and efforts of one or two people or a small group of people, and the death, disability
or resignation of one or more of these people could have a material adverse impact on the business and its ability to repay its
loans. If general economic conditions negatively impact Ohio, Indiana or the specific markets in these states in which we
operate and small to medium- sized businesses are adversely affected or our borrowers are otherwise affected by adverse
business conditions, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected. OUR BUSINESS
AND FINANCIAL RESULTS ARE SUBJECT TO RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH THE CREDITWORTHINESS OF OUR
CUSTOMERS AND COUNTERPARTIES. Credit risk is inherent in the financial services business and results from, among
other things, extending credit to customers, purchasing securities, and entering into financial derivative transactions and certain
guarantee contracts. Credit risk is one of our most significant risks, particularly given the high percentage of our assets
represented directly or indirectly by loans, and the importance of lending to our overall business. We manage credit risk by
assessing and monitoring the creditworthiness of our customers and counterparties and by diversifying our loan portfolio. Many
factors impact credit risk. A borrower’ s ability to repay a loan can be adversely affected by individual factors, such as business
performance, job losses or health issues. A weak or deteriorating economy and changes in the United States or global markets
also could adversely impact the ability of our borrowers to repay outstanding loans. Any decrease in our borrowers’ ability to
repay loans would result in higher levels of nonperforming loans, net charge- offs, and provision for {ean-credit losses. Despite
maintaining a diversified loan portfolio, in the ordinary course of business, we may have concentrated credit exposure to a
particular person or entity, industry, region or counterparty. Events adversely affecting specific customers, industries, regions or
markets, a decrease in the credit quality of a customer base or an adverse change in the risk profile of a market, industry, or
group of customers could adversely affect us. Our credit risk may be exacerbated when collateral held by us to secure
obligations to us cannot be realized upon or is liquidated at prices that are not sufficient to recover the full amount of the loan or
derivative exposure due to us. Due in part to improvement in local and general economic conditions, as well as actions we have
taken to manage our loan portfolio, our provision for credit losses has declined since the end of the 2007- 2008 financial crisis.
However, if we experience higher levels of provision for {ean-credit losses in the future, our net income could be negatively
affected. WE RELY HEAVILY ON OUR MANAGEMENT TEAM, AND THE UNEXPECTED LOSS OF KEY
MANAGEMENT MAY ADVERSELY AFFECT OUR OPERATIONS. Our success to date has been strongly influenced by our
ability to attract and to retain senior management experienced in banking in the markets we serve. Our ability to retain executive
officers and the current management teams will continue to be important to successful implementation of our strategies. The
unexpected loss of services of any key management personnel, or the inability to recruit and retain qualified personnel in the
future, could have an adverse effect on our business and financial results. WE DEPEND UPON THE ACCURACY AND
COMPLETENESS OF INFORMATION ABOUT CUSTOMERS AND OTHER PARTIES. In deciding whether to extend
credit or enter into other transactions with customers and counterparties, we may rely on information provided to us by
customers and other parties, including financial statements and other financial information. We may also rely on representations
of customers and counterparties as to the accuracy and completeness of that information and, with respect to financial
statements, on reports of independent auditors. For example, in deciding whether to extend credit to a business, we may assume
that the customer’ s audited financial statements conform with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the customer. We may also
rely on the audit report covering those financial statements. Our financial condition and results of operations could be negatively
impacted to the extent we rely on financial statements that do not comply with generally accepted accounting principles or that
are materially misleading, or on other financial information that is incomplete or materially misleading. ACQUISITIONS OR
OTHER EXPANSION MAY ADVERSELY AFFECT OUR FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULT OF OPERATIONS.
In the future, we may acquire other financial institutions or branches or assets of other financial institutions. We may also open
new branches, enter into new lines of business, or offer new products or services. Any future acquisition or expansion of our
business, will involve a number of expenses and risks, which may include some or all of the following: « the time and expense
associated with identifying and evaluating potential acquisitions or expansions; ¢ the potential inaccuracy of estimates and
judgments used to evaluate credit, operations, management and market risk with respect to target institutions; * the time and
costs of evaluating new markets, hiring local management and opening new offices, and the delay between commencing these
activities and the generation of profits from the expansion; ¢ any financing required in connection with an acquisition or
expansion; ¢ the diversion of management’ s attention to the negotiation of a transaction and the integration of the operations
and personnel of the combining businesses; ¢ entry into unfamiliar markets and the introduction of new products and services
into our existing business; ¢ the possible impairment of goodwill associated with an acquisition and possible adverse short- term
effects on our results of operations; and ¢ the risk of loss of key employees and customers. We may incur substantial costs to
expand, and we can give no assurance that such expansion will result in the levels of profits we expect. Neither can we assure
that integration efforts for any future acquisitions will be successful. We may issue equity securities in connection with
acquisitions, which could dilute the economic and voting interests of our existing shareholders. LEGISLATIVE, LEGAL AND
REGULATORY RISKS LEGISLATIVE OR REGULATORY CHANGES OR ACTIONS COULD ADVERSELY IMPACT
OUR BUSINESS. The financial services industry is extensively regulated. We are subject to extensive state and federal
regulation, supervision and legislation that govern almost all aspects of our operations. These laws and regulations are primarily
intended for the protection of consumers, depositors borrowers and the deposit insurance fund, not to benefit our shareholders.
Regulations affecting banks and ﬁnancral services busrnesses are undergomg continuous change and management cannot predict
the effect of those changes. The Whtle hanges-are-gene A b

nstitattons;the-impact of any changes to laws and regulatlons or other actions by regulatory agencies could adversely affect our
business. Regulatory authorities have extensive discretion in connection with their supervisory and enforcement activities,




including the ability to impose restrictions on the operation of an institution and the ability to determine the adequacy of an
institution’ s allowance for tean-credit losses. Failure to comply with applicable laws, regulations and policies could result in
sanctions being imposed by the regulatory agencies, including the imposition of civil money penalties, which could have a
material adverse effect on our operations and financial condition. Even the reduction of regulatory restrictions could have an
adverse effect on us if such lessening of restrictions increases competition within our industry or market areas. DEPOSIT
INSURANCE PREMIUMS MAY INCREASE AND HAVE A NEGATIVE EFFECT ON THE COMPANY’ S RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS. The DIF maintained by the FDIC to resolve bank failures is funded by fees assessed on insured depository
institutions. The costs of resolving bank failures increased for a period of time and decreased the DIF. The FDIC collected a
special assessment in 2009 to replenish the DIF and also required a prepayment of an estimated amount of future deposit
insurance premiums. If the costs of future bank failures increase, the deposit insurance premiums required to be paid by Civista
may also increase. The FDIC recently adopted rules revising its assessments in a manner benefitting—- benefiting banks with
assets totaling less than $ 10 billion. There can be no assurance, however, that assessments will not be changed in the future. We
are subject to examinations and challenges by tax authorities. In the normal course of business, we are routinely subject to
examinations and challenges from federal and state tax authorities regarding positions taken regarding their respective tax
returns. State tax authorities have become increasingly aggressive in challenging tax positions taken by financial institutions,
especially those positions relating to tax compliance and calculation of taxes subject to apportionment. Any challenge or
examination by a tax authority may result in adjustments to the timing or amount of taxable net worth or taxable income, or
deductions or the allocation of income among tax jurisdictions. Management believes it has taken appropriate positions with
respect to all tax returns and does not anticipate that any examination would have a material impact on our Consolidated
Financial Statements. However, the outcome of such examinations and ultimate resolution of any resulting assessments are
inherently difficult to predict. Thus, no assurance can be given that our tax liability for any tax year open to examination will be
as reflected in our current and historical Consolidated Financial Statements. Accounting changes could impact our reported
financial condition or results of operations. The accounting standard setters, including the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (the FASB), the SEC and other regulatory bodies, periodically change the financial accounting and reporting guidance
that governs the preparation of our consolidated financial statements. The pace of change continues to accelerate and changes in
accounting standards can be hard to predict and could materially impact how we record and report our financial condition and
results of operations. In some cases, we could be required to apply new or revised guidance retroactively, resulting in the
restatement of prior period financial statements. The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U. S.
generally accepted accounting principles (" GAAP") requires management to make significant estimates that affect the financial
statements. Due to the inherent nature of these estimates, actual results may vary materially from management’ s estimates. In
June 2016, FASB issued a new accounting standard for recognizing current expected credit losses, commonly referred to as
CECL. CECL wilt-has result-resulted in earlier recognition of credit losses and requires consideration of not only past and
current events but also reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect collectability. The Company adopted CECL effective
January 1, 2023. Upon adoption of CECL, credit loss allowances have increased, which have decreased retained earnings and
regulatory capital. While the federal banking regulators adopted rules that allow banks to phase in the day- one impact of CECL
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ﬁﬂaﬂeial—misstatements—efﬂaef&ﬁenal—}esses— WE MAY BE THE SUBJECT OF LITIGATION WHICH COULD RESULT lN
LEGAL LIABILITY AND DAMAGE TO OUR BUSINESS AND REPUTATION. From time to time, we may be subject to
claims or legal action from customers, employees or others. Financial institutions like CBI and Civista are facing a growing
number of significant class actions, including those based on the manner of calculation of interest on loans and the assessment of
overdraft fees. Future litigation could include claims for substantial compensatory and / or punitive damages or claims for
indeterminate amounts of damages. We are also involved from time to time in other reviews, investigations and proceedings
(both formal and informal) by governmental and other agencies regarding our business. These matters also could result in
adverse judgments, settlements, fines, penalties, injunctions or other relief. Like other large financial institutions, we are also
subject to risk from potential employee misconduct, including non- compliance with policies and improper use or disclosure of
confidential information. Substantial legal liability or significant regulatory action against us could materially adversely affect
our business, financial condition or results of operations and / or cause s1gn1ﬁcant reputatlonal harm to our business. W&

OUR CAPITAL AND STOCK WE MAY ELECT OR NEED TO RAISE ADDITIONAL CAPITAL IN THE FUTURE, BUT
CAPITAL MAY NOT BE AVAILABLE WHEN IT IS NEEDED. We are required by federal and state regulatory authorities to
maintain adequate levels of capital to support our operations. In addition, federal banking agencies have recently finalized
extensive changes to their capital requirements, including the adoption of the final “ Basel III ” rules as discussed above, which
result in higher capital requirements and more restrictive leverage and liquidity ratios than those previously in place. If we



experience significant credit losses, addittorradditional capital may need to be infused. In addition, we may elect to raise
additional capital to support business growth and / or to finance acquisitions, if any, or we may otherwise elect or be required to
raise additional capital. Our ability to raise additional capital, if needed, will depend on conditions in the capital markets,
economic conditions and a number of other factors, many of which are outside our control, and are based on our financial
performance. Accordingly, we cannot be assured of our ability to raise additional capital if needed or on terms acceptable to us.
If we cannot raise additional capital when needed, it may have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of
operations and prospects. WE ARE A HOLDING COMPANY AND DEPEND ON OUR SUBSIDIARY BANK FOR
DIVIDENDS. As a financial holding company, we are a legal entity separate and distinct from our subsidiaries and affiliates.
Our principal source of funds to support our operations, pay dividends on our common shares and service our debt is dividends
from our subsidiary bank, Civista. In the event that Civista is unable to pay dividends to us, we may not be able to service our
debt, pay our other obligations or pay dividends on our common shares. Accordingly, our inability to receive dividends from
Civista could also have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Various federal
and state statutory provisions and regulations limit the amount of dividends that Civista may pay to us without regulatory
approval. Generally, subject to certain minimum capital requirements, Civista may declare a dividend without the approval of
the ODFTI so long as the total amount of the dividends in a calendar year does not exceed Civista’ s total net income for that year
combined with its retained net income for the two preceding years. In addition, the Federal Reserve has issued policy statements
that provide that insured banks and bank holding companies should generally only pay dividends out of current operating
earnings. Thus, the ability of Civista to pay dividends in the future is currently influenced, and could be further influenced, by
bank regulatory policies and capital guidelines and may restrict our ability to declare and pay dividends on our common shares.
THE MARKET PRICE OF OUR COMMON SHARES MAY BE SUBJECT TO FLUCTUATIONS AND VOLATILITY. The
market price of our common shares may fluctuate significantly due to, among other things, changes in market sentiment
regarding our operations or business prospects, the banking industry generally or the macroeconomic outlook. Factors that could
impact our trading price include: ¢ our operating and financial results, including how those results vary from the expectations of
management, securities analysts and investors; * developments in our business or operations or in the financial sector generally;
« future offerings by us of debt or preferred shares, which would be senior to our common shares upon liquidation and for
purposes of dividend distributions; ¢ legislative or regulatory changes affecting our industry generally or our business and
operations specifically; ¢ the operating and stock price performance of companies that investors consider to be comparable to us;
« announcements of strategic developments, acquisitions and other material events by us or our competitors; ¢ actions by our
current shareholders, including future sales of common shares by existing shareholders, including our directors and executive
officers; and * other changes in U. S. or global financial markets, global economies and general market conditions, such as
interest or foreign exchange rates, stock, commodity, credit or asset valuations or volatility. Equity markets in general and our
common shares in particular have experienced considerable volatility over the past few years. The market price of our common
shares may continue to be subject to volatility unrelated to our operating performance or business prospects. Increased volatility
could result in a decline in the market price of our common shares. THE SALE OF SUBSTANTIAL AMOUNTS OF OUR
COMMON SHARES OR SECURITIES CONVERTIBLE INTO OUR COMMON SHARES IN THE PUBLIC MARKET
COULD DEPRESS THE PRICE OF OUR COMMON SHARES. In recent years, the stock market has experienced a high level
of price and volume volatility, and market prices for the stock of many companies have experienced wide fluctuations that have
not necessarily been related to their operating performance. Therefore, our shareholders may not be able to sell their shares at the
volumes, prices, or times that they desire. We cannot predict the effect, if any, that future sales of our common shares or
securities convertible into our common shares in the market, or availability of shares of our common shares or securities
convertible into our common shares for sale in the market, will have on the market price of our common shares. We can give no
assurance that sales of substantial amounts of our common shares or securities convertible into our common shares in the
market, or the potential for large amounts of sales in the market, would not cause the price of our securities to decline or impair
our ability to raise capital through sales of our common shares. GENERAL RISK FACTORS ADVERSE CHANGES IN
FINANCIAL MARKETS AND ECONOMIC CONDITIONS MAY ADVERSELY IMPACT OUR RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS. Although we primarily invest in securities issued by United States government agencies and sponsored entities
and United States state and local governments with limited credit risk, certain of our investment securities possess higher credit
risk since they represent beneficial interests in structured investments collateralized by residential mortgages, debt obligations
and other similar assets. Even securities issued by United States government agencies and sponsored entities may entail risk
depending on political and economic changes. Regardless of the level of credit risk, all investment securities are subject to
changes in market value due to changing interest rates, implied credit spreads and credit ratings. We may experience increasing
scrutiny and evolving expectations from customers, regulators, investors, and other stakeholders with respect to the Company’ s
environmental, social and governance practices. Financial institutions are facing increasing scrutiny from customers, regulators,
investors, and other stakeholders related to their environmental, social, and governance (“ ESG ™) practices and disclosure.
Investor advocacy groups, investment funds, and influential investors are also increasingly focused on these practices,
especially as they relate to the environment, health and safety, diversity, labor conditions, and human rights. Increased ESG-
related compliance costs for the Company as well as among our suppliers, vendors and various other parties within our supply
chain could result in increases to our overall operational costs. Failure to adapt to or comply with regulatory requirements or
investor or stakeholder expectations and standards could negatively impact our reputation, ability to do business with certain
partners, access to capital, and the price of our common shares. New government regulations could also result in new or more
stringent forms of ESG oversight and expanding mandatory and voluntary reporting, diligence, and disclosure. CHANGES IN
TAX LAWS COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT OUR PERFORMANCE We are subject to extensive federal, state and local
taxes, including income, excise, sales / use, payroll, franchise, withholding and ad valorem taxes. Changes to tax laws could



have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, fair values of net deferred tax assets and obligations of states and
political subdivisions held in our investment securities portfolio. In addition, our customers are subject to a wide variety of
federal, state and local taxes. Changes in taxes paid by our customers may adversely affect their ability to purchase homes or
consumer products, which could adversely affect their demand for our loans and deposit products. In addition, such negative
effects on our customers could result in defaults on the loans we have made and decrease the value of mortgage- backed
securities in which we have invested. WE NEED TO CONSTANTLY UPDATE OUR TECHNOLOGY IN ORDER TO
COMPETE AND MEET CUSTOMER DEMANDS. The financial services market, including banking services, is undergoing
rapid technological changes with frequent introductions of new technology- driven products and services. In addition to better
serving customers, the effective use of technology increases efficiency and may enable us to reduce costs. Our future success
will depend, in part, on our ability to use technology to provide products and services that provide convenience to customers and
to create additional efficiencies in our operations. Some of our competitors have substantially greater resources to invest in
technological improvements. We may not be able to effectively implement new technology- driven products and services or be
successful in marketing these products and services to our customers. Failure to successfully keep pace with technological
changes affecting the financial services industry could negatively affect our growth, revenue and profit. WE ARE SUBJECT
TO ENVIRONMENTAL LIABILITY RISK ASSOCIATED WITH CIVISTA’ S LENDING ACTIVITIES. A significant
portion of Civista’ s loan portfolio is secured by real property. During the ordinary course of business, Civista forecloses on and
takes title to properties securing certain loans. In doing so, there is a risk that hazardous or toxic substances could be found on
these properties. If hazardous or toxic substances are found, Civista may be liable for remediation costs, as well as for personal
injury and property damage. Environmental laws and evolving regulation may require Civista to incur substantial expenses and
may materially reduce the affected property’ s value or limit Civista’ s ability to use or sell the affected property. In addition,
future laws and regulations or more stringent interpretations or enforcement policies with respect to existing laws or regulations
may increase Civista’ s exposure to environmental liability. Environmental reviews of real property before initiating foreclosure
actions may not be sufficient to detect all potential environmental hazards. The remediation costs and any other financial
liabilities associated with an environmental hazard could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations. Climate change, severe weather, natural disasters, acts of war or terrorism and other external events could
significantly impact our business. Natural disasters, including severe weather events of increasing strength and frequency due to
climate change, acts of war or terrorism, and other adverse external events could have a significant impact on our ability to
conduct business or upon third parties who perform operational services for us or our customers. Such events could affect the
stability of our deposit base, impair the ability of borrowers to repay outstanding loans, impair the value of collateral securing
loans, cause significant property damage, result in lost revenue or cause us to incur additional expenses. Item 1B. Unresolved
Staff Comments None. Item 1C. Cybersecurity The €erperatton-Company understands the-that security of our banking
operations is critical to protecting our customers, maintaining our reputation and preserving the value of the Cerporation
Company . The €orporation-Company is focused on addressing cybersecurity risks on confidentiality, integrity, and the
availability of the information the €erperatien-Company collects, transmits and stores by identifying, preventing, and
mitigating cybersecurity risks. The Board of Directors, through the Board Risk and Audit Committees, and the Company' s
Enterprise Risk Management Committee ;-provide direction and oversight of the enterprise- wide risk management program of
the €erperatten-Company , which includes the Information Security Program. The Chief Information Officer and the Chief
Risk Officer oversee these programs to accomplish the following: * assure the confidentiality, integrity and availability of our
information and information systems;  protect against any anticipated threats or hazards to the confidentiality, integrity or
availability of such information and information systems; and ¢ protect against unauthorized access to or use of such information
or information systems that could result in substantial harm or inconvenience to us, our clients and the value of the €erperation
Company . These programs establish policies (including vendor management), procedures, risk assessments, systems,
monitoring, reporting, strategies, and training to effectively manage cybersecurity risks. Specifically, the Cerperation-Company
deploys multiple layers of controls, including embedding security into our technology investments, designed to identify, protect,
detect, respond to and recover from information security and cybersecurity incidents. The €erperatierrCompany also performs
simulations and drills to further ensure our readiness and preparedness for potential threats. In addition, the Cerperation
Company employs a nationally recognized firm with information security experts to annually perform audits that extensively
test our program and controls, which are reviewed by the Board Audit Committee. These programs and controls align with
Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council guidelines and standards. While we do not believe that our business strategy,
results of operations or financial condition have been materially adversely affected by any cybersecurity incidents, cybersecurity
threats are present and similar to other financial institutions. The €erperatten-Company , as well as our customers, colleagues,
regulators, service providers and other third parties, have seen an increase in information security and cybersecurity risk in
recent years. We continue to assess the risks and threats in the cyber environment, invest in enhancements to our cybersecurity
capabilities, and engage in industry and government forums to promote advancements in our cybersecurity collaboration and
capabilities. Item 2. Properties CBI neither owns nor leases any properties. Civista owns its main office at 100 East Water
Street, Sandusky, Ohio, which is also the office of CBI. Civista also owns branch banking offices in the following Ohio and
Indiana communities: Sandusky (2), Norwalk (2), Berlin Heights, Willard, Castalia, Port Clinton, New Washington, Shelby (2),
Greenwich, Plymouth, Shiloh, Dublin, Plain City, Russells Point, Urbana (2), Dayton (2), Quincy, Napoleon (3-2 ), Malinta,
Holgate, Liberty Center, Lawrenceburg (3), Aurora, West Harrison, Milan, Osgood and Versailles. Civista leases branch
banking offices in the Ohio communities of Akron, Huron, West Liberty, Dayton, Bowling Green and Beachwood. Civista also
leases loan production offices in Westlake, Ohio and Fort Mitchell, Kentucky. The CLF division of Civista leases its offices

located for-its-equipmentleasing-and-finaneing-business-in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania s FrankdinFennessee-and Dover, New

Hampshire. Item 3. Legal Proceedings In the ordinary course of their respective businesses, the Company or its properties may



be named or otherwise subject as a plaintiff, defendant or other party to various pending and threatened legal proceedings and
various actual and potential claims. In view of the inherent difficulty of predicting the outcome of such matters, the Company
cannot state what the eventual outcome of any such matters will be. However, based on current knowledge and after consultation
with legal counsel, management believes that any damages or other amounts related to pending legal proceedings will not have a
material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position, results of operations or liquidity of the Company. Item 4. Mine
Safety Disclosures Not Applicable PART II Item 5. Market for Registrant’ s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities As of February 26-18 , 2024-2025 , there were approximately 1, #33-651 shareholders of
record (not including the number of persons or entities holding stock in nominee or street name through various brokerage
firms) of the Company’ s common shares. Information regarding the restrictions applicable to the Company’ s payment of
dividends is included under Item 1 of this Annual Report on Form 10- K and is incorporated herein by reference. The following
table details repurchases by the Company and purchases by" affiliated purchasers" as defined in Rule 10b- 18 (a) (3) under the
Exchange Act of the Company' s common shares during the fourth quarter of 2623-2024 . Period Total Number ofShares
Purchased Average Price Paidper Share Total Number ofShares Purchased asPart of PubliclyAnnounced Plans orPrograms
Maximum Number (orApproximate DollarValue) of Sharesthat May YetBe Purchased Under thePlans or Programs October 1,
2623-2024 - October 31, 20623-2024 — $ —— $——5$ 12, 003, 223 November 1, 2623-2024 - November 30, 2623-2024
— — — December 1, 20232024 - December 31, 2023-2024 — — — — +844—Total — $ — 4844 $ 12, 003, 223 On
MayS-April 18 , 2023, the Company announced a frew-common share repurchase program pursuant to which the Company is
authorized to repurchase a maximum aggregate value of $ 13, 500, 000 of its outstanding common shares through May2-April
25, 26242025 . As of December 31, 2623-2024 , a total 0f98-84 , 423-230 common shares had been repurchased for an
aggregate purchase price of $ 1, 628496 , 205-777 under this repurchase program. Shareholder Return Performance Set forth
below is a line graph comparing the five- year cumulative return of the common shares of Civista Bancshares, Inc. (ticker
symbol CIVB), based on an initial investment of $ 100 on December 31, 28482019 , and assuming reinvestment of dividends,
with the cumulative return of the Standard & Poor” s 500 Index, and the S & P U. S. BMI Banks Index. The comparative indices
were obtained from S & P Global Market Intelligence. A copy of the Company’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K, as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, will be furnished, free of charge, to shareholders, upon written request to Lance A.
Morrison, Secretary of Civista Bancshares, Inc., 100 East Water Street, Sandusky, Ohio 44870. Item 6. [ Reserved ] Item 7.
Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (Amounts in thousands, except per
share data) The following paragraphs more fully discuss the significant highlights, changes and trends as they relate to the
Company’ s financial condition, results of operations, liquidity and capital resources as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and
2622-, and during the three- year period ended December 31, 2623-2024 . This discussion should be read in conjunction with the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, which are included elsewhere in this
report. At December 31, 2023-2024 , the Company’ s total assets were $ 4, 098, 469, compared to $ 3, 861, 418 ;eompared-to$
35639445t December 31, %92—2—2023 Net loane and qecurme% avallable for sale increased $ 204-216 , 7-98—993 and $ 229,

a : from December 31, 2822-2023 , to December
31, %92—3—2024 respectlvely Other faetors Contrlbutlng to the Change in assets are discussed in the followmg sections. Loans
held for sale tnereased—decreased $ 1, 060 842-0r1452-6%-, from $-683-atPeeember34;2622-t0-5 1, 725 at December 31,
2023 to $ 665 at December 31, 2024 . The inerease-decrease is due to higher-lower balances of held loans. At December 31,
2023-2024 , aine-six loans totaling $ 665 :5725-were held for sale as compared to sevesrnine loans totaling $ 683-1, 725 at
December 31, 20222023 . At December 31, 2023-2024 , the Company’ s net loans totaled $ 2-3 , 824-041 , 568-561 and
increased by 7. 87 % from $ 2, 649-824 | 7768-568 at December 31, 2022-2023 . The increase in net loans was spread across
most segments. Commercial & Agriculture loans 1ncrea§ed $20-23 | 643-695 , Commercml Real E%tate — Non- Owner
Occupied loans increased $ 6-64 , 097 emmeretal Rea ver-Oeeupied s-inereased
Residential Real Estate loans 1ncrea§ed $ -1-97—104 060-028 | and Real Eitate Constructlon loane 1nerea§ed $ -1—7%—82—]:ease
finaneingreeetvablesinereased-$17,-845-- 45, 583 and-FarmRealEstateJoansinereased-$-63-. The increases in the foregoing
loan segments were partially offsct by a-deerease-decreases of $ 17, 901 in Consumer-and-total for Other-- the remaining
{oans—- loan segments e£$2,-H8- Maturities and Sensitivities of Loans to Changes in Interest Rates The following table shows
the amount of Commercial and Agriculture, Commercial Real Estate, Residential Real Estate, Real Estate Construction, Farm
Real Estate , and-Consumer-and-Otheroans-and-Lcase financing receivables and Consumer and Other Loans outstanding as
of December 31, 2823-2024 , which, based on the contract terms for repayments of principal, are due in the periods indicated. In
addition, the amounts due after one year are classified according to their sensitivity to changes in interest rates. Maturing
Withinone year After onebut withinfive years After fivebut within fifteen years After fifteen years Total (Dollars in thousands)
Commercial & Agriculture $ 94160 , 366-054 S +6+-128 . 482-688 $ 56-38 , 689-634 © |, 3+6-112 $ 304-328 , 793-488
Commercial Real Estate: Owner Occupied 624 , 742363-000 100 , 779229-428 219 , 599-311 30, 628 37374 , 367 20437
324-Non- Owner Occupied 76-108 , +59-375 526, 003 546, 735 447 44 , 878 243-595-807-48;-H5-1, +6+225 |, 894-991
Residential Real Estate 5-9 | 240-36-342 42 , 986-240-181 235 |, 938-382-068 477 , H3-659-278 763 , 84+-869 Real Estate
Construction 508;-596— 59 +67-, 638-63-340 110 , 569-38-228 91 , 666266-406 45 . 469-018 305, 992 Farm Real Estate 1, 8856
783 5 ,938-582 13, 3H-3-107 2 , 43724563 23 , 7H-035 [ casc financing receivables 3, 327 39, 907 3, 666 — 46, 900
Consumer and Other 1,298 9, 43634417 1 , H41+1-465 12 , 588 698—-54-642-Consumer-and-Other 2154152294159
18;-056-Total $ 236367 , 682519 $ 993962 , 373434 S 1, 209-149 , HH8-392 $ 512601 , 562-885 $ 2-3 , 861081 , 727230
Due After One Year Fixed Rate Variable Rate (Dollars in thousands) Commercial & Agriculture $ 46296 , 885-257 $ 56-72 ,
662-177 Commercial Real Estate: Owner Occupied $5-80 , 663-285-020 270 , 576-347 Non- Owner Occupied 367280 , 68+784
657 836 . 654-959 Residential Real Estate +63-154 | 4444914957 599 , 247-570 Real Estate Construction 68-69 , 6751414262
177 , 738390 Farm Real Estate 6-5 , 58949242 16 , 897010 Lcase financing receivables 4543 , 242-573 — Consumer and




Other44-11 , 954-243 Total $ 853-741 , 843211 $ 1, 7972 , 232-500 The preceding maturity information is based on contract
terms at December 31, 2023-2024 and does not include any possible “ rollover  at maturity date. In the normal course of
business, Civista considers and acts on the borrowers’ requests for renewal of loans at maturity. Evaluation of such requests
includes a review of the borrower’ s credit history, the collateral securing the loan and the purpose for such request. Analysis of
the Allowance for Credit Losses The following table shows the daily average loan balances and changes in the allowance for
credit losses for the years indicated. (Dollars in thousands) Total loans outstanding $ 3, 081,230 $ 2, 861, 727 $ 2, 648, 281 $2;
B8F258-Allowance for credit losses at year end 39, 669 37, 160 28, 511 26;644+1.0oans accounted for on a nonaccrual basis 30,
950 12, 467 6, 507 3673-Allowance for credit losses to total loans outstanding 1. 29 % 1. 30 % 1. 08 % +28%Nonaccrual
loans to total loans outstanding 1. 00 % 0. 44 % 0. 25 %-8-—48-% Allowance for credit losses to nonaccrual loans 128. 17 % 298.
07 % 438. 16 %42532-% Average loans outstanding: Commercial & Agriculture 310, 770 276, 438 236, 315 338346
Commercial Real Estate — Owner Occupied 374, 965 372, 214 322, 132 27877+ Commercial Real Estate — Non- Owner
Occupied 1, 198,569 1, 086, 895 896, 562 #55:-5F8-Real Estate Mortgage 721, 379 588, 739 511, 973 433;354+-Real Estate
Construction 286, 264 254, 429 179, 183 36,795 Farm Real Estate 24, 279 24, 250 24, 388 28968 case financing
receivables 53, 392 44, 014 8, 382 —Consumer and Other 15, 294 10, 651 20, 147 44:-542-1.oan participations sold, reflected
as secured borrowings — 65, 167 87, 846 +06;250-Total average loans outstanding 2, 984, 912 2, 722, 797 2, 286, 928 2,42%;
+57Net charge- offs (recoveries): Commercial & Agriculture 1, 942 1, 122 (2 3356-) Commercial Real Estate — Owner
Occupied — (15) (42 3HF) Commercial Real Estate — Non- Owner Occupied (46) (74) 395)Real Estate Mortgage ( 114) (
116) (66 ¥82-) Real Estate Construction ( 12) ( 37) (4 X34) Farm Real Estate — — (6 342) Lease financing receivables — —
Consumer and Other 36)-Total net charge- offs (recoveries) 3, 376 (118 3H#83-) Ratio of net charge- offs (recoveries) during
the year to average loans outstanding: Commercial & Agriculture 0. 62 % 0. 41 % (0. 00 3%6-—64-) % Commercial Real Estate
— Owner Occupied — (0. 00) % (0. 01 3¥%€6-68-) % Commercial Real Estate — Non- Owner Occupied €0. 05 % (0. 00) % (0.
01 3%€0-05-) % Real Estate Mortgage (0. 02) % (0. 02) % (0. 01 ¥%66-04-) % Real Estate Construction (0. 00) % (0. 01 3%
€0-00-) % (0. 00) % Farm Real Estate — — (0. 02 3%0-64-) % Lease financing receivables 1. 61 % — —0. 27 % Consumer
and Other 0. 29 % 0. 11 % 0. 06 % €8-641%-Total net charge- offs ( recoveries feharge—offs-) 0. 11 % 0. 04 % (0. 01 3246
64-) % The amount of net charge- offs fluctuates from year to year due to factors relating to the condition of the general
economy, decline in market values of collateral and deterioration of specific businesses. The determination of the balance of the
allowance for credit losses is based on the CECL methodology and utilizes a lifetime ““ expected credit loss ” measurement
objective for the recognition of credit losses for loans, held- to- maturity securities and other receivables at the time the financial
asset is originated or acquired. The expected credit losses are adjusted each period for changes in expected lifetime credit losses.
The methodology replaces the multiple existing impairment methods under prior GAAP, which generally require that a loss be
incurred before it is recognized. In management’ s judgment, the CECL methodology produces a result that is adequate to
provide for future probable credit losses. Allocation of Allowance for Eean-Credit Losses The following tables allocate the
allowance for deancredit losses at December 31 , 2024, 2023, and 2022, to cach loan category. The allowance has been
allocated according to the amount deemed to be reasonably necessary to provide for expected lifetime credit losses —within the
following categories of loans at the dates indicated. Allowance Percentageof loans tototal loans Allowance Percentageof loans
tototal loans (Dollars in thousands) Commercial & Agriculture $ 6,586 10. 8 % $ 7, 884-587 10. 6 %-$3;-6H4148-9-%
Commercial Real Estate — Owner Occupied 4, 686-327 12. 1 % 4, 723 13. 2 % 4;565344—-5-Commercial Real Estate — Non-
Owner Occupied 11, 788404 39. 8 % 12, 056 40. 6 % +4;,43840-0-Recal Estate Mortgage 11, 866 24. 8 % 8, 489 23. 1 % 3;
H4524-FReal Estate Construction 3, 708 9.9 % 3, 388 9. 1 % 252939-6-Farm Real Estate 0. 7 % 0. 9 % +-90-Lcase financing
receivables 1,361 1.5 % 1 . 9 % +-5-Consumer and Other 0. 4 % 0. 6 % ©6—8-Unallocated — — — $ 3739 , 466-669 100. 0
% $ 2837 , 5+-160 100. 0 % Allowance Percentageof loans tototal loans (Dollars in thousands) Commercial & Agriculture $ 25
660423, 011 10. 9 % Commercial Real Estate — Owner Occupied 4, 464-565 14. 9-5 % Commercial Real Estate — Non-
Owner Occupied 14, 43-138 40 58604+ 5-0 % Real Estate Mortgage 23 , 597145 21. 57 % Real Estate Construction +2 ,
293 8+6-7-9 . 6 % Farm Real Estate 1. 40 % Lease financing receivables 1. 5 % Consumer and Other 0. 5-8 % Unallocated
— $2628 . 641511 100. 0 % Civista measures the adequacy of the allowance for fean-credit losses by using the CECL
methodology and utilizes a lifetime * expected credit loss ” measurement objective for the recognition of credit losses for loans,
held- to- maturity securities and other receivables at the time the financial asset is originated or acquired. The allowance for
credit losses to total loans inereased-decreased sllghtly from L. -1—2—%—&1—292%&0—1—30 % in 2023 —'Phe—uﬁa-l-}eea-ted-reseﬁfe-ef
Gw-tsta—deefeased-to -$—1-9—1 29 % in %92—3—2024 Ty A —Ma tele h

ese mstent tht tey-gutdelines-. Securities avallable for
sale 1ncrea§ed by $ 2—29 -849—795 or 9—4 5—8 %, from -$—6-l§—492—&t—]3eeeﬁrber—3—l—292—2—te—$ 618 272 at December 31, 2023 to
$ 648, 067 at December 31, 2024 . U. S. Treasury securities and obligations of U. S. government agencies increased $ 6;-629—
29,729 , or +43 . +9 % from $-6+-029-atDeeember3+2022te-$ 67, 658 at December 31, 2023 to $ 97, 387 at December 31,
2024. Mortgage- backed securities increased $ 13, 546, or 6. 4 %, from $ 212, 015 at December 31, 2023 to $ 225, 561 at
December 31, 2024 . Obligations of states and political subdivisions available for salc inereasedby-$2435Hrom2022-te
2023 -Mortgage—baeked-seeurities-decreased by § 25-13 , 480 from HO-tetotal-$-242,-015-at Deeember3+-2023 to 2024 . The
Company continues to utilize letters of credit from the Federal Home Loan Bank (" FHLB " ) to replace maturing securities
that were pledged for public entities. As of December 31, 2023-2024 , the Company was in compliance with all applicable
pledging requirements. Mortgage- backed securities totaled $ 242225 , 845-561 at December 31, 2023-2024 and none were
considered unusual or ““ high risk ” securities as defined by regulatory authorities. Of this total, $ 246-192 , 488-035 consisted of
pass- through securities issued by the Federal National Mortgage Association (“ FNMA ”), Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation (“ FHLMC ”), and Government National Mortgage Association (“ GNMA ”), and the remaining $ 433 , 997526 of
these securities were collateralized by mortgage- backed securities issued or guaranteed by FNMA, FHLMC, or GNMA. The



average interest rate of the mortgage- backed securities portfolio at December 31, 2023-2024 was 2-3 . 56-08 %. The average
maturity at December 31, 2022-2024 was approximately 14. 8 years. Securities available for sale had a fair value at December
31,2623-2024 of $ 618-648 , 272-067 . This fair value includes unrealized gains of approximately $ 882 3;-659-and unrealized
losses of approximately $ 57-62 , 679-873 . Net unrealized losses totaled $ 54-61 , 626-e1-991 at December 31, 2623-2024
compared to net unrealized losses of § 66-54 , 949-e1-620 at December 31, 2622-2023 . The change in unrealized gains-losses is
primarily due to changes in market interest rates. Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements provides additional
information on unrealized gains and losses. The following table sets forth the maturities of securities at December 31, 2023
2024 and the weighted average yields of such debt securities. Maturities are reported based on stated maturities and do not
reflect principal prepayment assumptions. Within one year After onebut within five years After five butwithin ten years After
ten years Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield (Dollars in thousands) Available for Sale (2) U. S.
Treasury securities and obligations of U. S. government agencies $ +8-38 , 865-567 3. 56-86 % S 38-46 , 397747 1. +6-77 % $ 3
, 413 3 . 5+69 % $ +6-8 , 425-6-660 6 . 65-60 °- Obligations of states and political subdivisions (1) 481 , 566-210 4. 86 32, 387
2 36 38, 687 3. 9843441 252 , 643-835 3. 14 +8485424+2-954-66-Mortgage- backed securities in government sponsored
entities 5 6-9320-, 644-616 2. 97 16, 762 3. 24 4, 903 3. 25 198, 280 3. 06 Total $ 45,393 3. 78 % $ 95 . 164896 2. 22 % $
47 483-, 003 6442-54-Fotal-$-37-068-3. 76-41 % $ +93-459 , 8542-775 3 . 17 13-%$1931H62-939%4-51495-634241+% (1)
Weighted average yields on nontaxable obligations have been computed based on actual yields stated on the security. (2) The
weighted average yield has been computed using the historical amortized cost for available- for- sale securities. Premises and
equipment, net of accumulated depreciation, decreased $ 79 , 249-603 from December 31, 20222023 to December 31, 2023
2024 . The decrease is the result of depreciation of $ 9, 545 and net disposals exceeding new purchases ef$3;248;-offsetby
depreetationrof-b 58 +6:-760- Goodwill remained unchanged éeereased—by—$—1—7§—trom $—1—2§—69§—at—December 31, 2—(-)2—2—2023
to $425;:520-at-December 31, 2023-2024 at $ 125, 520 —Fh 1 Fren Easle . e
aequisttionof VEG-in-Oetober2022-. Other intangible assets decrea%ed $ 1 25—1—625 trom year- end 2—92—2—2023 The decrease
includes $ 1, 586-484 of amertization on core deposit intangibles e-ffset—by—&n—and a inerease-decrease of $ 329-141 of
mortgage servicing rights. Swap assets decreased $ 4-7 , 898-173 from December 31, 2622-2023 to December 31, 2623-2024 .
The decrease is primarily the result of deereases-$ 6, 330 in cash collateral posted by counterparties at December 31, 2024
that is netted against the fair value of the swap assets— asset as-eempared-to-Deeember3+-2622-. Bank owned life insurance (
" BOLI" )increased $ #1 , 850-448 from December 31, 20222023 to December 31, 2623-2024 —An-additional- $7FofBOH
was-purehased-in-Deeember2623-. The femﬂ-rntng—drfterence is the result of increases in the cash surrender value of the
underlying insurance policies —Deferred-taxes-deereased-$-92-fromDeecember31;2622-partially offset by death benefits on
life insurance policies held on to-two former employees Peeember3+2623- Year- end deposit balances totaled $ 3,211, 870
in 2024 compared to $ 2, 985, 028 in 2023 eompared-to-$-2-619;984412022-, an increase of $ 365226 , 044-842 , or43-7 . 9-6
%. This increase in deposits at December 31, 2623-2024 compared to December 3 1, 2622-2023 included increases in savings
and money market accounts of $ 289, 172, or 33. 5 %, and certificate of deposit accounts of $ 585-44 , 46+-085 ., or 244-5. 1
%, partially offset by decreases in noninterest bearing demand depo%lte of $424-76 , 634—605 or -1-3—9 9% -in—and interest
bearing demand accounts of $ #8-29 , 866 430;-or +4-6 . 6 9-%4in-say i ae of-5
andHn-individual retirement-aceounts-of-$3;-933-0r-8-5-%. Average depo%lt balance% tor 2024 were $ 3, 086 961 compared to
$ 2, 852, 037 for 2023 swere-$-2,-868,823-compared-to-$-2-61+4423For 2022~ an increase of 9-8 . 72 %. Noninterest bearing
deposits averaged $ 934701 , 744397 for 2024, compared to $ 917, 005 for 2023, eempared-te-$-937-890-for 2022, -decreasing
$3-215 , +49-608 , or 6-23 . 3-5 % , which is primarily due to the closure of our former tax refund processing program .
Savings, NOW, and MMDA accounts averaged $ 1, 000, 865 for 2024 compared to $ 855, 946 for 2023 eempared-to-$1+, 423;
134-for 2622 deereasing-increasing $ 567144 , +88-919 , or 35-16 . 9 % , primarily due to deposits associated with the Ohio
Home Buyers Program . Average certificates of deposit deefeased-lncreased $ 284381 , 549-033 to total an average balance of
$ 534959 , 947276 for 2023-2024 . The average daily amount of deposits (all in dome@tlc offices) and average rates paid on
such deposits is summarized for the years indicated. Averagebalance Averagerate paid Averagebalance Averagerate paid
(Dollars in thousands) Noninterest- bearing demand deposits $ 701,397 N / A $ 900, 124 N / A $937,-890-N-+A-Interest-
bearing demand deposits 425, 423 0. 67 % 497, 512 8-03-%544;35+0. 03 % Savings, including Money Market deposit
accounts 1, 000, 865 1. 90 % 858, 551 1 —45%878;783-6-. 15 % Certificates of deposit, including HRA-IRAs +s-959, 276 4. 58
% 578,032 4.12%253-$ 3, 086, 961 399-6-959%5 2, 834, 219 $2:-64+4;423-Uninsured deposits at December 31, 2024 and
2023 and2022-were $ 431, 713 and $ 499, 429 and-$-563-092-, respectively. Uninsured deposits as of December 31, 2024 and
2023 and2022-are based on estimates and include portions of FDIC- insured deposit accounts that exceed the insurance limit of
$ 250, 000 per separately insured depositor. Maturities of certificates of deposits and individual retirement accounts (IRAs) of
more than $ 250, 000 outstanding at December 31, 2023-2024 are summarized as follows. Certificatesof Deposits
IndividualRetirementAccounts Total (Dollars in thousands) 3 months or less $ 26-42 , 476-338 $ 1 $26-, 476-064 $ 43, 402 Over
3 through 6 months 25, 864371 1, 686-309 26, 94+-680 Over 6 through 12 months 36-26 , H73+420 2 , 546-32-262 28 , 257
682 Over 12 months 26, 414 27, 104 $ 12120, +85-543 $ 5, 325 $ +2-125 , 868 Other borrowings 499—$—95—2—33$—2—92§—$—9-8—
H-S—F—H-I:B—adﬁ‘aﬂees—decrea%ed $ 3, 56—566 —8-86—tr0m December 31, %92—2—2023 to December 31 2—92—3—2024 —Sheﬁ-—tefm—F-I-H:B

-Beeeﬂabeﬁ}-l—z-()%}— Other borrowrngi decreased due to lower borrowrngq at the CLF dlvmon Crvr%t"l no longer oﬁere
repurchase agreements in the form of sweep accounts to commercial checking account customers, as of July 2023. These
repurchase agreements totaled $ 0 at December 31, 2024 compared to $ 0 at December 31, 2023 and eompared-to-$ 25, 143 at
December 31, 2022. U. S. Treasury securities and obligations ot U. S. government agenme% maintained under Civista’ s control

were pledged as collateral for the repurchase agreements. Ad




- Nete12-to-the Consolidated Finanetal-Statements—Swap liabilitics decreased $ 843 4;-698-from December 31, 2022-2023 to
December 31, 2823-2024 . The decrease is primarily the result of decreases in the fair value of swap liabilities as compared to
December 31, 20222023 . Total sharcholders’ equity increased $ 3%5466-- 16, 500 , or -4 . 34 %, during 2623-2024 to $ 372
388 ,062-502 . Sharcholders' equity increased due to net income of $ 4231 , 964-683 | partially offset by $ 9-10 , 599-063 of
dividends on common shares and a—me—&me—@EGI:adepﬁee—adwﬁment—e-% 5-193-164 of repurchases of common shares as
treasury shares . Additionally, $ 984-871 was recognized as stock- based compensation in 2823-2024 in connection with the
grant of restricted common shares. Accumulated other comprehensive inreeme-loss tnereased-decreased S 9-5 , 747827 due to
ana -rﬁefease—decrease in the fair value of securities avallable for %ale net of tax aﬁd—a—$—7-68—merease—m—t-he—€empaﬂy’—s

b 6 P e 3 628-. For further explanation of these items, see
Note 1 Note 15 and Note 16 to the Consohdated F 1nanc1a1 Statement% The Company paid $ 0. 64 per common share in
leldends in 2024 compared to $ 0. 61 per common share in dividends in 2023 eompared-to-$-0-—-56-pereommonsharein
dividends2622- Total outstanding common shares at December 31, 2623-2024 were 15, 695-487 ., 424-667 , which deereased
increased from 15, 728-695 , 234-424 common shares outstanding at December 31, 26222023 . Common shares outstanding
was impacted by the Company’ s repurchase of 98-8 , 423-956 common shares during 2623-2024 at an average repurchase price
of $ 18. 8431 . The Company repurchased 84-8 , 238-262 common shares pursuant to g-its stock repurchase program announced
on May 8, 2023, pursuant to which the Company is authorized to repurchase a maximum aggregate value of $ 13, 500 of the
Company’ s common shares until May 2, 2024. An additional 694 6;+93-common shares were surrendered by officers to the
Company to pay taxes upon vesting of restricted shares and 1, 740-518 restricted common shares previously issued to officers
were forfeited and 250, 148 restricted shares issued as contingent consideration in the VFG acquisition were forfeited, as
the measurement period expired and required lease thresholds were not met . The repurchase of common shares was offset
by the grant of 47442 , 536-239 restricted common shares to certain officers in 2024 under the Company’ s 2014 Incentive Plan.
In addition, +10 , 847626 common shares were issued to Civista directors in 2823-2024 as a retainer payment for service on the
Civista Board of Directors. The operating results of the Company are affected by general economic conditions, the monetary and
fiscal policies of federal agencies and the regulatory policies of agencies that regulate financial institutions. The Company’ s
cost of funds is influenced by interest rates on competing investments and general market rates of interest. Lending activities are
influenced by the demand for real estate loans and other types of loans, which in turn is affected by the interest rates at which
such loans are made, general economic conditions and the availability of funds for lending activities. The Company’ s net
income primarily depends on its net interest income, which is the difference between the interest income earned on interest-
earning assets, such as loans and securities, and interest expense incurred on interest- bearing liabilities, such as deposits and
borrowings. The level of net interest income is dependent on the interest rate environment and the volume and composition of
interest- earning assets and interest- bearing liabilities. Net income is also affected by provisions for credit losses, service
charges, gains on the sale of assets, other non- interest income, noninterest expense and income taxes. Comparison of Results of
Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2823-2024 and December 31, 2022-2023 Net Income The Company’ s net
income for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 was $ 31, 683, compared to $ 42, 964 eempared-te-$39,427-for the year
ended December 31, 2622-2023 . The change in net income was the result of the items discussed in the following sections. Net
Interest Income Net interest income for 2024 was $ 116, 710, a decrease of $ 8, 786, or 7. 0 %, from 2023 was-$125:496an
terease-of $15;2926r 13- 9-%frem2022- From 2022462023 to 2024 , average interest- carning assets increased $ 263 H=
6%, 582, which increased interest income inereased-by $ 56-23 , 579-961 , while average and-interest-expense-on-interest-
bearing liabilities increased $ 44435 | 287723, which increased interest expense by $ 32, 747 . The Company continually
examines its rate structure to ensure that its interest rates are competitive and reflective of the current rate environment in which
it competes. Total interest income increased $ 56-23 , 579-961 to $ +82-206 , 734-695 for the year ended December 31, 2023
2024 , which is-was attributable to an increase of § 52-22 , 762-823 in interest and fees on loans. This change was the result of
an increase in the average balance of loans, accompanied by a higher yield on the portfolio. The average balance of loans
increased by $ 523262 , 5115, 0r 23-9 . 8-6 %, to $ 2, 722-984 . 797912 for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 | as
compared to $ 2, $99-722 . 882-797 for the year ended December 31, 2022-2023 . The loan yield increased to 6. 15 % for 2024,
from 5. 90 % ferin 2023 —frefn—4—69%—m—292% Interest on taxable securities increased $ 921 25-595-to § H-12 , H8-639 for
the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 , compared to $ 9-11 , 423-718 for the same period in 2822-2023 . The average balance
of taxable securities irereased-decreased $ 22-6 , 372-717 to $ 363-357 , 972-255 for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 ,
as compared to $ 344363 , 666-972 for the year ended December 31, 20222023 . The yield on taxable securities increased 39
30 basis points to 3. 18 % for 2024, compared to 2. 88 % for 2023 —eempared—te%—@%—fer—Z-@Q% Interest on tax- exempt
securities increased $ 191 15423-t0 $ 9, 282473 for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 , compared to $ 79 , 859-282 for
the same period in 2822-2023 . The average balance of tax- exempt securities 1nerea§ed $ 489 , 697155 to $ 282291 , 678-833
for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 as compared to $ 263-282 , 98+-678 for the year ended December 31, 2022-2023 .
The yield on tax- exempt securities increased 23-6 basis points to 3. 85 % for 2024 compared to 3. 79 % for 2023 ;-eompared-to
3-56%Ffer2022- Total interest expense increased $ 4432, 287747, or 258-57 . 8-2 %, to $ 53-89 , 763-985 for the year ended
December 31, 2623-2024 , compared with-to § 4-57 , 732238 for the same period in 2622-2023 . The increase in interest
expense can be attributed to an increase in the average rate paid, accompanied by an increase in the average balance of interest-
bearing liabilities. For the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , the average balance of interest- bearing liabilities increased $
398435 ,963-723 to $ 2, 485-841 , 655378 , as compared to $ 2, 886405 | F52-655 for the year ended December 31, 2022-2023
. Interest incurred on deposits increased by $ 29-32 , 945-046 to $ 33-65 , #55-801 for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 ,
compared to $ 3-33 , 840-755 for the same period in 2822-2023 . The increase in deposit expense was due to a increase in the
average rate paid, as the average rate paid on demand and savings accounts increased from 0. +5-57 % in 2622-2023 to 1. +5-53
% in 2023-2024 and the average rate paid on time deposits increased from 6-4 . 95-51 % in 2622-2023 to 4. +25-58 % in 2623




2024 , which was coupled with an increase in the average balance of interest- bearing deposits of $ 258-450 , 499-532 for the
year ended December 31, 2023-2024 as compared to the same period in 2022-2023 . Interest expense incurred on FHLB
advances and subordinated debentures increased 93-20 . 8-7 % from 2822-2023 . The increase was due to an increase in the
average balance of short- term FHLB balances and iubordlnated debenture% to $ 2—89—341 887692 and $ 66—104 8—7’5—017
respectively, accompanied by an increase in rates —Fhe-a e z
ended-BDeeember3+-2623-. Refer to © Distribution of A@%et% Llablhtle% and Shareholders Equlty, lntereit Rates and Intele%t
Differential ” and “ Changes in Interest Income and Interest Expense Resulting from Changes in Volume and Changes in Rate
on pages 43 through 45-44 for further analysis of the impact of changes in interest- bearing assets and liabilities on the
Company’ s net interest income. Provision and Allowance for Credit Losses The Company’ s policy is to maintain the
allowance for credit losses at a level sufficient to provide for probable future losses #eurred-in the current portfolio.
Management believes the analysis of the allowance for credit losses supported a reserve of $ 3739 , +66-669 at December 31,
2623-2024 . The Company provides for credit losses through regular provisions to the allowance for credit losses as necessary.
The amount of the provision is affected by loan charge- offs, recoveries and changes in specific and general allocations required
for the allowance for credit losses. A number of factors impact the provisions for credit losses, such as the level of higher risk
loans in the portfolio, changes in practices related to loans, changes in collateral values and other factors. We continue to
actively manage this process and have provided to maintain the reserve at a level that assures adequate coverage ratios.
Provisions for credit losses totaled $ 5,364 in 2024, $ 4, 435 in 2023 ;and $ 1, 752 in 2022 and-$-836-+1202+ The Company’
s provision for credit losses increased $ 929 2—68—3—dur1ng %92—3—2024 as compared to %922—2023 prlmarlly to Support st-reﬁg
organic loan growth in the portfolio —J#-s q A 6
grarterof2023-. Efforts are continually made to analyze each segment of the loan porttoho and quantlfy risk to assure that
reserves are appropriate for each segment and the overall portfolio. Management specifically evaluates loans that are impatred
indivdually evaluated , which includes restructured loans, to estimate potential loss. This analysis includes a review of the loss
migration calculation for all loan categories as well as fluctuations and trends in various risk factors that have occurred within
the portfolios’ economic life cycle. The analysis also includes assessment of qualitative factors such as credit trends,
unemployment trends, vacancy trends and loan growth. The composition and overall level of the loan portfolio and charge- off
activity are also factors used to determine the amount of the allowance for tean-credit losses. Management analyzes each
impaired-individually evaluated commercial and commercial real estate loan relationship with a balance of $ 350 or larger, on
an individual basis and when it is in nonaccrual status or when an analysis of the borrower’ s operating results and financial
condition indicates that underlying cash flows are not adequate to meet its debt service requirements. Loans held for sale and
feases-are excluded from consideration as tmpaired-individually evaluated . Loans are generally moved to nonaccrual status
when 90 days or more past due. Impatred-Individually evaluated loans or portions thereof are charged- off when deemed
uncollectible. Noninterest Income Noninterest income increased $ 585 8,087, or 271 . 8-6 %, to $ 37, +64-748 for the year
ended December 31, 2024, from $ 37, 163 for the comparable 2023 from-$29,-076-for-the-eomparable 2022-period. The

increase was primarily due to increases in net gain on sale of loans and leases of $ 1, 530, lcase revenue and residual income
of $ 51, 316 285;serviee-ehargesof-$-5142-, bank owned life insurance of $ 1 428-and-other-operating-itemsof-$2- 5608-093
and wealth management fees of $ 752, Whieh-which were partially offset by decreases in service charges net-gain-oneguity
seeurittes-of $ 439-1 , 092 and the discontinuation net-gain-en-sate-of the tax refund processing center toans-anddeases-of$
489~ Net gain on sale of loans and leases deereased-increased by $ 489-1, 530 for 2023-2024 . primarily as a result of a&-an
deerease-increase in volume of loans sold. During the twelve- months ended December 31, 2024, 530 loans were sold, totaling
$ 123 670. Durlng the twelve- months ended December 31, 2023, 349 loans were sold, totalmg $ 103 036. Bﬂﬂﬁg—t-he

serv-ie'tﬁg—rights-aﬂd—fee—mcome from t-heﬂeqmsmeﬁ—ef—leasmg operatlons at C LF Bank owned hfe insurance 1ncreased by $

1, 093, primarily due to the receipt of death benefits on life insurance policies on two former employees in the amount of
$ 699. Service charges decreased by $ 1, 092 as the Company eliminated its representment fee and reduced overdraft
charges . Noninterest Expense Noninterest expense increased $ 474, H8-909 , or 484 . 9-6 %, to $ 487112 , 6H4-520 for the

year ended December 31, 2024, from $ 107, 611 for the comparable 2023 from-$-90,493-for-the-eomparable 2022-period.
The increase was primarily due to increases in compensation expense of $ 73 , 236-530 , FDIC assessments net-oeeupaney

expense-of § 694-994 equfpmeﬂt—expense—professmnal services of $ 827 and 6—9—15—a-mortﬁa-t-reﬁ—expeﬁse—ef—$—28€v—<oﬂware

expense of $ 734777 ,
decreases in equipment éata—proeessmg—expeme of $ 546—1 532 professiona ees 6;-ard-ma e
46+ The increase in compensation expense was due to increased payroll -and payloll taxes, both related to merlt increases,
and an increase in employee insurance and-eommissions-andineentives- The average full time equivalent (" FTE ")

employeei were-was 531 at December 31, 2024 relatlvely ﬂat from 2023 —aﬁ—merease-e%G—FqlEs—ever%GQ%dﬂe—te-a—&ﬂ-l—ye&r
’ : i ~ Software fPhe—rnerease—rn-net-

Were partlally offset by

eeeupaﬂey—expenie Was A teding-d

-m—eqtrrprﬁeﬂt—e*peﬁse—was—due toa general increase in eem-pu-teielegacy software malntenance contracts as well as new
software contracts aimed at improving our ability to detect , printer-deter , effiec-andseeurityequipment-eosts-and-an-and
inerease-irequipment-depreetatiorrmitigate fraud and fraud related losses to-the-aeguisittorrof VEG-+-Oetober2022-. The

increase 1n FDIC assessments was attrlbutable to higher as%eiqment multlpherq charged to Cltha The i increase in amortization




tt tsttions t se-irprofessional services was malnly
due to ut111z1ng consultants éeefeases—rn—lega-l-aﬁd-&ud-rt—fees—as wel-l—we transnloned in our new finance team due to several
tenured employee departures in 2024. The decrease in equipment expense was related to operating lease contracts, as our
CLF division continues to originate fewer operating leases coupled with purchasing residual value insurance on those
operatlng leases with a éeefease—rn-mafket-rng—goal of eventually el1mmat1ng depreciation cxpensec due-related to operating
leases g ReW-aeq d v year-. Income Tax Expense Income tax expense
was $ 4, 891 in 2024 compared to $ 7 649 in 2023 eeﬁapafed—te—$—7—698—rn%92—2— Income tax expense as a percentage of pre-
tax income was 13. 4 % in 2024 compared to 15. | % in 2023 eemparedto+6-—2%11r2622- A lower federal effective tax rate
than the statutory rate of 21 % in 2024 and 2023 ard-2022-is primarily due to tax- exempt interest income from state and
municipal investments, municipal loans, income from BOLI and low income housing tax credits. Comparison of Results of
Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 26222023 and December 31, 2624-2022 A discussion regarding our financial
condition and results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2022-2023 and year- to- year comparisons between 2023
and 2022 and-2024+-, which are not included in this Annual Report on Form 10- K, can be found under" Management' s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in Part II, Item 7 of the Company' s Annual Report
on Form 10- K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2622-2023 and are incorporated by reference herein. The following table
sets forth, for the periods indicated, a summary of the changes in interest income and interest expense resulting from changes in
volume and changes in rate (Amounts in thousands): Increase (decrease) due to: Volume (1) Rate (1) Net 2822-2024 compared
to 20242023 Interest income:Loans $ 7250-$7924+%-15, 474926 $ 6,897 $ 22,823 Taxable securities 3;4573;650 Nentaxable
seenrities2;295-( 686-308 ) 1, 669-229 Nontaxable securities [nterest- bearing deposits in other banks ( 393-45 ) +5664-Total
interest income $ 42-15 , 669-613 $ 8, 492-348 $ 24-23 , +0+-961 I[nterest expense:Savings and interest- bearing demand
accounts $ § 13,751 $ 14,164 Certificates of deposit 17,450 17,882 428)3-430)3(558)-Short- term Federal Home Loan Bank
advances 2-3 , 258 3 566—2-, 566-958 Long- term Federal Home Loan Bank advances ( $56-23 ) ( 941 ) ( 653-24 ) Securities
sold under repurchase agreements (3-4 ) — ( 4 93-32-) Federal funds purchased —(5) (1) (6) Other borrowings ( 288-5,033 )
22231, 925728 (3,305) Subordinated debentures 2;343-2:826-Total interest expense $3-16 , 998-063 $ 2-16 , 324-684 $ 6-32
322-747 Net interest income $ (450) $ ( 8, 6H-336) $ 6-(8 , 786) 168-$14-2023 compared to 2022 Interest income: Loans $ 22,
820 $ 29, 882 $ 52, 702 Taxable securities 1, 106 1, 489 2, 595 Nontaxable securities 1, 423 Interest- bearing deposits in other
banks (1, 651) 1, 510 (141) Total interest income $ 23, 171 $ 33, 408 $ 56, 579 Interest expense: Savings and interest- bearing
demand accounts $ (70) $ 6, 317 $ 6, 247 Certificates of deposit 6, 014 17, 654 23, 668 Short- term Federal Home Loan Bank
advances 10, 767 1, 160 11, 927 Long- term Federal Home Loan Bank advances (710) (444) Securities sold under repurchase
agreements (6) (1) (7) Federal funds purchased — — — Other borrowings 1, 063 1, 068 Subordinated debentures (978) (194)
(1, 172) Total interest expense $ 15, 022 $ 26, 265 $ 41, 287 Net interest income $ 8, 149 $ 7, 143 $ 15, 292 2022 compared to
2021 Interest income:...... 6, 168 $ 14, 779 (1) The change in interest income and interest expense due to changes in both volume
and rate, which cannot be segregated, has been allocated proportionately to the change due to volume and the change due to rate.
The following table sets forth, for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-2021-, the distribution of assets,
including interest amounts and average rates of major categories of interest- earning assets and noninterest- earning assets
(Amounts in thousands): Assets Averagebalance Interest Yield / rate Averagebalance Interest Yield / rate Averagebalance
Interest Yield / rate Interest- earning assets: Loans (1) (2) (3) (5) $ 2, 984,912 $ 183,578 6. 15 % $ 2, 722, 797 $ 160, 755 5.
90 % $ 2,286,928 $ 108, 053 4. 72 %-$212F457-$92-882-437-% Taxable securities (4) 357, 255 12, 639 3. 18 % 363, 972
11,718 2. 88 % 341,600 9, 123 2. 49 % 232;-843-5;-4932-4+%Non- taxable securities (4) (5) 291, 833 9, 473 3. 85 % 282,
678 9,2823.79 % 263 981 7, 859 3. 56 % 2HFHF86-6;250-3-96% Interest- bearing deposits in other banks 20, 580 1, 005 4.
87 % 21,551 4. 54 % 146, 849 1, 120 0. 76 %434F-593-043-% Total interest earning assets 3, 654, 580 206, 695 5. 62 % 3,
390, 998 182, 734 5. 35 % 3, 039, 358 126, 155 4. 16 %2,925;3201405,-054-3-68% Noninterest- earning assets: Cash and due
from financial institutions 34, 494 39, 219 84, 777 35;484-Premises and equipment, net 52, 230 58, 456 34, 577 22,647
Accrued interest receivable 13,349 11, 499 8, 650 8;-8+8-Intangible assets 134, 273 133, 626 96, 492 84;747-Other assets 57,
879 63, 152 50, 765 3F,3F8-Bank owned life insurance 62,349 54, 211 50, 076 46;435-[ ess allowance for fean-credit losses (
39, 498) (33, 814) (27, 721) 26;366)Total $ 3,969,656 $ 3, 717,347 $ 3, 336, 974 $3:433:554-(1) For purposes of these
computations, the daily average loan amounts outstandlng are net of unearned income and include loans held for sale. (2)
Included in loan interest income are loan fees of § 2, 952 in 2024, $ 2, 960 in 2023 ;-and $ 2, 024 in 2022 and-$-66n2021+
(3) Non- accrual loans are included in loan totals and do not have a material impact on the analysis presented. (4) Average
balance is computed using the carrying value of securities. The average yield has been computed using the historical amortized
cost average balance for available for sale securities. (5) Yield / Rate is calculated using the tax- equivalent adjustment of 21 %
for 2024, 2023 rand 2022 and2024-. Interest Rates and Interest Differential (Continued) The following table sets forth, for the
years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;and 2022 and2024-, the distribution of liabilities, including interest amounts and
average rates of major categories of interest- bearing liabilities and shareholders’ equity (Amounts in thousands): Liabilities
andSharcholders’ Equity Averagebalance Interest Yield / rate Averagebalance Interest Yield / rate Averagebalance Interest
Yield / rate Interest- bearing liabilities: Savings and interest- bearing demand accounts $ 1, 426, 288 $ 21, 853 1. 53 % $ 1, 356,
789 $7,6890.57%$ 1,423,134 $ 1,442 0. 01 % $3+Time deposits 959 , 345-276 43 , 948 4 220-$1,219-0- 69-58 %
Geﬁrﬁea-tes—e-f—depesrt—578 243 26, 066 4.51 9% 253,399 2,398 0. 95 9%265;2942;956+—14+ Short- term Federal Home

Loan Bank advances 341, 692 18, 451 5. 39 % 280, 887 14,493 5. 16 % 66, 875 2, 566 3. 84 % ———1Long- term Federal
Home Loan Bank advances 1,892 2.22 % 2, 909 2. 27 % 45,325 1. 13 % 94;-64++H3+63+24%Other borrowings 8, 076 9.

32 % 74,0254,058 5.48 % 91, 848 5, 243 5. 70 %+00;250-3-34+23—36-% Securities sold under repurchase agreements — —
—8,6850.05% 22,293 0. 05 %26,34650-09-9% Federal funds purchased 5. 11 % 5. 33 % 4. 38 % 6-3%-Subordinated



debentures 104, 017 4,931 4. 74 % 103, 873 4,849 4. 67 % 103, 741 3, 781 3. 64 % 36;7852-66% T otal interest- bearing
liabilities 2, 841, 378 89, 985 3. 17 % 2, 405, 655 57, 238 2. 38 % 2, 006, 752 15, 957 0. 79 %1+-83%-892-9-629-6-53-%
Noninterest- bearing liabilities: Demand deposits 701, 397 917, 005 937, 890 36%4-594-Other liabilities 49, 522 50, 963 76, 189
38750 , 868919 967, 968 1, 014, 079 946;459-Sharcholders’ equity 377, 359 343, 724 316, 143 349:-263-Total $ 3, 969, 656 $
3,717,347 $ 3, 336, 974 $3:433;-554-Net interest income and interest rate spread (1) $ 116, 710 2. 45 % $ 125,496 2.97 % $
110, 198 3. 37 %-$-95,4253-15% Net interest margin (2) 3. 21 % 3. 70 % 3. 65 %3-35% (1) Interest rate spread is calculated
by subtracting the rate on average interest- bearing liabilities from the yield on average interest- earning assets. (2) Net interest
margin is calculated by dividing tax- equivalent adjusted net interest income by average interest- earning assets. Liquidity and
Capital Resources Civista maintains a conservative liquidity position. All securities , with the exception of equity securities,
are classified as available for sale. At December 31, 2023-2024 , securities with maturities of one year or less totaled $ 23 , 652
227 , or 0. 4-5 % of the total securities portfolio. The available for sale portfolio helps to provide Civista with the ability to meet
its funding needs. The Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows contained in the Consolidated Financial Statements detail the
Company’ s cash flows from operating activities resulting from net earnings. Net cash provided by operating activities was $ 48,
246, $ 62, 698 yand $ 25, 183 ;and-$46;F6+for 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and2024-, respectively. The primary additions to cash
from operating activities are from net income, adjusted for amortization of intangible assets, amortization of securities net of
accretion, the provision for credit losses, depreciation and proceeds from sale of loans. The primary use of cash from operating
activities is from loans originated for sale. Net cash used for investing activities was $ 258, 801, $ 311, 784 ;-and $ 410, 364 5
and-$1306,496-n 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and202+-, respectively, principally reflecting our loan and investment security
activities. Deposits ane-, borrowings , and cash dividends paid to shareholders' comprised most of our financing activities,
which resulted in net cash provided of $ 213,304, $ 266, 131 ;-and $ 164, 303 ;and-$21+6:925-1n 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and
20624, respectively. Future loan demand of Civista can be funded by increases in deposit accounts, proceeds from payments on
existing loans, the maturity of securities and the sale of securities classified as available for sale. Additional sources of funds
may also come from borrowing in the Federal Funds market and / or borrowing from the FHLB. As of December 31, 2623-2024

Crvrsta had total credrt avallab111ty W1th the F HLB of $ 794-839 , 637034 , of which $ 364-370 , 792-133 was avallable

: : y . On a separate entity basis, CBI” s primary source of funds is

dividends pard by its subsrdrarres pr1marrly by Crvrsta Generally, subject to applicable minimum capital requirements, Civista
may declare and pay a dividend without the approval of the Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland (the *“ Federal Reserve Bank )
and the ODFI, provided the total dividends in a calendar year do not exceed the total of its profits for that year combined with its
retained profits for the two preceding years. At December 31, 2023-2024 , Civista was able to pay approximately $ 56-51 , 886
007 of dividends to CBI without obtaining regulatory approval. During 2623-2024 , Civista paid dividends totaling $ 28-20 , 166
300 to CBI. This represented approximately 65-57 percent of Civista’ s earnings for the year. The Company manages its
liquidity and capital through quarterly Asset / Liability Management Committee (" ALCO " ) meetings. The ALCO discusses
issues like those in the above paragraphs as well as others that may affect the future liquidity and capital position of the
Company. The ALCO also examines interest rate risk and the effect that changes in rates will have on the Company. For more
information about interest rate risk, please refer to “ Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
section below. Capital Adequacy Shareholders” equity totaled $ 388, 502 at December 31, 2024 compared to $ 372, 002 at

December 31, 2023 eompared-to-$334;-835-atPeeember 31,2622~ The increase in sharcholders’ equity resulted primarily from
net income of $42-31 ,964-683 , which was partially offset by dividends on common shares of $ 10, 063 and a $768net

tnerease-decrease m—fhe—@empafry—s—permen—h&bthty—ar}d—aﬁ—mefe&s*e—rn the falr value of securities avarlable for sale net of tax,

p p OSFAS Durmg the ﬁrst quarter of 2015 the
Company adopted the new BASEL lll regulatory caprtal framework as approved by the federal bankmg agencies. In addition to
the other required capital ratios, the BASEL III rules also require the Company to maintain minimum amounts and ratios of
Common Equity Tier 1 (“ CET1 ”) capital to risk- weighted assets (as these terms are defined in the BASEL III rules). Under
the BASEL III rules, the Company elected to opt out of mcludmg accumulated other comprehensrve income in regulatory
capltal A he 7 sttla miim stiidelinesas

Aeﬁen—Pfeﬁsmﬂs—lG—G—%rS—G%éé—%é—G%Common equrty for the CETl rrsk based capltal ratlo mcludes common stock
(plus related surplus) and retained earnings, plus limited amounts of minority interests in the form of common stock, less the
majority of certain regulatory deductions. Tier 1 capital includes common equity as defined for the CET1 risk- based capital
ratio, plus certain non- cumulative preferred stock and related surplus, cumulative preferred stock and related surplus and trust
preferred securities that have been grandfathered (but which are not permitted going forward), and limited amounts of minority
interests in the form of additional Tier 1 capital instruments, less certain deductions. Tier 2 capital, which can be included in the
total capital ratio, includes certain capital instruments (such as subordinated debt) and limited amounts of the allowance for
credit tean-andease-losses, subject to certain eligibility criteria, less applicable deductions. The deductions from CET1 capital
include goodwill and other intangibles, certain deferred tax assets, mortgage- servicing assets above certain levels, gains on sale
in connection with a securitization, investments in a banking organization’ s own capital instruments and investments in the
capital of unconsolidated financial institutions (above certain levels). Under applicable regulatory guidelines, capital is
compared to the relative risk related to the balance sheet. To derive the risk included in the balance sheet, one of several risk
weights is applied to different balance sheet and off- balance sheet assets, primarily based on the relative credit risk of the
counterparty. The capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about



components, risk weightings and other factors. The BASEL III regulatory capital rules and regulations also place restrictions on
the payment of capital distributions, including dividends, and certain discretionary bonus payments to executive officers if the
company does not hold a capital conservation buffer of at least 2. 5 percent composed of CET1 capital above its minimum risk-
based capital requirements, or if its eligible retained income is negative in that quarter and its capital conservation buffer ratio
was less than 2. 5 percent at the beginning of the quarter. Effects of Inflation The Company”’ s balance sheet is typical of
financial institutions and reflects a net positive monetary position whereby monetary assets exceed monetary liabilities.
Monetary assets and liabilities are those which can be converted to a fixed number of dollars and include cash assets, securities,
loans, money market instruments, deposits and borrowed funds. During periods of inflation, a net positive monetary position
may result in an overall decline in purchasing power of an entity. However, no clear evidence exists of a relationship between
the purchasing power of an entity’ s net positive monetary position and its future earnings. Moreover, the Company’ s ability to
preserve the purchasing power of its net positive monetary position will be partly influenced by the effectiveness of its asset /
liability management program. As part of the asset / liability management process, management reviews and monitors
information and projections on inflation as published by the Federal Reserve Board and other sources. This information speaks
to inflation as determined by its impact on consumer prices and also the correlation of inflation and interest rates. This
information is but one component in an asset / liability management process designed to limit the impact of inflation on the
Company. Management does not believe that the effect of inflation on its nonmonetary assets (primarily bank premises and
equipment) is material as such assets are not held for resale and significant disposals are not anticipated. Fair Value of Financial
Instruments The Company has disclosed the fair value of its financial instruments at December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2622-in
Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The fair value of loans at December 31, 2623-2024 was 94-96 . 9-0 % of the
carrying value compared to 96-94 . 5-9 % at December 31, 2622-2023 . The fair value of time deposits at December 31, 2623
2024 was 100. 8-4 % of the carrying value compared to +86-99 . 8-8 % at December 31, 2822-2023 . Changes in fair value were
primarily due to changes in the discount values used to measure fair value. Hem7A—Quantitative-and-Qualitative Diselosures
AboutMarketRisk-The Company’ s primary market risk exposure is interest- rate risk and, to a lesser extent, liquidity risk. All
of the Company’ s transactions are denominated in U. S. dollars with no specific foreign exchange exposure. Interest- rate risk
is the exposure of a banking organization’ s financial condition to adverse movements in interest rates. Accepting this risk can
be an important source of profitability and shareholder value. However, excessive levels of interest- rate risk can pose a
significant threat to the Company’ s earnings and capital base. Accordingly, effective risk management that maintains interest-
rate risk at prudent levels is essential to the Company’ s safety and soundness. Evaluating a financial institution’ s exposure to
changes in interest rates includes assessing both the adequacy of the management process used to control interest- rate risk and
the organization’ s quantitative level of exposure. When assessing the interest- rate risk management process, the Company
seeks to ensure that appropriate policies, procedures, management information systems and internal controls are in place to
maintain interest- rate risk at prudent levels with consistency and continuity. Evaluating the quantitative level of interest rate risk
exposure requires the Company to assess the existing and potential future effects of changes in interest rates on its consolidated
financial condition, including capital adequacy, earnings, liquidity and, where appropriate, asset quality. The Federal Reserve
Board, together with the OCC and FDIC, adopted a Joint Agency Policy Statement on interest- rate risk, effective June 26, 1996.
The policy statement provides guidance to examiners and bankers on sound practices for managing interest- rate risk, which will
form the basis for ongoing evaluation of the adequacy of interest- rate risk management at supervised institutions. The policy
statement also outlines fundamental elements of sound management that have been identified in prior Federal Reserve guidance
and discusses the importance of these elements in the context of managing interest- rate risk. Specifically, the guidance
emphasizes the need for active board of director and senior management oversight and a comprehensive risk- management
process that effectively identifies, measures, and controls interest- rate risk. Financial institutions derive their income primarily
from the excess of interest collected over interest paid. The rates of interest an institution earns on its assets and owes on its
liabilities generally are established contractually for a period of time. Since market interest rates change over time, an institution
is exposed to lower profit margins (or losses) if it cannot adapt to interest- rate changes. For example, assume that an institution’
s assets carry intermediate- or long- term fixed rates and that those assets were funded with short- term liabilities. If market
interest rates rise by the time the short- term liabilities must be refinanced, the increase in the institution’ s interest expense on its
liabilities may not be sufficiently offset if assets continue to earn at the long- term fixed rates. Accordingly, an institution’ s
profits could decrease on existing assets because the institution will have either lower net interest income or, possibly, net
interest expense. Similar risks exist when assets are subject to contractual interest- rate ceilings, or rate sensitive assets are
funded by longer- term, fixed- rate liabilities in a decreasing- rate environment. Several techniques may be used by an institution
to minimize interest- rate risk. One approach used by the Company is to periodically analyze its assets and liabilities and make
future financing and investment decisions based on payment streams, interest rates, contractual maturities, and estimated
sensitivity to actual or potential changes in market interest rates. Such activities fall under the broad definition of asset / liability
management. The Company’ s primary asset / liability management technique is the measurement of the Company’ s asset /
liability gap, that is, the difference between the cash flow amounts of interest sensitive assets and liabilities that will be
refinanced (or repriced) during a given period. For example, if the asset amount to be repriced exceeds the corresponding
liability amount for a certain day, month, year, or longer period, the institution is in an asset sensitive gap position. In this
situation, net interest income would increase if market interest rates rose or decrease if market interest rates fell. If, alternatively,
more liabilities than assets will reprice, the institution is in a liability sensitive position. Accordingly, net interest income would
decline when rates rose and increase when rates fell. Also, these examples assume that interest rate changes for assets and
liabilities are of the same magnitude, whereas actual interest rate changes generally differ in magnitude for assets and liabilities.
Several ways an institution can manage interest- rate risk include selling existing assets or repaying certain liabilities and
matching repricing periods for new assets and liabilities, for example, by shortening terms of new loans or securities. Financial



institutions are also subject to prepayment risk in falling rate environments. For example, mortgage loans and other financial
assets may be prepaid by a debtor so that the debtor may refinance its obligations at new, lower rates. The Company does not
have significant derivative financial instruments and does not intend to purchase a significant amount of such instruments in the
near future. Prepayments of assets carrying higher rates reduce the Company’ s interest income and overall asset yields. A large
portion of an institution’ s liabilities may be short term or due on demand, while most of its assets may be invested in long term
loans or securities. Accordingly, the Company seeks to have in place sources of cash to meet short- term demands. These funds
can be obtained by increasing deposits, borrowing, or selling assets. Also, FHLB advances and wholesale borrowings may be
used as important sources of liquidity for the Company. The following table provides information about the Company’ s
financial instruments that were sensitive to changes in interest rates as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-, based on
certain prepayment and account decay assumptions that management believes are reasonable. Although the Company had
derivative financial instruments as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2622-, the changes in fair value of the assets and
liabilities of the underlying contracts offset each other. For more information about derivative financial instruments , see Note
22 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Expected maturity date values for interest- bearing core deposits were calculated
based on estimates of the period over which the deposits would be outstanding. The Company’ s borrowings were tabulated by
contractual maturity dates and without regard to any conversion or repricing dates. Net Portfolio Value December 31, 2623-2024
December 31, 26222023 Change inRates DollarAmount DollarChange PercentChange DollarAmount DollarChange
PercentChange 400bp $ 649, 236 $ 46, 009 7. 63 % $ 592, 847 $ (14, 886)- 2. 45 % 300bp 640, 723 37, 496 6. 22 % 598, 468
(9, 265)- 1. 52 % 200bp $-630, 945 27, 718 4. 59 % 603, 656 $~(4, 077) - 0. 67 H-%-$575328-53+4-733-"% 100bp 620, 021
16, 794 2. 78 % 608, 399 0. 11 %-566;,-596-16,-60+" Base 603,227 — 0. 00 % 607, 733 — —0. 00 %- 100bp 584, 528 (18,
699)- 3. 10 % 605, 047 (2, 686)- 0. 44 %- 200bp 556, 163 (595————166bp-665:-047—- 47, 064)- 7. 80 % 591, 305 ( 16, 428)-
2 .70 7686)(6)-% 548-- 300bp 530 , 575-688 (&72 , 626-539 ) - 12. 03 % 583, 229 ( 24, 504)- 4. 03 %- 400bp 593, 087 (10,
140)- 1 ¥. 68 % —266bp-653, 870 46, 137 7. 59+ 59 ;305-(16;428)(3) %526, 76229-893)(5)1-"% The change in net portfolio
value from December 31, 2622-2023 to December 31, 2623-2024 , can be attributed to a couple of factors. The yield curve
feﬁ&&ms—tﬁveﬁed—aﬂd—t-he—sheﬁ—eﬁd—has steepened since the end of 2023 the-year-. Addltlonally, both the volume and mix of
assets and funding sources has changed. The volume of loans has increased, and the asset mix remains centered on loans. The
volume of certificates of deposit has increased and both non- maturing deposits and borrowed money have deereased-increased .
The volume and mix shifts from the end of the year contributed to an increase in the base net portfolio value. Beyond the
change in the base level of net portfolio value, projected movements in rates, up or down, would also lead to changes in market
values. A 260400 basis point change in the rates up scenario would lead to a slightly larger decrease in the market value of
liabilities than asscts thantiabitities-. Accordingly, we see a-an deerease-increase in the net portfolio value. A 266-400 basis
points change in the rates down scenario would lead to a larger increase in the market value of liabilities than in assets, leading
to a decrease in the net portfolio value. Critical Accounting Policies Allowance for Credit losses: The allowance for credit
losses is regularly reviewed by management to determine that the amount is considered adequate to absorb probable losses in
the loan portfolio. If not, an additional provision is made to increase the allowance. This evaluation includes specific loss
estimates on certain individually evaluated reviewedmpatred-loans, the pooling of commercial credits risk graded as special
mention and substandard that are not individually analyzed, and general loss estimates that are based upon the size, quality, and
concentration characteristics of the various loan portfolios, adverse situations that may affect a borrower” s ability to repay, and
current economic and industry conditions, among other items. Those judgments and assumptions that are most critical to the
application of this accounting policy are assessing the initial and on- going credit- worthiness of the borrower, the amount and
timing of future cash flows of the borrower that are available for repayment of the loan, the sufficiency of underlying collateral,
the enforceability of third- party guarantees, the frequency and subjectivity of loan reviews and risk ratings, emerging or
changing trends that might not be fully captured in the historical loss experience, and charges against the allowance for actual
losses that are greater than previously estimated. These judgments and assumptions are dependent upon or can be influenced by
a variety of factors, including the breadth and depth of experience of lending officers, credit administration and the corporate
loan review staff that periodically review the status of the loan, changing economic and industry conditions, changes in the
financial condition of the borrower and changes in the value and availability of the underlying collateral and guarantees. Note 1
and Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements provide additional information regarding the Allowance for Credit losses.
Goodwill: The Company accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method of accounting. Accordingly, the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recorded at their estimated fair values as of the date of acquisition
with any excess of the cost of the acquisition over the fair value recorded as goodwill. The Company performs an evaluation of
goodwill for impairment on an annual basis, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the asset
might be impaired. The evaluation for impairment involves comparing the current estimated fair value of the Company to its
carrying value. If the current estimated fair value exceeds the carrying value, no additional testing is required and an impairment
loss is not recorded. If the estimated fair value is less than the carrying value, further valuation procedures are performed that
could result in impairment of goodwill being recorded. Management estimated the fair value of the Reporting Unit as of the
measurement date utilizing four valuation approaches: the comparable transactions approach, the control premium approach, the
public market peers control premium approach and the discounted cash flow approach. These approaches were all considered in
reaching a conclusion on fair value. The estimated fair value of the Reporting Unit was then compared to the current carrying
value to determine if impairment had occurred. It is our opinion that, as of the November 30, 2023-2024 measurement date, the
aggregate fair value of the Reporting Unit exceeds the carrying value of the Reporting Unit. Therefore management concluded
that goodwill was not impaired and made no adjustment in 2623-2024 . Income Taxes: Management’ s determination of the
realization of net deferred tax assets is based upon management’ s judgment of various future events and uncertainties, including
the timing and amount of future income, as well as the implementation of various tax planning strategies to maximize realization



of the deferred tax assets. A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred
tax asset will not be realized. Management analyzes material tax positions taken in any income tax return for any tax jurisdiction
and determines the likelihood of the positions being sustained in a tax examination. A tax position is recognized as a benefit
only if it is “ more likely than not ” that the tax position would be sustained in a tax examination, with a tax examination being
presumed to occur. The amount recognized is the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50 % likely of being realized
on examination. For tax positions not meeting the “ more likely than not ” test, no tax benefit is recorded. Available for Sale (*
AFS ) Debt Securities: For AFS securities in an unrealized loss position, management assesses whether (i) we intend to sell, or
(i1) it is more likely than not that we will be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis. If either case
is affirmative, any previously recognized allowances are charged- off and the security' s amortized cost is written down to fair
value through income. If neither case is affirmative, the security is evaluated to determine whether the decline in fair value has
resulted from credit losses or other factors. In making this assessment, management considers the extent to which fair value is
less than amortized cost, any changes to the rating of the security by a rating agency and any adverse conditions specifically
related to the security, among other factors. If this assessment indicates that a credit loss exists, the present value of cash flows
expected to be collected from the security are compared to the amortized cost basis of the security. If the present value of cash
flows expected to be collected is less than the amortized cost basis, a credit loss exists and an allowance for credit losses is
recorded for the credit loss, limited by the amount that the fair value is less than the amortized cost basis. Any impairment that
has not been recorded through an allowance for credit losses is recognized in other comprehensive income. Adjustments to the
allowance are reported in our income statement as a component of credit loss expense. AFS securities are charged- off against
the allowance or, in the absence of any allowance, written down through income when deemed uncollectible by management or
when either of the aforementioned criteria regarding intent or requirement to sell is met. Pension Benefits: Pension costs and
liabilities are dependent on assumptions used in calculating such amounts. These assumptions include discount rates, benefits
earned, interest costs, expected return on plan assets, mortality rates, and other factors. In accordance with GAAP, actual results
that differ from the assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future periods and, therefore, generally affect recognized
expense and the recorded obligation of future periods. While management believes that the assumptions used are appropriate,
differences in actual experience or changes in assumptions may affect the Company’ s pension obligations and future expense.
Our pension benefits are described further in Note 15 of the “ Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. ” Derivative
Financial Instruments: In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into derivative financial instruments in
connection with its asset / liability management activities and to accommodate the needs of its customers. Derivative financial
instruments are stated at fair value on the Consolidated Statement of Conditions with changes in fair value reposted in current
earnings. Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Financial Data CIVISTA BANCSHARES, INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIES Index to Consolidated Financial StatementsManagement’ s Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm {FORAS EEP-—PEAOBID-686)-Consolidated Balance
Sheets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-26822-Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years ended December 31,
2024, 2023 yand 2022 aﬁd—ZGQ—l—Consohdated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for the Years ended December
31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and262+-Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 5
and 2022 and2024+-Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsWe, as management of Civista Bancshares, Inc., are responsible
for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting that is designed to produce reliable financial
statements in conformity with United States generally accepted accounting principles. The system of internal control over
financial reporting as it relates to the financial statements is evaluated for effectiveness by management and tested for reliability
through a program of internal audits. Actions are taken to correct potential deficiencies as they are identified. Any system of
internal control, no matter how well designed, has inherent limitations, including the possibility that a control can be
circumvented or overridden and misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, because of changes in
conditions, internal control effectiveness may vary over time. Accordingly, even an effective system of internal control will
provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation. Management assessed the Company’ s system
of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2023-2024 , in relation to criteria for effective internal control
over financial reporting as described in “ 2013 Internal Control — Integrated Framework, ” issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment, management concludes that, as of December
31, 26232024 , its system of internal control over financial reporting is effective and meets the criteria of the *“ 2013 Internal
Control — Integrated Framework 7. FORVAS-Plante & Moran , EER-PLLC , independent registered public accounting firm, has
issued an audit report on the effectiveness of the Company’ s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2623
2024 . Management is responsible for compliance with the federal and state laws and regulations concerning dividend
restrictions and federal laws and regulations concerning loans to insiders designated by the FDIC as safety and soundness laws
and regulations. Management has assessed compliance by the Company with the designated laws and regulations relating to
safety and soundness. Based on the assessment, management believes that the Company complied, in all significant respects,
with the designated laws and regulations related to safety and soundness for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 . Dennis
G. Shaffer ITan WhinnemPresident Fedd-A-—MiehelPresident-and Chief Executive Officer Senior Vice Pre51dent ControHer
Chief Financial Officer Sandusky, Ohio March +4-10 , 2624-2025 REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTING FIRM To the Shareholders ;-and Board of Directors aﬁd—Aud-rt—Gemmrﬁee—Oplmon on the Consolidated
Financial Statements-StatementsWe We-have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets— sheet of Civista
Bancshares, Inc. (the “ Company ) as of December 31, 2823-2024 arnd-2622-, the related consolidated statements of operations,
comprehensive income (loss), changes in shareholders ' equity, and cash flows for eaeh—ef—&)e—yeafs—l—n—t-he—&rreﬁ the —year
pertodended December 31, 2623-2024 , and the related notes (collectively referred to as the * consolidated financial statements
). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial



position of the Company as of December 31, 2823-2024 ard-20822-, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for eaek
of the-years-in-the-three-- the —year pertod-ended December 31, 2023-2024 , in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“ PCAOB ”), the Company’ s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2623-2024 , based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“ COSO ), and our report dated March +4-10 , 2624
2025 —expressed an unqualmed opm]on thereon Bas1s for Opinion The Company' s management is responsible for Change

these consolidated financial statements the-Company-changed-its

express an opinion on the Company’ s consolldated 1‘1nane1dl statements based on our aud-rts—~ audlt We are a publ]e
accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with
the U. S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
PCAOB. We conducted our audits— audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the awdits— audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of
material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our atdits— audit included performing procedures to assess the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that
respond to those risks. Such procedures #rehade-included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits— audit also included evaluating the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements. We believe that our audits— audit provide-provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Critical Audit Matterst2F—--
- Matter The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current —period audit of the financial
statements that swere-was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that <« 1) relate-relates to
accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or
complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial
statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate epittons—-
opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which they-it retate-relates . As-diseussed-rAllowance
for Credit Losses on Collectively Evaluated Loans — Refer to Notes 1 and 5 to the eonsetidated-Consolidated finanetat
Financial statements-Statements —t-he—Gempany—Crltlcal Audit Matter Description Management ’ s estimate of toan
portfelieand-the asseetated-allowance for credit losses (£-ACL Z) were-$2-9-bithonand $ 37 2-million-as-of December 31,

%92—3—1=espeefwel-y—1ncludes areserve on collectlvely evaluated loans The Gempany—es&mates—t-he—&@k&t—reserve on

plobdblllty of demult and loss given default based on the hlstorlcal loss experlence of a selected peer group over a deﬁned
lookback period and the correlation of that loss experience to selected economic variables (“ loss drivers ”) . Additional
Loss expectations are adjusted for forecasted changes in those economic variables over a reasonable and supportable
forecast period and further adjusted for qualitative adjustments-are-apphedforrisk-factors to address the impact of internal
and external information both specific to the institution and the environment that are not already captured eenstdered

Wﬁh-m—the—modelmg—pfoeesshbtﬁ—afe—felevaﬂt—m assessrng—the quantltatlve expeeted—efedtt—lesses—wﬁl‘nﬂ—t-he—lean-segmeﬂts—

fna&eih Slgnlﬁcant assumptlons he-prinet onsideratt it : afd
subjeetivity-velved-in eva-l-ua-t—rﬂg—mamoement S esﬂ-ma-tes» estlmate of the reserve on collectlvely evaluated loans include ,
parttewtarly-among others, (i) peer group selection, (ii) the lookback period, (iii) selection of loss drivers, and (iv)
qualitative factor adjustments. Significant judgment as-was itrequired by management in the selection and application
of subjective assumptions. Accordingly, performing audit procedures to evaluate the Company’ s estimated ACL
involved a high degree of auditor judgment and required significant effort, including the involvement of professionals
with specialized skill and knowledge. How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit Our audit procedures
related to evaluating-the Company’ s estimate of the ACL included, but were not limited to, the following: « We tested the
design and operating effectiveness of management’ s assessmentof-controls over the determination of the current

quantltatlve assumptlons and quahtdtwe faetors— factor adjustments U We tested :Ph-ts—feqtufed-a—lug-lhilegfee—ef—aud-rtef

.
uﬂdefsta-nelmg—e-ﬁt-he—eeﬁapany—s—ploeess for estabhshmg—ﬂ&e%@lrdetermlnlng reserves on collectlvely evaluated loans

including : oEvaluation of the qualitative-appropriateness of management’ s methodology. oTesting the completeness and
foreeast-factor-accuracy of data utilized by management. oEvaluation of the relevance and reliability of information used



by management in the development of the estimate. oEvaluation of the reasonableness of significant assumptions used in
the estimate, including cons1derat10n of whether the admstments apphed were reasonable glven portfoho compos1t10n,

; and consideration of hlstorlcal or recent experience and
condltlons and events affectmg the Company oTestmg the accuracy of the mathematical apphcatlon of 51gn1ﬁcant
assumptlons, mcludmg apphcatlon feaseﬁab-}eness—of ta v 0

Company S audltor since %92—1—2024 Grnetn-nﬁﬁ—Auburn Hllls Gh-le-Mlchlgan Oplmon on t-he—lntemdl Control over F mancml
Reporting We have audited €ivistaBaneshares; Tre—s{the ““Company=)-internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2023-2024 of Civista Bancshares, Inc. (the “ Company ”) , based on criteria established in Internal Control —-
Integrated Framework +(2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission ( the «
COSO framework ” ). In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2023-2024 , based on criteria established in the fnternal-Control—Integrated-Frameworlke+(2643)
tssued-by-COSO framework We also have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of the Company as of
December 31, 2024, the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), changes in
shareholders' equity, and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2024, and the related notes (collectively referred to
as the “ consohdated ﬁnancnal statements ) , in accmdance w 1th the standards of the Public Company Accounting Ov eIsmht

tH report ddted Mmch -1-4-10 %9%4—2025
e*pfessed-expresses an unquallhed opinion thereon eﬁ—t-hese—ﬁﬂ&ﬂet&l-s’fa—tefﬁeﬁts— The Company ='s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting sincluded in the accompanying ManagementReport by Civista Bancshares, Inc. * s
Report-management on Internal Control ©ver-over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company ='s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit . We are a public accounting firm registered with
the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U. S. federal
securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB .
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Befinitiens—- Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting A company =" s internal control over
financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of reliable-financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company +' s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company ='s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting
may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions , or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate. Auburn Hills, Michigan To the Shareholders, Board of Directors, and Audit Committee We
have audited, before the effects of the adjustments to retrospectively apply the change in accounting described in Notes 1
and Note 26 due to the adoption of Accounting Standards Update 2023- 07, Segment Reporting (Topic 280):
Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Civista Bancshares,
Inc. (the “ Company ) as of December 31, 2023, the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive
income (loss), changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the two- year period ended
December 31, 2023, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “ financial statements ). In our opinion, the
consolidated financial statements, before the effects of the adjustments to retrospectively apply the change in accounting
described in Notes 1 and 26, referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as of December 31, 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the two-



year period ended December 31, 2023, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. We were not engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the adjustments to retrospectively apply
the change in accounting described in Notes 1 and 26 and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form
of assurance about whether such adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applied. Those adjustments were
audited by Plante & Moran PLLC. We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“ PCAOB ”), the Company’ s internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2023, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 14, 2024, expressed
an unqualified opinion thereon. Change in Accounting Principle As discussed in Notes 1 and 5 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for the allowance for credit losses as of January 1,
2023 due to the adoption of Accounting Standards Update No. 2016- 13, which established Accounting Standards
Codification Topic 326, Financial Instruments- Credit Losses. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’ s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’ s financial statements based on
our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. / s / Forvis Mazars, LLP We served as the Company’ s auditor from 2021 to
2024. Cincinnati, Ohio CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Amounts in thousands, except share data) ASSETS Cash
and due from financial institutions $ 63, 155 $ 60, 406 $43;361+-Cash and cash equivalents 63, 155 60, 406 43;36+-Investments
in time deposits 1, 450 1, 225 45477Securities available for sale 648, 067 618, 272 6+5;4062-Equity securities 2, 421 2, 169 25
496-Loans held for sale 1, 725 Loans, net of allowance of $ 39, 669 and $ 37, 160 3 and-$28-, 5H-041, 561 2, 824, 568 2-619;
F#0-Other securities 30, 352 29, 998 33;-585-Premises and equipment, net 47, 166 56, 769 64-048-Accrued interest receivable
13,453 12, 819 H53478-Goodwill 125, 520 125, 695-520 Other intangible assets 7, 883 9, 508 +0;-7#59-Bank owned life
insurance 62, 783 61, 335 53;-543-Swap assets 5,308 12, 481 +6;-579-Deferred taxes 21, 681 18, 357 48;449-Other assets 27,
004 26, 266 22:-F56-Total assets $ 4,098,469 $ 3, 861, 418 $3;-639-445- . IABILITIES Deposits Noninterest- bearing $ 695,
094 $ 771, 699 $896;333-Interest- bearing 2, 516, 776 2, 213, 329 +-923;-65+Total deposits 3, 211, 870 2, 985, 028 25-649;
984-Short- term Federal Home Loan Bank advances 339, 000 338, 000 393;-766-Long- term Federal Home Loan Bank advances
1,501 2, 392 %eeufme&se}d—&ﬂdefagfeﬁmmfeptﬁehase—Zé—}%Submdmated debentures , net 104, 089 103, 943

-1-93—7-99—Seeufed—beffe=\ﬁﬂgs—1-9-l—6-lé-0the1 borrowings 6, 293 9, 859 +5:-5+6-Swap liabilities 11, 638 12, 481 +6:579
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 35, 576 37, 713 24;-696-Total liabilities 3, 709, 967 3, 489, 416 3;:-364;-616

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY Common stock, no par value, 40, 000, 000 shares authorized, 19, 340, 021 shares issued at
December 31, 2024 and 19, 288, 674 shares issued at December 31, 2023 312 and49-, 234037 311 , 66+-166 Accumulated
earnings 205, 408 183, 788 Treasury stock, 3, 852, 354 common shares issted-at December 31, 26222024 and IH166-316;
182-Aceumulated-earnings 183788156492 Freasury-stoek—3, 593, 250 common shares at December 31,2023 and-3;-562;827
eommon-shares-atDeeember3+-2622-, at cost (75, 586) (75, 422 )—67—3—7-94—) Accumulated other Comprehensne loss ( 53, 357)
(47, 530 H58;045-) Total shareholders” equity 388, 502 372, 002 334;-835-Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 4, 098,
469 $ 3, 861, 418 $3+-639445-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS Interest and dividend income Loans,
including fees $ 183,578 $ 160, 755 $ 108, 053 $92;882-Taxable securities 12,639 11, 718 9, 123 5;473-Tax- exempt
securities 9, 473 9, 282 7, 859 6;258-Federal funds sold and other 1, 005 1, 120 Total interest and dividend income 206, 695
182, 734 126, 155 +85:-654-Interest expense Deposits 65, 801 33, 755 3, 840 4,4#5-Federal Home Loan Bank advances 18, 493
14, 559 3, 076 .54+63-Subordinated debentures 4, 931 4, 849 3, 781 Securities sold under agreements to repurchase and other 4,
075 5, 254 3;:336-Total interest expense 89, 985 57, 238 15, 951 9;-629-Net interest income 116, 710 125, 496 110, 204 95;425
Provision for credit losses 5,364 4, 435 1, 752 Net interest income after provision for credit losses 111,346 121, 061 108, 452
84-595-Noninterest income Service charges 6, 114 7, 206 7, 074 5-965-Net gain on sale of securities +;786-Net gain (loss) on
equity securities (21) Net gain on sale of loans and leases 4, 438 2, 908 3, 397 §;-042-ATM / Interchange fees 5, 841 5, 880 5,
499 5;443-Wealth management fees 5, 519 4, 767 4, 902 47857 ease revenue & residual income 8, 911 7, 595 2, 310 —Bank
owned life insurance 2, 205 1, 112 5266-Tax refund processing fees — 2537#5-2, 375 2, 375 Swap fees Other 4, 203 4, 668 2,
160 +5-45+Total noninterest income 37, 748 37, 163 29, 076 3+5452-Noninterest expense Compensation expense 61, 821 58,
291 51, 061 445-696-Net occupancy expense 5, 097 §, 395 4, 701 45-243-Equipment expense 9,553 11, 085 5, 070 -83%
Contracted data processing 2, 248 2, 242 2, 788 +5725-FDIC Assessment 2, 631 1, 637 4-656-State franchise tax 2, 052 2, 026
1, 975 2,484-Professional services 5, 779 4, 952 5, 388 Z-H5-Amortization of core deposit intangible-intangibles assets-1, 484
1,579 1,296 ATM / Interchange expense 2, 544 2, 420 2, 248 2;3+4-Marketing expense 2, 088 1, 352 1, 513 +;+63-Software
maintenance expenses 4, 944 4, 167 3, 433 2,#55-Other operating expenses 12, 279 12, 465 10, 223 42483-Total noninterest
expense 112,520 107, 611 90, 493 F#-666-Income before income taxes 36, 574 50, 613 47, 035 48;38+Income taxes 4, 891 7,
649 7, 608 7-835-Net income 31, 683 42, 964 39, 427 46;-546-Net income available to common shareholders $ 31, 683 $ 42,
964 $ 39, 427 $46,546-Earnings per common share, basic $ 2. 01 $ 2. 73 $ 2. 60 $2-63-Earnings per common share, diluted $
2.018$2.738$ 2. 60$2-63-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Net income $ 31, 683 $ 42,
964 $ 39, 427 $46,-546-Other comprehensive income (loss): Unrealized holding gains (loss) on available for sale securities (7,
338) 12,330 (85, 517 H8;596-) Tax effect 1,537 (2, 583) 18, 079 -1—7-99—Reclassmcat10n of gains recognized in net income




(33) — (103 Tax effect Pension liability adjustment — Tax effect — (204) (155) €69)-Reclassification of aetaatiat
actuarial gain recognized in net income — — — Tax effect — — — £56)>-Total other comprehensive income (loss) (5, 827) 10,
515 (66, 865 H5:799-) Comprehensive income (loss) $ 25,856 $ 53, 479 § (27, 438) $34;747+CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY Common Shares Accumulated Treasury
AccumulatedOtherComprehenswe TotalShareholder% Shares Amount Earnlngg Stock lncome (Loqs) Equlty Balance

,2021 14 954 200$277 741 $

125 558 $ (56 907) $ 8, 820 $ 355 212 Net income — — 39, 427 ——39, 427 Other comprehensive income — — — — (66,
865) (66, 865) Stock- based compensation 36, 461 — — — Common share dividends ($ 0. 56 per share) — — (8, 493) — —
(8, 493) Stock issued for acquisition of Comunibanc Corp. 984, 723 21, 122 — — — 21, 122 Stock issued for acquisition of
Vision Financial Group, Inc. 500, 293 10, 500 — — — 10, 500 Repurchase of common stock (747, 443) — — (16, 887) — (16,
887) Balance, December 31, 2022 15, 728,234 $ 310, 182 $ 156, 492 $ (73, 794) $ (58, 045) $ 334, 835 Cumulative- effect
adjustment for adoption of ASC 326 — — (6, 069) — — (6, 069) Balance January 1, 2023 15, 728,234 $ 310, 182 $ 150,423 §
(73,794) $ (58, 045) $ 328, 766 Net income — — 42, 964 — — 42, 964 Other comprehensive income — ———10, 515 10,
515 Stock- based compensation 57, 613 — — — Common share dividends ($ 0. 61 per share) —— (9, 599) — — (9, 599)
Repurchase of common stock (90, 423) — — (1, 628) — (1, 628) Balance, December 31, 2023 15, 695, 424 $ 311, 166 $ 183,
788§ (75,422) $ (47,530) $ 372, 002 Net income — — 31, 683 — — 31, 683 Other comprehensive income — — — — (5,
827) (5, 827) Stock- based compensation 51, 347 — — — Common share dividends ($ 0. 64 per share) — — (10, 063) —
— (10, 063) Forfeited contingent consideration (250, 148) — — — — — Repurchase of common stock (8, 956) — —

(164) — (164) Balance, December 31, 2024 15, 487, 667 $ 312, 037 $ 205, 408 $ (75, 586) $ (53, 357) $ 388, 502
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS Cash flows from operating activities: Net income $ 31, 683 $ 42, 964 $§
39, 427 $-46,546-Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities Time deposits amortization —
Security amortization, net 1, 607 453%6-Depreciation 9, 545 10, 760 4, 456 +,-9%6-Amortization of core deposit intangible 1,
484 1, 579 1, 296 Amertization-Accretion of net deferred loan fees and purchase discounts (1, 166) (1, 299) (2, 859) 46738y
Loss (gain) on sale of fixed assets (82) — Net gain on sale of OREQO properties (255) — — Net gain on sale of securities (
33) — (10 ¥5786-) Net (gain) loss on equity securities ( 252) ( 118 3¥486-) Provision for tean-credit losses 5,364 4, 435 1,
752 Loans and leases originated for sale ( 161, 094) (101, 170) (126, 507 3H255;265-) Proceeds from sale of loans and leases
166,592 103, 036 131, 193 268;336-Net gain on sale of loans and leases (4, 438) (2, 908) (3, 397 H8;-842-) Increase in cash
surrender value of bank owned life insurance ( 2, 205) ( 1, 112) (984 335266-) Share- based compensation Deferred taxes ( 1,
853) (675) 3+9-Change in: Accrued interest payable (7) 8, 858 Accrued interest receivable ( 634) (1, 641) (2, 049) Cash
collateral posted by derivative counterparties 6, 330 — — Other, net ( 2, 653) 636-Other;net-(1, 527) (20, 236 3HF52) Net
cash provided by operating activities 48, 246 62, 698 25, 183 49;76+Cash flows used for investing activities: Investments in
time securities Maturities 1, 312 Purchases —( 245-715 ) — (245) Securities available for sale Maturities, prepayments and
calls 31,235 23, 138 49, 276 64;929-Sales 2,994 — 57, 332 5-840-Purchases ( 72, 324) ( 14, 146) (128, 860 3H268;369-)
Purchases of other securities ( 14, 179) (32, 311) (16, 646) —Redemption of other securities 13, 825 35, 898 1, 625 3;:526

Purchase of equity securities — — (1, 000) —Purchases of bank owned life insurance ( 1, 315) (7, 000) Proceeds from
bank owned life insurance 2, 072 — Net change in loans ( 221, 253) (314, 499) (315, 190) H5672-Proceeds from sale of OREO
properties — — Acquisitions, net of cash — — (51, 643) —Premises and equipment purchases ( 4, 186) ( 3, 429) (6, 508) ¢

92h-Disposal of premises and equipment 4, 239 — Net cash used in investing activities ( 258, 801) (311, 784) (410, 364 3436;
496-) CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued) Years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021
Cash flows from financing activities: Increase (decrease) in deposits 226, 842 365, 044 (67, 911) 224-383-Net change in short-
term FHLB advances €1, 000 (1, 186) 393, 700 —Repayment of long- term FHLB advances ( 891) (55, 700) (93, 128 3596
860-) Change in other borrowings ( 3, 420) (5, 657) (42, 626) —Preeceds-fromsubordinated-debentures———F3;386-Increase
(decrease) in securities sold under repurchase agreements — (25, 143) (352 33;449-) Repurchase of common stock ( 164) ( 1,
628) (16, 887 H22;,389-) Cash dividends paid ( 10, 063) (9, 599) (8, 493 H8;-636-) Net cash provided by financing activities
213,304 266, 131 164, 303 246;925-Increase (decrease) in cash and due from financial institutions 2, 749 17, 045 (220, 878)
+271496-Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 60, 406 43, 361 264, 239 43%;-649-Cash and cash equivalents at end of
year $ 63,155 $ 60, 406 $ 43, 361 $264;239-Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: Interest paid $ 89,992 § 43,
380 $ 10, 696 $-6;2086-Income taxes paid 4, 886 9, 510 3, 145 6;480-Transfer of loans from portfolio to other real estate owned
— — Securities purchased not settled — 1, 338 3;-524-The Company purchased all of the capital stock of Comunibanc Corp.
for $ 46, 090 on July 1, 2022. In conjunction with the acquisition, liabilities were assumed as follows: Fair value of assets
acquired $ 340, 649 Less: common stock issued 21, 122 Less: cash paid for the capital 24, 968 Liabilities assumed $ 294, 559
The Company purchased all of the capital stock of Vision Financial Group for $ 46, 544 on October 1, 2022. In conjunction
with the acquisition, liabilities were assumed as follows: Fair value of assets acquired $ 126, 852 Less: common stock issued 10,
500 Less: cash paid for the capital 36, 044 Liabilities assumed $ 80, 308 CIVISTA BANCSHARES, INC. NOTES TO
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSDecember 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and2024-(Amounts in thousands,
except share data) NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIESThe following is a summary of the
accounting policies adopted by Civista Bancshares, Inc., which have a significant effect on the Consolidated Financial
Statements. Nature of Operations and Principles of Consolidation: The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts
of Civista Bancshares, Inc. (“ CBI ) and its wholly- owned direct and indirect subsidiaries: Civista Bank (““ Civista ™), First
Citizens Insurance Agency, Inc. (“ FCIA ), Water Street Properties, Inc. (“ WSP ), CIVB Risk Management Inc. (“CRMI ”),

First-Citizens-CapitalHEEC(FEE)-and First Citizens Investments, Inc. (“ FCI 7). The above companies together are sometimes



referred to as the “ Company ”. Intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated in consolidation. Civista provides
financial services through its offices in the Ohio counties of Erie, Crawford, Champaign, Cuyahoga, Franklin, Logan, Summit,
Huron, Ottawa, Madison, Montgomery, Henry, Wood and Richland, in the Indiana counties of Dearborn and Ripley and in the
Kentucky county of Kenton. Its primary deposit products are checking, savings, and term certificate accounts, and its primary
lending products are residential mortgage, commercial, and installment loans. Substantially all loans are secured by specific
items of collateral including business assets, consumer assets and commercial and residential real estate. Commercial loans are
expected to be repaid from cash flow from operations of businesses. There are no significant concentrations of loans to any one
industry or customer. However, our customers’ ability to repay their loans is dependent on the real estate and general economic
conditions in the area. Other financial instruments that potentially represent concentrations of credit risk include deposit
accounts in other financial institutions. Civista Leasing and Finance (" CLF"), formerly known as Vision Financial Group, Inc.
(" VFG") was acquired in the fourth quarter of 2022 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Civista. Effective as of August 31, 2023,
VFG was merged with and into Civista, and CLF is now operated as a full- service general equipment leasing and financing
division of Civista. The operations of CLF are located in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. FCIA was formed to allow the Company to
participate in commission revenue generated through its third party insurance agreement. Insurance commission revenue was
less than 1 —08-% of total revenue for each of the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;and 2022 and2024+-. WSP was formed
to hold repossessed assets of CBI” s subsidiaries. WSP revenue was less than 1 % of total revenue for each of the years ended
December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-2623-. CRMI was formed in 2017 to provide property and casualty insurance coverage
to CBI and its subsidiaries for which insurance may not be currently available or economically feasible in the insurance
marketplace CRMI revenue was less than 1 % of total revenue for each of the years ended December 31, 2024 2023 ;and

its securltres portfoho The operatlons of FCI are loeated in Wllmlngton Delaware Use of Estlmates To prepare ﬁnan01a1
statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (" GAAP"),
management makes estimates and assumptions based on available information. These estimates and assumptions affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements and the disclosures provided, and future results could differ. The allowance for
credit losses, determlnatlon of goodwrll 1rnpalrrnent and fair values— Value measurements of financial instruments valaation
; es-are considered material estimates
that are partrcularly susceptlble to srgnlﬂcant change in the near term. Cash Flows: Cash and cash equivalents include cash on
hand and demand deposits with financial institutions with original maturities of less than 90 days. Net cash flows are reported
for customer loan and deposit transactions, interest bearing deposits in other financial institutions, federal funds purchased,
short- term borrowings and repurchase agreements. The Company routinely maintains balances that exceed FDIC insured limits
but beheves the risk of loss is Very low Wlth respect to such deposrts Investments %MANGSHARES—H@GN@TE—S
; nts-in theusands;exeept-time

dep051tS° Investments in time deposits 1nclude certlﬁcates of depos1t held in other financial institutions that mature over
the next two years and share-- are carried at cost. data)yNOTEA—SUMMARY-OF-SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING
POLICIHES(Continted)-Securities available for sale : Debt securities are classified as available for sale when they might be
sold before maturity. Securities available for sale are carried at fair value, with unrealized holding gains and losses reported in
other comprehensive income, net of tax. Interest income includes amortization of purchase premium er-and accretion of
discount. Premiums-and-diseounts-Discounts etrare accreted into interest income over the estimated life of the related
seeurities-security and premiums are amortized en-into income to the earlier of the call date or estimated life of the related
security using the level —yield method without antietpating-anticipated prepayments, except for mortgage backed securities
where prepayments are anticipated. Realized Gains-gains and losses on sales of securities, which are based-reported in net
gain on sale the-amertized-eost-of t-he—seettﬂtry—securltles setd-on the Consolidated Statements of Operations, are recognized
on the trade date and determlned using the specrﬂc 1dent1ﬁcat10n method —theﬁseeuﬂﬁes—whteh—mehtde—Fedefa{—Heme—I:eaﬂ

earrted-at-eost- Equity securltres Equity securmes are held at fair value. Holdlng gains and losses are recorded #ras noninterest
income and reported in net gain (loss) on equity securities in the Consolidated Statements of Operations . Dividends are
recognized as income when earned. Loans Held for Sale: Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary
market and loans that management no longer intends to hold for the foreseeable future, are carried at the lower of aggregate cost
or fair value, as determined by outstanding commitments from investors. Net unrealized losses, if any, are recorded as a
valuation allowance and charged to earnings. Mortgage loans held for sale are generally sold with servicing rights retained.
Gains and losses on sales of mortgage loans are based on the difference between the selling price and the carrying value
of the related mortgage loan sold, which is reduced by the cost allocated to the servicing right. oans and leases: Loans
anddeases-that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or payoff are reported at
the principal balance outstanding, net of premium and discounts associated with acquisition date fair values on acquired
loans, deferred loan fees and costs, any direct principal charge- offs, and an allowance for credit teanandHeases-losses.
Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. Loan origination fees, net of certain direct origination costs, are
deferred and recognized in interest income using the level- yield method without anticipating prepayments. Interest income on
mortgage and commercial loans is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days delinquent unless the credit is well- secured and
in process of collection. Interest income on consumer loans is discontinued when management determines future collection is
unlikely. In all cases, loans are placed on nonaccrual or charged- off at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest is
considered doubtful. All interest accrued, but not received, for loans placed on nonaccrual, is reversed against interest income.



Interest received on such loans is accounted for on the cash- basis or cost- recovery method, until qualifying for return to
accrual. Loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current
and future payments are reasonably assured. The Company provides financing leases for the purchase of business equipment. At
the inception of each lease, the lease receivables, together with the present value of the estimated unguaranteed residual values ,
are recorded as lease receivables within loans in the consolidated financial statements. Direct financing leases are carried at the
aggregate of lease payments plus estimated residual value of the leased property, net of unamortized deferred lease origination
fees and costs and unearned income. Only those costs incurred as a direct result of closing a lease transaction are capitalized and
all initial direct costs are expensed immediately. Interest income on direct financing leases is recognized over the term of the
1ease to achleve a constant perlodlc rate of return on the outstanding 1nvestment %GWPS%&—BANGS—I—I:*RE—S—HJH@G&EE-S

January 1, 2023, the Company adopted Accountlng Standards Update (“ASU ”) No 2016- 13, Financial Instruments — Credlt
Losses (TOplC 326) — Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments (" ASU 2016- 13"). ASU 2016- 13 introduces a
new credit loss methodology, Current Expected Credit Losses (" CECL"), which requires earlier recognition of credit losses,
while also providing additional transparency about credit risk. ASU 2016- 13 amends guidance on reporting credit losses for
financial assets held at amortized cost basis and available for sale debt securities. ASU 2016- 13 eliminates the probable initial
recognition threshold previously required under GeneraltyAeeepted-AecountingPrinetptes("-GAAP Yy-and instead, requires an
entity to reflect its current estimate of all expected credit losses based on historical experience, current conditions and reasonable
and supportable forecasts. The allowance for credit losses is a valuation account that is deducted from the amortized cost basis
of the financial assets to present the net amount expected to be collected. ASU 2016- 13 also expands the disclosure
requirements regarding an entity’ s assumptions, models, and methods for estimating the reserve for credit losses. In addition,
entities need to disclose the amortized cost balance for each class of financial asset by credit quality indicator, disaggregated by
the year of origination. The Company adopted Accounting Standards Certification (" ASC") 326 using the modified
retrospective method for all financial assets measured at amortized cost and off- balance sheet credit exposures. Results for the
periods beginning after January 1, 2023 are presented under Accounting Standards Codification (“ ASC *) 326 while prior
period amounts continue to be reported in accordance with previously applicable GAAP. The Company adopted ASC 326 using
the prospective transition approach for purchased credit deteriorated (" PCD") financial assets that were previously classified as
purchased credit impaired (" PCI") and accounted for under ASC 310- 30. In accordance with ASC 326, management did not
reassess whether PCI assets met the criteria of PCD assets as of the date of adoption. On January 1, 2023, the amortized cost
basis of the PCD assets was adjusted to reflect the addition of $ 1, 668 to the allowance for credit losses. The remaining
noncredit discount (based on the adjusted amortized cost basis) will be accreted into interest income at the effective interest rate
as of January 1, 2023. The adoption of CECL resulted in an increase to our total allowance for credit losses (“ ACL ) on loans
held for investment of $ 4. 3 million, an increase in allowance for credit losses on unfunded loan commitments of $ 3. 4 million,
a reclassification of PCI discount from loans to the ACL of $ 1. 7 million, and an increase in deferred tax asset of $ 1. 6 million.
The Company also recorded a net reduction of retained earnings of $ 6. 1 million upon adoption. The allowance for credit losses
is evaluated on a regular basis and established through charges to earnings in the form of a provision for credit losses. When a
loan or portion of a loan is determined to be uncollectible, the portion deemed uncollectible is charged against the allowance
and subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates
that are susceptlble to 51gn1ﬁcant revision as more 1nf0rmatlon becomes avallable %—GNE%BANGSH—AKE—S—I—N&N@TE—S

data)N At Portfolio Segmentatlon (- Pooled
Loans ) Portfoho segmentatlon is deﬁned as the pooling of loans based upon similar risk characteristics such that quantitative
methodologies and qualitative adjustment factors for estimating the allowance for credit losses are constructed for each
segment. The Company has identified nine portfolio segments of loans including Commercial & Agriculture, Commercial Real
Estate — Owner Occupied, Commercial Real Estate — Non- Owner Occupied, Residential Real Estate, Real Estate Construction,
Home Equity Line of Credit, Farm Real Estate, Lease Financing Receivable and Consumer and Other Loans. The allowance for
credit losses for Pooled Loans is estimated based upon periodic review of the collectability of the loans quantitatively correlating
historical loan experience with reasonable and supportable forecasts using forward looking information. The Company utilized a
discounted cash flow (" DCF " ) method to estimate the quantitative portion of the allowance for credit losses for loans
evaluated on a collective pooled basis. For each segment, a loss driver analysis (" LDA " ) was performed in order to identify
appropriate loss drivers and create a regression model for use in forecasting cash flows. The LDA utilized the Company’ s own
Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council’ s (“ FFIEC ™) Call Report data for all segments except indirect auto and all
new and unknown values. Peer data was incorporated into the analysis for all segments except indirect auto and all new and
unknown values. The Company uses regression analysis to determine suitable loss drivers to utilize when modeling lifetime
probability of default and loss given default for the changes in the economic factors for the loss driver segments. The identified
loss drivers for all segments as of December 31, 2623-2024 are national unemployment rate and national gross domestic product
growth. Peer data is utilized in our model as more statistically supportable data. The Company uses actual loss data for the lease
portfolio due to a lack of appropriate peer leasing data to forecast loss drivers. Key inputs into the DCF model include loan-
level detail, including the amortized cost basis of individual loans, payment structure, loss history, and forecasted loss drivers.
The Company uses the central tendency midpoint seasonally adjusted forecasts from the Federal Open Market Committee ( "
FOMC " ). Other key assumptions include the probability of default (" PD "), loss given default (LGD), and prepayment /
curtailment rates. When possible, the Company utilizes its own PDs for the reasonable and supportable forecast period. When it
is not possible to use the Company’ s own PDs, the LDA is utilized to determine PDs based on the forecasted economic factors.



In all cases, the LDA is then utilized to determine the long- term historical average, which is reached over the reversion period.
When possible, the Company utilizes its own LGDs for the reasonable and supportable forecast period. When it is not possible
to use the Company’ s own LGDs, the LGD is derived using a method referred to as Frye Jacobs. The Frye Jacobs method is a
mathematical formula that traces the relationship between LGD and PD over time and projects the LGD based on the level of
PD forecasted. In all cases, the Frye Jacobs method is utilized to calculate LGDs during the reversion period and long- term
historical average. Prepayment and curtailment rates were calculated based on the Company’ s own data utilizing a one- year
average. When the discounted cash flow method is used to determine the allowance for credit losses, management incorporates
expected prepayments to determine the effective interest rate utilized to discount expected cash flow. Adjustments to the
quantitative evaluation may be made to account for differences in current or expected qualitative risk characteristics such as
changes in: (i) lending policies and procedures; (ii) experience and depth of lending and management staff; (iii) quality of credit
review system; (iv) nature and volume of portfolio; (v) past due, classified and non accrual loans; (vi) economic and business
conditions; (vii) competition or legal and regulatory requirements; (viii) concentrations within the portfolio; (ix) underlying
collateral for collateral dependent loans. Purchased Credit Deteriorated (" PCD " ) Loans The Company has purchased loans,
some of which have shown evidence of credit deterioration since origination. Upon adoption of ASC 326, the Company elected
to maintain pools of loans that were previously accounted for under ASC 310- 30 and will continue to account for these pools as
a unit of account. Loans are only removed from the existing pools if they are written off, paid off, or sold. Upon adoption of
ASC 326, the allowance for credit losses was determined for each pool and added to the pool' s carrying amount to establish a
new amortized 6 y AP AN A 1 A N A NLA DN A A NN
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POEICHES(Continted)-cost basis. The difference between the unpaid principal balance of the pool and the new amortized cost
basis is the noncredit premium or discount which will be amortized into interest income over the remaining life of the pool.
Changes to the allowance for credit losses after adoption are recorded through provision expense. Individually Evaluated Loans
The Company establishes a specific reserve for individually evaluated loans which do not share similar risk characteristics with
the loans included in the forecasted allowance for credit losses. These individually evaluated loans are removed from the
pooling approach discussed above for the forecasted allowance for credit losses, and include nonaccrual loans, loan and lease
modifications experiencing financial difficulty, and other loans deemed appropriate by management. Available for Sale (“ AFS
) Debt Securities For AFS securities in an unrealized loss position, we first assess whether (i) we intend to sell, or (ii) it is more
likely than not that we will be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis. If either case is
affirmative, any previously recognized allowances are charged- off and the security' s amortized cost is written down to fair
value through income. If neither case is affirmative, the security is evaluated to determine whether the decline in fair value has
resulted from credit losses or other factors. In making this assessment, management considers the extent to which fair value is
less than amortized cost, any changes to the rating of the security by a rating agency and any adverse conditions specifically
related to the security, among other factors. If this assessment indicates that a credit loss exists, the present value of cash flows
expected to be collected from the security are compared to the amortized cost basis of the security. If the present value of cash
flows expected to be collected is less than the amortized cost basis, a credit loss exists and an allowance for credit losses is
recorded for the credit loss, limited by the amount that the fair value is less than the amortized cost basis. Any impairment that
has not been recorded through an allowance for credit losses is recognized in other comprehensive income. Adjustments to the
allowance are reported in our income statement as a component of credit loss expense. AFS securities are charged- off against
the allowance or, in the absence of any allowance, written down through income when deemed uncollectible by management or
when either of the aforementioned criteria regarding intent or requirement to sell is met. Accrued Interest Receivable Upon
adoption of ASU 2016- 13 and its related amendments on January 1, 2023, the Company made the following elections regarding
accrued interest receivable: ¢ Presenting accrued interest receivable balances separately within another line item on the
statement of financial condition. Accrued interest receivable on loans and leases totaled $ 9, 077 and $ 8, 413 as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Accrued interest receivable on debt securities totaled $ 4,376 and $ 4, 406 as
of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Both are included in accrued interest receivable on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets. « Excluding accrued interest receivable that is included in the amortized cost of financing receivables and debt
securities from related disclosure requirements. * Continuing our policy to write off accrued interest receivable by reversing
interest income. For both eommeretat-and-eonsumer-loans and leases , the write off typically occurs upon becoming 90 days
past due. Historically, the Company has not experienced uncollectible accrued interest receivable on its investment securities.
However, the Company would generally write off accrued interest receivable by reversing interest income if the Company does
not reasonably expect to receive payments. Due to the timely manner in which accrued interest receivables are written off, the
amounts of such write offs are immaterial. * Not measuring an allowance for credit losses for accrued interest receivable due to
the Company’ s policy of writing off uncollectible accrued interest receivable balances in a timely manner, as described above.
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Contined)-Reserve for Unfunded Commitments The reserve for unfunded commitments (the “ Unfunded Reserve )
represents the expected credit losses on off- balance sheet commitments such as unfunded commitments to extend credit and
standby letters of credit. No allowance is recognized if the Company has the unconditional right to cancel the obligation. The
Company is defining unconditionally cancelable in its literal sense, meaning that a commitment may be cancelled by the
Company for any, or for no reason whatsoever. However, the Company in its business dealings, has no practical history of
unconditionally canceling commitments. Commitments are not typically cancelled until a default or a defined condition occurs.
Being that its historical practice has been to not cancel credit commitments unconditionally, the Company has made the decision
to reserve for Unfunded Commitments. The Unfunded Reserve is recognized as a liability (included within accrued expenses



and other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets), with adjustments to the reserve recognized as reninterestexpense
provision for credit losses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The Unfunded Reserve is determined by estimating
expected future fundings, under each segment, and applying the expected loss rates. Expected future fundings over the estimated
life of commitments are based on historical averages of funding rates (i. e., the likelihood of draws taken). To estimate future
fundings on unfunded balances, current funding rates are compared to hrstoncal fundrng rates. Estimate of credit losqe% are
determrned uqrng the same loss rates as funded loan% - stimates: prepare-finaneial statementsineonform h

ehange— Adoptron of New Accountrng Standards ln June 2016, the F 1nancral Accountrng Standards Board (the “ FASB ”)
issued Accounting Standards Update (“ ASU ”) 2016- 13, Financial Instruments — Credit Losses: Measurement of Credit Losses
on Financial Instruments (“ ASU 2016- 13 ™). The ASU introduces a new credit loss methodology, CECL, which requires earlier
recognition of credit losses, while also providing additional transparency about credit risk. Since its original issuance in 2016,
the FASB has issued several updates to the original ASU. The CECL methodology utilizes a lifetime “ expected credit loss
measurement objective for the recognition of credit losses for loans, held- to- maturity securities and other receivables at the
time the financial asset is originated or acquired. The expected credit losses are adjusted each period for changes in expected
lifetime credit losses. The methodology replaces the multiple existing impairment methods under prior GAAP, which generally
require that a loss be incurred before it is recognized. For available- for- sale securities where fair value is less than cost, credit-
related impairment, if any, is recognized through an allowance for credit losses and adjusted each period for changes in credit
risk. On January 1, 2023, the Company adopted the guidance prospectively with a cumulative adjustment to retained earnings.
The Company has not restated comparative information for 2022 and, therefore, the comparative information for 2022 is
reported under the old model and is not cornparable to the 1nforn1atron preqented for the years December 31, 2023 and —66

-PGHGI—E—S—GGoﬁ&ﬂued)—At adoptron the Company recognrzed an 1ncre1nental allowance for credit losqe% on its loan% to
customers of $ 4. 3 million, a liability for off- balance sheet unfunded commitments of $ 3. 4 million and a reclassification of the
discount on PCI loans to the ACL of $ 1. 7 million. Additionally, the Company recorded a $ 6. 1 million after tax decrease in
retained earnings associated with the increased estimated credit losses. The “ Day 1 ” impact of CECL adoption is summarized
below: CECL Adoption Impact of CECL Adoption Adopting ASC 326- December 31, 2022 Impact PCD Loans January 1, 2023
Allowance for Credit Losses: Commercial & Agriculture $ 3,011 $ $ $ 3, 830 Commercial Real Estate: Owner Occupied 4, 565
1,075 5, 819 Non- Owner Occupied 14, 138 (2, 847) — 11, 291 Residential Real Estate 3, 145 2, 762 6, 293 Real Estate
Construction 2, 293 1, 502 — 3, 795 Farm Real Estate (28) — Lease Financing Receivable 1, 743 2, 807 Consumer and Other
Unallocated (541) — — Total Allowance for Credit Losses $ 28, 511 $ 4,296 $ 1, 668 $ 34, 475 Reserve for Unfunded
Commitments — 3, 386 — 3, 386 Total Reserve for Credit Losses $ 28, 511 $ 7, 682 $ 1, 668 $ 37, 861 Retained Earnings

Total Pre- tax lmpact $ (7 682) Tax Effect 1,613 Decreaqe to Reta1ned Earnrngs $ (6 069) the—Gefnpany—adopted—Aeeeuﬂt-mg

fetamed—eamrﬂgs—e%—é—l—nﬁnl—heﬂ—upoﬁ—adepﬁen—The allowance for credrt losqe% is evaluated ona regular basis and establr%hed

through charges to earnings in the form of a provision for credit losses. When a loan or portion of a loan is determined to be
uncollectible, the portion deemed uncollectible is charged against the allowance and subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited
to the allowance. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as
more 1nfor1nat10n becomes avarlable #%%BANGSHARES—H@&N@?ES—TG%@NS@E}BAJPEB—F{NAN%

SlGN}F{GAN:PAGGGUN:PHJG—PGHGPE-S{GoﬁHﬂﬁed)-The Company d1d not record an allowance for avarlable for- %ale
securities on Day 1 as the investment portfolio consists primarily of debt securities explicitly or implicitly backed by the U. S.
Government for which credit risk is deemed minimal. The impact going forward will depend on the composition,
characteristics, and credit quality of the securities portfolio as well as the economic conditions at future reporting periods. On
January 1, 2023, the Company adopted ASU 2022- 02, Financial Instruments- Credit Losses (Topic 326): Troubled Debt
Restructurings and Vintage Disclosures (" ASU 2022- 02"). ASU 2022- 02 eliminates the recognition and measurement
guidance for troubled debt restructurings and requires enhanced disclosures about loan modifications for borrowers
experiencing financial difficulty. This ASU also requires enhanced disclosure for loans that have been charged off. The
adoption of ASU 2022- 02 provisions did not have a significant impact on the Company’ s Consolidated Financial Statements.



Loan Charge- off Policies: All unsecured open- and closed- ended retail loans that become past due 90 days from the contractual
due date are charged off in full. In licu of charging off the entire loan balance, loans with non- real estate collateral may be
written down to the net realizable value of the collateral, if repossession of collateral is assured and in process. For open- and
closed- ended loans secured by residential real estate, a current assessment of fair value is made no later than 180 days past due.
Any outstanding loan balance in excess of the net realizable value of the property is charged off. All other loans are generally
charged down to the net realizable value when Civista recognizes the loan is permanently impaired, which is generally after the
loan is 90 days past due. Prior to the adoption of ASU 2016- 13, the allowance for loan losses (allowance) was calculated
with the objective of maintaining a reserve sufficient to absorb inherent loan losses in the loan portfolio. Management
established the allowance for loan losses based upon its evaluation of the pertinent factors underlying the types and
quality of loans in the portfolio. In determining the allowance and the related provision for loan losses, the Company
considered three principal elements: (i) specific impairment reserve allocations (valuation allowances) based upon
probable losses identified during the review of impaired loans in the Commercial loan portfolio, (ii) allocations
established for adversely- rated loans in the Commercial loan portfolio and nonaccrual Real Estate Residential,
Consumer installment and Home Equity loans, and (iii) allocations on all other loans based principally on the use of a
three- year period for loss migration analysis. These allocations were adjusted for consideration of general economic and
business conditions, credit quality and delinquency trends, collateral values, and recent loss experience for these similar
pools of loans. The Company analyzed its loan portfolio each quarter to determine the appropriateness of its allowance
for loan losses. Transfers of Financial Assets: Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over
the assets has been surrendered. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when the assets have been
isolated from the Company, the transferee obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of
that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and the Company does not maintain effective control over the
transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before maturity. Other Real Estate: Other real estate acquired
through or instead of loan foreclosure is initially recorded at fair value less costs to sell when acquired, establishing a new cost
basis and any deficiency in the value is charged off through the allowance. If fair value declines subsequent to foreclosure, a
valuation allowance is recorded through expen@e Operatmg costs after acqulirtlon are expen@ed 68 CIVISTA BANCSHARES
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSDecember 31 2023 a-nd—Neﬂva{-}eeemmtmﬁy—Beve}e}ﬁenf
, aH-ofvwhteh-2022 and 2021 (Amounts in thousands,except are-share e&med—&t—eest—data) NOTE 1-
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) Federal Home Loan Bank (+FHLB %)
Stock:Civista is a member of the FHLB of Cincinnati and as such,is required to maintain a minimum investment in stock of the
FHLB that varies with the level of advances outstanding with the FHLB.The stock is bought from and sold to the FHLB based
upon its $ 100 par value.The stock does not have a readily determinable fair value and as such is classified as restricted
stock,carried at cost and evaluated for impairment by management.The stock’ s value is determined by the ultimate
recoverability of the par value rather than by recognizing temporary declines.The determination of whether the par value will
ultimately be recovered is influenced by criteria such as the following:(a) the significance of the decline in net assets of the
FHLB as compared to the capital stock amount and the length of time this situation has persisted,(b) commitments by the FHLB
to make payments required by law or regulation and the level of such payments in relation to the operating performance,(c) the
impact of legislative and regulatory changes on the customer base of the FHLB,and (d) the liquidity position of the FHLB.With
consideration given to these factors,management concluded that the FHLB stock was not impaired at December 31, 2024-2023
or 2023-2022 FHLB Stock is included in Other Securities on the Consolidated Balance SheetFederal SheetFederal-Reserve
Bank (+FRB ) Stock:Civista is a member of the Federal Reserve System.FRB stock is carried at cost,classified as a restricted
security,and periodically evaluated for impairment based on ultimate recovery of par value.FRB Stock is included in Other
Securities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. . Premises and Equipment: Land is carried at cost. Premises and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using both accelerated and straight- line methods over
the estimated useful life of the asset, ranging from three to seven years for furniture and equipment and seven to fifty years for
buildings and improvements. Equipment Owned Under Operating Leases: As a lessor, the Company finances equipment under
leases to a wide variety of customers, from commercial and industrial to government and healthcare classified as operating
leases. The equipment underlying the operating leases is reported at cost, net of accumulated depreciation, within Premises and
Equipment on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. These operating lease arrangements require the lessee to make a fixed monthly
rental payment over a specified lease term generally ranging from three 3-years-to 6-six years. Revenue consists of the
contractual lease payments and is recognized on a straight- line basis over the lease term and reported in Noninterest Income on
the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Leased assets are depreciated on a straight- line method over the lease term to the
estimate of the equipment’ s fair market value at lease termination, also referred to as “ residual ” value. The depreciation of
these operating lease assets is reported in Noninterest Expense on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. For equipment
leases, fair value may be based upon observable market prices, third- party valuations, or prices received on sales of similar
assets at the end of the lease term. These residual values are reviewed annually to ensure the recorded amount does not exceed
the fair market value at the lease termination. At the end of the lease, the operating lease asset is either purchased by the lessee
or returned to the Company. 68 CIVISTA BANCSHARES, INC. NOTES...... Securities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.
Bank Owned Life Insurance (" BOLI " ): Civista has purchased BOLI policies on certain key executives. BOLI is recorded at
the amount that can be realized under the insurance contract at the balance sheet date, which is the cash surrender value adjusted
for other charges or other amounts due that are probable at settlement. Changes in the cash surrender value are recorded as
income in the period that the change occurs. Goodwill and ©ther-Core Deposit fntangible-Intangibles Assets— Goodwill results
from business acquisitions and represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of acquired tangible assets and



liabilities and identifiable intangible assets. Goodwill is assessed at least annually for impairment and any such impairment will
be recognized in the period identified. Other-intangible-assets-eonsistofeore-Core deposit intangibles arising from whole bank
and branch acquisitions are included in other intangible assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets . These intangible assets
are measured at fair value and then amortized on an accelerated method over their estimated useful lives, which range from five
to #wekve-12 years. On January 1, 2023, the Company adopted ASU 2017- 04, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other (Topic 350):
Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment. To simplify the subsequent measurement of goodwill, the FASB eliminated Step
2 from the goodwill impairment test. In computing the implied fair value of goodwill under Step 2, an entity had to perform
procedures to determine the fair value at the impairment testing date of its assets and liabilities (including unrecognized assets
and liabilities) following the procedure that would be required in determining the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed in a business combination. Instead, under the amendments in this Update, an entity should perform its annual, or
interim, goodwill impairment test by comparing the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount. An entity should
recognize an impairment charge for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the reporting unit’ s fair value; however,
the loss recognized should not exceed the total amount of goodwill allocated to that reporting unit. A public business entity that
is an SEC filer, such as the Company, was to adopt the amendments in this Update for its annual or any interim goodwill
impairment tests in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. In November 2019, however, the FASB issued ASU 2019-
10, Financial Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326), Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815), and Leases (Topic 842), which
deferred the effective date for ASC 350, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other, for SEC filers that were eligible to be smaller
reporting companies as of November 15, 2019, such as the Company, to fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, and
interim periods within those fiscal years. The adoption of the ASU provisions did not have a significant impact on the Company'
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S}GI’HFIGAN:PAGGGUN:HNG—PGHGPES{GeﬂHﬂued)-Mngage Serv1c1ng nghts Mortgage servicing rlghts are recognlzed
as assets for the allocated value of retained mortgage servicing rights on loans sold and are recorded in other intangible assets
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets . Mortgage servicing rights are initially recorded at fair value at the date of transfer. The
valuation technique uses the present value of estimated future cash flows using current market discount rates. Mortgage
servicing rights are amortized in proportion to, and over the period of, estimated net servicing revenues. Impairment is evaluated
based on the fair value of the rights, using groupings of the underlying loans as to interest rates and then, secondarily,
prepayment characteristics. Fair value is determined using prices for similar assets with similar characteristics, when available,
or based upon discounted cash flows using market- based assumptions. Any impairment of a grouping is reported as a valuation
allowance to the extent that fair value is less than the capitalized asset for the grouping. Long- lived Assets: Premises and
equipment and other intangible assets, and other long- term assets are reviewed for impairment when events indicate their
carrying amount may not be recoverable from future undiscounted cash flows. If impaired, the assets are recorded at fair value.
Repurchase Agreements: Substantially all repurchase agreement liabilities represent amounts advanced by various customers.
Securities are pledged to cover these liabilities, which are not covered by federal deposit insurance. Loan Commitments and
Related Financial Instruments: Financial instruments include off- balance sheet credit instruments, such as commitments to
make loans and commercial letters of credit, issued to meet customer financing needs. The face amount for these items
represents the exposure to loss, before considering customer collateral or ability to repay. Debt Issuance Costs: Costs
associated with the issuance of debt are presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as a direct reduction from the
carrying value of that debt liability. The deferred issuance costs are amortized over the life of the related debt
instrument and included within the debt' s interest expense. Advertising Costs: Advertising costs are expensed as
incurred. Income Taxes: Income tax expense is the total of the current year income tax due or refundable and the change in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are the expected future tax amounts for the temporary
differences between carrying amounts and tax basis of assets and liabilities, computed using enacted tax rates. A valuation
allowance, if needed, reduces deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized. The Company prescribes a recognition
threshold and a measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. Benefits from tax positions should be recognized in the financial statements only when it is
more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained upon examination by the appropriate taxing authority that would
have full knowledge of all relevant information. A tax position that meets the more- likely- than- not recognition threshold is
measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 % likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. Tax
positions that previously failed to meet the more- likely- than- not recognition threshold should be recognized in the first
subsequent financial reporting period in which that threshold is met. Previously recognized tax positions that no longer meet the
more- likely- than- not recognition threshold should be derecognized in the first subsequent financial reporting period in which
that threshold is no longer met. The Company recognlzes interest and / or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax

-PGHGI—E—S—(Gen&ﬂued)—Stock Based Compensatlon Compensatlon cost is recogmzed for stock optlons and restrlcted stock
awards issued to employees and directors, based on the fair value of these awards at the grant date. The market price of the
Company’ s common shares at the date of the grant is used for restricted shares. Compensation cost is recognized over the
required service period, generally defined as the vesting period. For awards with graded vesting, compensation cost is
recognized on a straight- line basis over the requisite service period for the entire award. Retirement Plans: Pension expense is
the net of service and interest cost, expected return on plan assets and amortization of gains and losses not immediately
recognized. Employee 401 (k) and profit sharing plan expense consists of the amount of matching contributions. Deferred
compensation allocates the benefits over the years of service. Earnings per Common Share: Earnings per share is computed



using the two- class method. Basic earnings per share are net income available to common shareholders divided by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding during the period, which excludes participating securities. Diluted earnings per
common share include the dilutive effect of additional potential common shares issuable related to convertible preferred shares.
Treasury shares are not deemed outstanding for earnings per share calculations. Comprehensive Income (Loss): Comprehensive
income consists of net income and other comprehensive income (loss). Other comprehensive income (loss) includes unrealized
gains and losses on securities available for sale and changes in the funded status of the pension plan. Loss Contingencies: Loss
contingencies, including claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business, are recorded as liabilities when the
likelihood of loss is probable and an amount or range of loss can be reasonably estimated. Management does not believe that any
such loss contingencies currently exist that will have a material effect on the financial statements. Restrictions on Cash: Cash on
hand or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank is required to meet regulatory reserve and clearing requirements. These
balances do not earn interest. The required reserve amount at December 31, 2623-2024 was $ 0. The Company did not have any
cash pledged as collateral on its interest rate swaps with third party financial institutions at December 31, 2623-2024 . Dividend
Restriction: Banking regulations require maintaining certain capital levels and may limit the dividends paid by Civista to CBI or
by CBI to shareholders. Additional information related to dividend restrictions can be found in Note 19. Fair Value of Financial
Instruments: Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant market information and other assumptions that
reflect exit price value, as more fully disclosed in Note 17. Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of significant
judgment regarding interest rates, credit risk, prepayments, and other factors, especially in the absence of broad markets for
particular items. Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could 51gn1ﬁcantly affect these estimates. H-EPASTA

Operatmg Segments Whlle the Cornpany s chief operatmg decision fﬁa-kefs» maker fneﬂﬁer—momtors the revenue streams of
the Company’ s various products and services, operations are managed and financial performance is evaluated on a Company-
wide basis. The Company has determined that all of its financial service operations meet the aggregation criteria of ASC
280, Segment Reporting, as its current Operating-operating segments-model is structured whereby financial service
operations serve a similar base of retail and commercial customers utilizing a company- wide offering of similar
products and services managed through similar processes that arc aggregated-into-one-collectively reviewed by the
Company' s Chief Financial Officer, who has been identified as the chief operating fes&l-fs—feiea-l-l-segmeﬁts—afe—smn%af
decision maker (" CODM") . Aeeordingly-Therefore , all of the Company” s financial service operations are considered by
management-the CODM to be aggregated in one reportable operating segment. Treasury Stock: CBI common shares that......
underlying indexes are no longer published. In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023- 07, -Segment Reporting (Topic
280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures. +-The amendments in this ASU apply to all public entities that are
required to report segment information in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 280, Segment Reporting. The amendments in the
this ASU are intended to improve reportable segment disclosure requirements primarily through enhanced disclosures about
significant segment expenses. The amendments require that a public entity disclose, on an annual and interim basis, significant
segment expenses that are regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker (" CODM") and included within each
reported measure of segment profit or loss. Public entities are required to disclose, on an annual and interim basis, an amount for
other segment items by reportable segment and a description of its composition. In addition, public entities must provide all
annual disclosures about a reportable segment’ s profit or loss and assets currently required by FASB ASC Topic 280, Segment
Reporting, in interim periods. The amendments clarify that if the CODM uses more than one measure of a segment’ s profit or
loss in assessing segment performance and deciding how to allocate resources, a public entity may report one or more of those
additional measures of segment profit. However, at least one of the reported segment profit or loss measures (or the single
reported measure, if only one is disclosed) should be the measure that is most consistent with the measurement principles used
in measuring the corresponding amounts in the public entity” s consolidated financial statements. The Amendments
amendments require that a public entity disclose the title and position of the CODM and an explanation of how the CODM
uses the reported measure (s) of segment profit or loss in assessing segment performance and deciding how to allocate
resources. Finally, the amendments require that a public entity that has a single reportable segment provide all the disclosures
required by the amendments in the ASU and all existing segment disclosures in ASC Topic 280. The ASU is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. Early
adoption is permitted. A public entity should apply the amendments retrospectively to all prior periods presented in the financial
statements. Upon transition, the segment expense categories and amounts disclosed in the prior periods should be based on the
significant segment expense categories identified and disclosed in the period of adoption. The Company adepted ASU 2023- 07
in 2024 with little impact as currently,the Company' s financial service operations are considered by management to be
aggregated in one reportable operating segment. Treasury Stock:CBI common shares that are repurchased are recorded in
treasury stock at cost.Business Combinations:At the date of acquisition the Company records the assets and liabilities of
acquired companies on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at their fair value.The results of operations for acquired companies are
included in the Company’ s Consolidated Statements of Operations beginning at the acquisition date.Expenses arising from
acquisition activities are recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Operations during the period incurred.Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities:The Company enters into interest rate swap agreements to facilitate the risk management
strategies of a small number of commercial banking customers.All derivatives are accounted for in accordance with ASC-
815,Derivatives and Hedging. The Company mitigates the risk of entering into these agreements by entering into equal and
offsetting swap agreements with highly rated third party financial institutions.The swap agreements are free- standing
derivatives and are recorded at fair value in the Company’ s Consolidated Balance Sheets Changes in falr Value are recorded as
income or expense in the period that they occur.The Company is-party : ; : : ;




ee-l-}a-tera-l—rn—ls eﬂﬁeﬂt-}y—eva-l-uat-rﬂg—party to master nettlng arrangements w1th its financial 1nst1tut10n counterpartles The
master netting arrangements provide for a single net settlement of all swap agreements, as well as collateral, in the
potential-event of default on, or termination of, any one contract. Collateral, in the form of cash and marketable
securities, is posted by the counterparty with net liability positions in accordance with contract thresholds. In March
2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020- 04, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate
Reform on Financial Reporting. The Update is designed to provide relief from the accounting analysis and impacts
related-that may otherwise be required for modifications to the-agreements necessitated by reference rate reform. The
Update also provides adeption—- optional efthe-ASUH-expedients to enable companies to continue to apply hedge
accountlng to certaln hedglng relatlonshlps 1mpacted by reference rate reform . The amendments in this Update the
otid vatue-arc effective recorded-asineome-or-for expense-inthe-pertod
t-hat—all ent1t1es as of March 12,2020 through December 31,2022;however,a deferral of they— the eeetr-implementation of
reference rate reform was issued in December of 2022,which extended the implementation to December 31,2024 . The
Company ts-party-has implemented a replacement for the reference rate using the Secured Overnight Financing Rate ("
SOFR") or the Prime Rate and has determined that the changes to maste%nett—mg—arr&ngemeﬂ-ts—wrth—rts—the reference rate
did not have a material impact on our financial condition iss aster-netttg g
for-a-single-netsetdement-of-all-swap-agreements-, results as—wel-l—as—ee-l-}a-tefa-l—rn—t-he—eveﬁt—of operatlons éefaul-t—eﬂ—or
term%n&ﬁeﬁ—eﬁany—eﬂe-eeﬂtfaeﬁ@eﬁatera{:ifrﬂ&e—fern%eﬁcash flows S coHt A
ret-Hability-posttionsinaceordanee-with-eontraet-thresh .Revisions: ( ertain revisions have been mdde to the 2022 aﬂd%@%l—
COHSOllddted financial statements. The fair market value for loans disclosed in Note 17 as of December 31,2022,was revised from
$ 2,160,920 to $ 2,528,906 due to an error in the calculation.Loans and secured borrowings increased $ 101,615 in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31,2022, for certain loan participations sold that were deemed to not qualify for
sales accounting under ASC 860.Interest income and interest expense increased $ 4,902 and $ 3,312 respectively in the
Consolidated Statement of Operations as of and for the years— year ended December 31,2022 and-262+for certain loan
participations sold that were deemed to not qualify for sales accounting under ASC 860.These revisions did not have a
significant impact on the Company' s eensotidated-Consolidated finanetal-Financial statement-Statement line items impacted
and had no effect on net income.Effect of Newly Issued but Not Yet Effective Accounting Standards: fa-In December 2023, the
FASB issued ASU 2023- 09, *-Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures. *~The amendments in this
ASU require that public business entities on an annual basis (a) disclose specific categories in the rate reconciliation and (b)
provide additional information for reconciling items that meet a quantitative threshold (if the effect of those reconciling items is
equal to or greater than 5 percent of the amount computed by multiplying pretax income or loss by the applicable statutory
income tax rate). The amendments in this ASU also require that all entities disclose on an annual basis the amount of income
taxes paid (net of refunds received) disaggregated by federal (national), state, and foreign taxes, and the amount of income taxes
paid (net of refunds received) disaggregated by individual jurisdictions in which income taxes paid (net of refunds received) is
equal to or greater than 5 percent of total income taxes paid (net of refunds received). The amendments require that all entities
disclose income (or loss) from continuing operations before income tax expense (or benefit) disaggregated between domestic
and foreign and income tax expense (or benefit) from continuing operations disaggregated by federal (national), state, and
foreign. Fhe-ASU 2023- 09 is effective for public business entities for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024. Early
adoption is permitted for annual financial statements that have not yet been issued or made available for issuance. The
amendments should be applied on a prospective basis. Retrospective application is permitted. The Company does not intend to
adopt early. The Company does not anticipate a material impact to the Company' s Consolidated Financial Statements.
In March 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024- 01, Compensation- Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Scope Application of
Profits Interest and Similar Awards. The amendments clarify how an entity determines whether a profits interest or
similar award is (i) within scope of Compensation- Stock Compensation (Topic 718) or (ii) not a share- based payment
arrangements and therefore within the scope of other guidance. The amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2024. The Company does not anticipate these amendments will have a material impact on the
Company' s Consolidated Financial Statements. In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024- 03: Income Statement-
Reporting Comprehensive Income Expense Disaggregation Disclosures (Subtopic 220- 40); Disaggregation of Income
Statement Expenses. This ASU requires disaggregation of certain expense captions into specified categories in disclosures
within the footnotes to the financial statements. This ASU does not change the expense captions an entity presents on the
face of the income statement. ASU 2024- 03 can be applied prospectively, and it is effective for annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2026, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2027. Early adoption and
retrospective applications are permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the petentiaHmpaets— impact related-to-the
adeptierrof the-ASU 2024- 03 on its Consolidated Financial Statements . NOTE 2- ACQUISITIONSOn July 1, 2022, CBI
completed the acquisition by merger of Comunibanc Corp. in a stock and cash transaction for aggregate Consideration of
approximately $ 46, 090. As a result of the acquisition, the Company issued 984, 723 common shares and paid approximately $
24,968 in cash to the former shareholders of Comunibanc Corp. The Company and Comunibanc Corp. had first announced that
they had entered into an agreement to merge in January of 2022. Immediately following the merger, Comunibanc Corp.’ s
banking subsidiary, The Henry County Bank (" HCB " ), was merged into CBI” s banking subsidiary, Civista Bank. The assets
and liabilities of Comunibanc Corp. were recorded on the Company’ s Consolidated Balance Sheet at their preliminary
estimated fair values as of July 1,2022, the dcqumtlon date. The Company recorded ‘{> 26,209 in goodwill and $ 4, 426 in core
deposit intangibles 3 d : . None of the
purchase price is deductible for th purposes. At the time of the merger, Comunlbdm Corp had total COHSOllddted assets of §




315, 083, including $ 175, 500 in loans, and $ 271, 081 in deposits. The transaction was recorded as a purchase and, accordingly,
the operating results of Comunibanc Corp. and HCB have been included in the Company’ s Consolidated Financial Statements
since the close of business on July 1, 2022. Identifiable intangibles are amortized to their estimated residual values over the
expected useful lives. Such lives are also periodically reassessed to determine if any amortization period adjustments are
required. The identifiable intangible assets consist of core deposit intangible which is being amortized over the estimated useful
life. The gross carrying amount of the core deposit intangible at December 31, 2022 was $ 3, 999. In connection with the
Comunibanc merger in 2022, the Company incurred additional third- party acquisition- related costs of $ 2 , 900 —9-mitten-.
These expenses are-were comprised of employee benefits of $ 210. 7 theusand-, occupancy and equipment expenses of $ 110. 7
theusand-, software expense of $ 36. 0 theusand-, consulting and other professional fees of § 905. 2 theusand-, data processing
costs of § 1, 000 —8-miHien-and other operating expenses of $ 647. 5 theusand-in the Company’ s Consolidated Statement of
Operations for the twelve- month period ended December 31, 2022. As of December 31, 2022, the estimated future amortization
expense for the core deposit intangible is as follows: Core deposit intangibles $ Thereafter 1, 006 $ 3, 999 The following table
presents financial information for the former Comunibanc Corp. included in the Consolidated Statements of Operations from the
date of acquisition through December 31, 2022. Actual FromAcquisition DateThrough December 31, 2022 (in thousands) Net
interest income after provrsron for loan losses $ 3 428 Nonrnterest income Net income 1, 719 MGNPS%A—BANGSH—AKE—S—

The follow1ng table presents pro forma information for the twelve-
month periods ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020 as if the acquisition of Comunibanc Corp. had occurred on January 1,
2020. This table has been prepared for comparative purposes only and is not indicative of the actual results that would have been
attained had the acquisition occurred as of the beginning of the periods presented, nor is it indicative of future results.
Furthermore, the unaudited pro forma information does not reflect management’ s estimate of any revenue- enhancing
opportunities nor anticipated cost savings as a result of the integration and consolidation of the acquisition. Pro Formas
(unaudited) Twelve Monthsended December 31, Net interest income after provision for loan losses $ 113, 689 $ 103, 583 § 88,
293 Noninterest income 29, 451 32, 768 29, 870 Net income 39, 095 42, 482 34, 374 Pro forma earnings per share: Basic § 2. 42
$2.59$2.01 Diluted $ 2. 42 $2.59 $ 2. 01 The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition for Comunibanc Corp. Core deposit intangibles will be amortized over ten
years using an accelerated method. Goodwill will not be amortized, but instead will be evaluated for impairment. Cash paid $
24, 968 Common shares issued (984, 723 shares) 21, 122 Total $ 46, 090 Net assets acquired: Cash and due from financial
institutions $ 3, 098 Securities available for sale 120, 399 Time deposits Loans, net 169, 202 Other securities 1, 553 Premises
and equipment 4, 665 Accrued interest receivable Core deposit intangible 4, 426 Bank owned life insurance 5, 918 Other assets
3, 767 Noninterest- bearing deposits (122, 642) Interest- bearing deposits (148, 552) Other borrowings (21, 706) Other liabilities
(1, 659) 19, 881 Goodwill resulting from Comunibanc Corp. acquisition $ 26, 209 Loans purchased with evidence of credit
deterioration since origination and for which it was probable that all contractually required payments would not be collected
were considered to be credit impaired. Evidence of credit quality deterioration as of the purchase date included information such
as past- due and nonaccrual status, borrower credit scores and recent loan to value percentages. Purchased credit- impaired loans
were accounted for under the accounting guidance for loans and debt securities acquired with deteriorated credit quality (ASC
310- 30) and initially measured at fair value, which included estimated future credit losses expected to be incurred over the life
of the loan. Accordingly, an allowance for credit losses related to these loans was not carried over and recorded at the
acquisition date. Management estimated the cash flows expected to be collected at acquisition using our internal risk models,
which incorporated the estimate of the current assurnpt10ns such as default rates, severrty and prepayment speeds %—GI—VI-STA-

notnts-in-thousands;exeept-share-data ptied)-The follow1ng table presents additional
information regarding loans acqurred and accounted for in accordance with ASC 310- 30: At December 31, 2022 Acquired
Loans withSpecific Evidence ofDeterioration of CreditQuality (ASC 310- 30) (In Thousands) Outstanding balance $4,768
Carrying amount 4, 121 The gross principal due under the contract for acquired receivables not subject to ASC 310-30is $ 171.
1 million. The fair value adjustment is $ 2. 1 million and the contractual cash flows not expected to be collected is $ 5. 7 million.
The acquired assets and liabilities were measured at estimated fair values. Management made certain estimates and exercised
judgment in accounting for the acquisition. The amount of goodwill recorded reflects a strategic opportunity to expand into new
markets that, while similar to existing markets, are projected to be more vibrant in population growth and business opportunity
growth. The goodwill represents the excess purchase price over the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired. Additionally,
the acquisition will provide exposure to suburbs of larger urban areas without the commitment of operating inside large
metropolitan areas dominated by regional and national financial organizations. The acquisition is also expected to create
synergies on the operational side of the Company by allowing noninterest expenses to be spread over a larger operating base. On
October 3, 2022, CBI and Civista completed the acquisition by Civista of all of the issued and outstanding shares of capital
stock of VFG for aggregate cash and stock consideration of approximately $ 46, 544. As a result of the acquisition, the
Company issued 500, 293 common shares and paid approximately $ 36, 044 in cash. The assets and liabilities of VFG were
recorded on the Company’ s Consolidated Balance Sheet at their prellmlnary estrrnated farr Values as of October 3,2022, the
acquisition date. The Company recorded $ 22, 635 in goodwill Ag-th
342624 None of the purchase price is deductible for tax purposes. At the time of the acqu1s1tlon VF G had total consolrdated
assets of $ 93, 870, including $ 62, 712 in loans and leases. The transaction was recorded as a purchase and, accordingly, the
operating results of VFG have been included in the Company’ s Consolidated Financial Statements since the close of business
on October 3, 2022. Effective as of August 31, 2023, VFG was merged with and into Civista, and CLF is now operated as a full-
service general equipment leasing and financing division of Civista. In connection with the VFG acquisition in 2022, the




Company incurred additional third- party acquisition- related costs of $ 814.3 t-heusaﬁd— These expenses afe—were malnly
comprised of consulting and other professional fees of § 812. 8 thousand-and-oth perating
Company S Consohdated Statement of Operatlons for the twelve month perlod ended December 31, 2022 —7-6—@1—\4—851“14:

motnts-in-thousandsexeept-share-data ptied)-The followmg table presents financial
information for VFG 1ncluded in the Consohdated Statements of Operatlons from the date of acquisition through December 31,
2022. Actual FromAcquisition DateThrough December 31, 2022 (in thousands) Net interest income after provision for loan
losses $ Noninterest income 3, 926 Net loss (992) Pro forma information for the twelve- month periods ended December 31,
2022, 2021 and 2020 is not presented as the acquisition of VFG was determined to not te-be a significant transaction. The
following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition for
VFG. Goodwill will not be amortized, but instead will be evaluated for impairment. Cash paid $ 36, 044 Common shares issued
(250, 145 shares) 5, 250 Common shares issued (contingent consideration) (250, 148 shares) 5, 250 Total $ 46, 544 Net assets
acquired: Cash and due from financial institutions $ 6, 271 Time Deposits Loans, net 61, 418 Premises and equipment 35, 039
Other assets 1, 409 Other borrowings (58, 142) Other liabilities (22, 166) 23, 909 Goodwill resulting from VFG acquisition $ 22,
635 Loans purchased with evidence of credit deterioration since origination and for which it was probable that all contractually
required payments would not be collected were considered to be credit impaired. Evidence of credit quality deterioration as of
the purchase date included information such as past- due and nonaccrual status, borrower credit scores and recent loan to value
percentages. Purchased credit- impaired loans were accounted for under the accounting guidance for loans and debt securities
acquired with deteriorated credit quality (ASC 310- 30) and initially measured at fair value, which included estimated future
credit losses expected to be incurred over the life of the loan. Accordingly, an allowance for credit losses related to these loans
was not carried over and recorded at the acquisition date. Management estimated the cash flows expected to be collected at
acqulsrtlon using our internal risk models, which incorporated the estimate of the current assumptions, such as default rates,

f@eﬁ&nued)—The contrngent cons1derat10n arrangement feqtufes—requlred Gwrsta—the Company to pay the former owners of
VFG, over two years, and subject to meeting certain lease origination thresholds for each year, or meeting a combined threshold
for the two years, up to a maximum amount of § 5, 250, undiscounted. The potential undiscounted amount of all future
payments €tvista-the Company could be required to make under the contingent consideration arrangement s-was between $ 0
and $ 5, 250. The fair value of the contingent consideration arrangement of $ 5, 250 was estimated based on significant inputs
that are not observable in the market, which are considered Level 3 inputs in accordance with ASC Topic 820. Key assumptions
inelude-included the CIVB share price at close, management’ s assumptions and the probability that the vesting thresholds it
would be met. The common shares subject to the contingent consideration arrangement were have-been-issucd upon the
closing of the transaction and are-were considered restricted with participating rights with voting, dividends and distribution
rights prior to vesting or forfeiture. H-As a result of the failure of the lcase erigination-thresholds are-netto be met for the two-
year periods ended December 31, 2024 . the shares were issaed-wil-be-forfeited and transferred from outstanding
common shares to treasury stock . The following table presents additional information regarding loans acquired and
accounted for in accordance with ASC 310- 30: At December 31, 2022 Acquired Loans withSpecific Evidence ofDeterioration
of CreditQuality (ASC 310- 30) (In Thousands) Outstanding balance $ Carrying amount — The gross principal due under the
contract for acquired receivables not subject to ASC 310- 30 is $ 62. 1 million. The fair value adjustment is $ 2. 3 million and
the contractual cash flows not expected to be collected is $ 658. 8 theusand-. The acquired assets and liabilities were measured
at estimated fair values. Management made certain estimates and exercised judgment in accounting for the acquisition. The
amount of goodwill recorded reflects the excess purchase price over the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired. NOTE 3-
SECURITIESThe amortized cost and fair value of available for sale securities and the related gross unrealized gains and losses
recognized were as follows: AmortizedCost GrossUnrealizedGains GrossUnrealizedLosses Fair Value U. S. Treasury securities
and obligations of U. S. government agencies $ 7100 , 4+8-378 § § (4-3 , 675294 ) § 6797 , 658387 Obligations of states and
political subdivisions 359-351 , 635 4522725+ 23-26 , 578-998 ) 338-325 , 599-119 Mortgage- back securities in government
sponsored entities 242-258 , 622-045 ( 30-32 , 626-581 ) 242-225 , 645-561 Total debt securities $ 710, 058 $ $ (672 62 , 873
-892—$—3—959—$—(5—7—67—9—) $ 6-1-8—648 067 %SGW}S%A—BAP%GSMES—H%&NG%JFG-GGNSGEHBHEB

-S-EGHRI—"H—E—S—(Geﬂt-muedé—AmortlzedCost GrossUnreahzedGams GrossUnreahzedLosses Fair Value U. S. Treasury securities
and obligations of U. S. government agencies $ 66-71 , 495418 § § (54 , 486-075 ) $ 6+67 ., 829-658 Obligations of states and
political subdivisions 356-359 , +064-452 2, 725 ( 23, 578) 33-338 , 599 640)3+7248-Mortgage- back securities in government
sponsored entitics 265-242 , 752-022 ( 28-30 , 642-026 ) 237212 , 425-015 Total debt securities $ 682355567672 , 892
F68y5 6153 ., 462-059 $ (57, 679) $ 618, 272 The amortized cost and fair value of securities at year - end 2623-2024 by
contractual maturity were as follows. Securities not due at a single maturity date, primarily mortgage- backed securities, are
shown separately. Available for sale Amortized Cost Fair Value Due in one year or less $ 2-39 , 652-927 § 2-39 , 652-777 Due
from one to five years 78-84 , 395-73-249 79 , +98-134 Due from five to ten years 3842 , 6737796 42 , 397100 Due after ten
years 3+0-285 , 956-293-041 261 , 6+6-495 Mortgage- backed securities in government sponsored entities 242-258 , 622242-045
225 845561 Total securities available for sale $ 672-710 , 892-058 $ 618-648 , 272-067 Sccuritics with a carrying value of $
206, 600 and $ 211, 616 and-$248;344-were pledged as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, respectively, to secure
public deposits, other deposits and liabilities as required or permitted by law. Proceeds from sales of securities, gross realized
gains and gross realized losses were as follows: Sale proceeds $ 2,994 $ — $ 57, 332 $4;-8+6-Gross realized gains — — 45785
Gross realized losses — — — Gains from securities called or settled by the issuer — — Debt securities with unrealized losses at



year - end 2024 and 2023 ard-2622-not recognized in income were as follows: 12 Months or less More than 12 months Total
Description of Securities FairValue UnrealizedLoss FairValue UnrealizedLoss FairValue UnrealizedLoss U. S. Treasury
securities and obligations of U. S. government agencies $ 32 $1)-$56-, 760-388 § ( 51 4,-674-) § 56-55 , 984-000 $ (4-3 , 675
243) $ 87, 388 $ (3, 294 ) Obligations of states and political subdivisions 98, 965 (806) 173, 668 (26, 19192 1+68+(78-) +62-272

, 204633 ( 23-26 , 998 5603181+-459-23-578-) Mortgage- backed securities in gov’ t sponsored entities 26-28 , H2-322 (522
+89-349-29-329 --564-) 209-186 , 431173 ( 30-32 , 626-252) 214, 495 (32, 581 ) Total temperardy-impaired-$ 39-159 , 564-675
‘{5 ( 1 186) $ 414 841 $ (69-1—~ 61 9—$—49'8— -3—7’-9—687) $ (57-574 516 97-89—‘{5 447—8—7‘4—$—( 5762 , 873 67-9)—7-9—@1%4—8%%

Description of Seulrmes Fan\/alue UmedllzedLoss Fan\/alue UnrealizedLoss Fan\/alue UmedllzedLoss U. S. Tleasmy
securities and obligations of U. S. government agencies $ 245-842-5 (886-1 ) $ 39567 56, 760 S (4, 666-074 ) S 66-56 , 669
984 $ (54 ,486-075 ) Obligations of states and political subdivisions +69— 19 , 594-168 ( 78 13-61+6-) 73-162 , 967291 ( 26;
6243243 23 | 56133-500) 181 , 646-459 (23, 578 ) Mortgage- backed securities in gov’ t sponsored entities H4-20 , 639-112 (
522 4-H3-) 124189 , 622-319 ( 23;929-- 29 3y236-, 261-(28-504) 209 . 642-431 (30, 026 ) Total temperaridy-impaired-5 362-39 ,
275504 5 ( 601 +8;-669-) $ 238-408 . +56-370 $ ( 49-57 , +59-078 ) § 546-447 , 43+-874 § ( 57, 67-679 768-) ForAFS-Each
quarter, we perform an analysis to determine if any of the unrealized losses on sccurities #-an-available- for- sale are
comprised of credit losses as compared to unrealized losses due to market interest rate adjustments. Our assessment
includes a review of the unrecalized loss pesitien-for each security issuance held; the financial condition and near- term
prospects of the issuer , we-first-assess-whether{(t-we-including external credit ratings and recent downgrades; and our
ability and intend-intent to set;-hold the security for a period of time sufficient for a recovery in value. We also consider

the extent to which the securities are issued by the federal government or {i-itis-more-tikely-thannetthat-we-with-be

feqﬂffed-te-sel-l—ﬂ%e—seetﬂw—befefe—feeeiew—e-ﬂts agencles amortized-eost-basis—1 etthereaseis-affirmative-, and any
guarantee previous oght G off— of issued amounts by those agencies. The portfolio continues

to consist of a mix of ﬁxed and ﬂoatlng- rate, hlgh quallty securltles, largely rated AA (or better), dlsplaymg &nd— an
overall effectlve duratlon of approx1mately 3 v v .

0 ettty Therefore{-ﬁﬂ&e—pfeseﬂH&}tte—e-ﬁeash
. o pr0v1s10n a—efed-rt—}ess-e*rsts—aﬁd-&ﬂ—&l-}ew&nee—l‘or credit

t-hese—aﬂa-l-yses—as—feqtﬁfed-by—pehey— At December 31, %92—3—2024 the Company owned %94—508 debt securities fh&t—wefe
eonstderedtemporaritytmpaired-with estimated fair values totaling $ 574, 516 and unrealized losses aggregating $ 62, 873.
Securities with a fair value of $ 301, 883, representing $ 35, 875 of the unrealized losses, consisted of bonds issued or
guaranteed by agencies of the U. S. federal government, while the remaining $ 272, 633 debt securities, representing $ 26,
998 in unrealized losses, consisted of bonds issued by state municipalities . The unrealized losses on these securities have not
been 1ecogmzed mto income beumse the issuers’ bonds are of hth%@—GHLI—S:EArBANGSHARE—S—HJ%NQCPE—SJPG

redit quality, mandgement has the intent and ability to hold these securities Tor the
foreseeable future, and the decline in fair value is largely due to changes in market interest rates. The Company also considers
sector specific credit rating changes in its analysis. The fair value is expected to recover as the securities approach their maturity
date or reset date. The Company does not intend to sell until recovery and does not believe selling will be required before
recovery. As of December 31, 2024, all securities were paying as agreed. The following table presents the net gains and
losses on equity investments recognized in earnings at year- end 2024 and 2023 and-26822-, and the portion of unrealized gains
and losses for the period that relates to equity investments held at year- end 2024 and 2023 and-2622-: Net gains (losses)
recognized on equity securities during the year $ $ (21) $Less: Net gains realized on the sale of equity securities during the
period — — Unrealized gains (losses) recognized in equity securities held at December 31 $ $ (21) $NOTE 4- LOANSLoans



at year- end were as follows: Commercial & Agriculture $ 328, 488 $ 304, 793 $278;-595-Commercial Real Estate- Owner
Occupied 374,367 377, 321 3H5H47Commercial Real Estate- Non- Owner Occupied 1,225,991 1, 161, 894 6048736
Residential Real Estate 763, 869 659, 841 552;7#8+-Real Estate Construction 305, 992 260, 409 243;42FFarm Real Estate 23,
035 24 771 %4—7-98—Lease financing receiv able 46 900 54, 642 36;797FConsumer and Other 12, S88 18, 056 26:-7+5FEoan

P S-S 3 d-bo &8 6+5-Total Loans 3, 081, 230 2, 861, 727 2:-648;28+Allowance for
credlt 1osses ( 39 669) (37, 160 )—@-H—l—l—) Net loans $ 3,041,561 8 2, 824, 567 -$€—6—1—9—749—1m1uded in Commercial &
Agriculture loans as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 was $ 177 and 2022+4s8-$ 326 and-$-566-, respectively, of Paycheck
PIOteCthH Plog'lm (“ PPP ”) loans S%E%BMGSMES—}N&NGWG-G%PSGE}BAJPED—M%

Included in total loans abO\ e are defened locm fees of$2,686 and $ 2, 743 aﬁd—$—1—6§2—dt Decembel 31, 2024 and 2023 ﬁﬂd-
2622-, respectively. Sehedwled-maturities-oftease-Lease financing receivables consist of sales- type and dlrect financing
leases for equipment, with terms typically ranging from two to six years. On direct financing leases, the Company
obtains third- party residual value guarantees to reduce its residual asset risk. The net investment in direct financing
and sales- type leases was comprised of the following: At December 31, Minimum lease payments receivable $ 53, 284 $§
63, 564 Unguaranteed residual assets 1, 286 Unamortized direct costs — — Unearned income (7, 670) (9, 556) Total net
investment in direct financing and sales- type leases $ 46, 900 $ 54, 642 Undiscounted future minimum lease payments
receivable for direct financing and sales- type leases at December 31, 2024 were as follows: At December 31, $ 16, 736 14,
360 10, 712 7, 307 2, 899 Thereafter 1, 270 Total undiscounted future minimum lease payments receivable for direct
financing and sales- type leases $ 53, 284 Loans to principal officers, directors, and their affiliates at year- end 2024 and
2023 were as follows: Balance- Beginning of $—8—834%—2§5§—8%9—B—1§8424P684mee&ﬂeH+99846fa1—$é+642—E6aﬂs
to-prineipal-officersdireetors;and-theiraffiliatesat-ycar § 10, 550 —en &t s v e
year-$ 21, 107 $35449-New loans and advances 3, 719 1, 477 -15—498—Repdyments (2, 732) 2, 205 )—69—255—) Eﬁect of
changes to related parties 10, 253 (9, 829) (%—493)—8&1&1106 End of year $ 21,790 $ 10, 550 $24307-The Company had credit
lines to principal officers, directors, and their affiliates with an availability of $ 7, 520 and $ 7, 231 and-$-8;-0647as of December
31,2024 and 2023 and-2022-, respectively. Paycheck Protection Program In response to the novel COVID- 19 pandemic, the
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act of 2020, as amended (the" CARES Act"), was signed into law on March
27, 2020, to provide national emergency economic relief measures. The CARES Act amended the loan program of the Small
Business Administration (the" SBA"), in which Civista participates, to create a guaranteed, unsecured loan program, the
Paycheck Protection Program (the" PPP"), to fund operational costs of eligible businesses, organizations and self- employed
persons during the COVID- 19 pandemic. During 2020, Civista processed over 2, 300 PPP loans totaling $ 268. 3 million. The
Consolidated Appropriations Act 2021, was signed into law on December 27, 2020 to provide an additional funding of § 284. 5
billion under the PPP and the establishment of PPP Second Draw Loans under the Economic Aid to Hard- Hit Small Businesses,
Nonprofit, and Venues Act (the ““ Relief Act ). This additional funding was made available from original PPP lenders on
January 19, 2021, and the deadline (as extended) for submitting applications for PPP Second Draw Loans was May 31, 2021.
Funds provided under the Relief Act were earmarked both for first time PPP borrowers (subject to original PPP eligibility and
limits) as well as * Second Draw’ Loans for borrowers that already received an original PPP loan. During 2021, Civista received
SBA approval on, and funded, 1, 340 PPP loans totaling $ 131, 109 under the Relief Act. At December 31, 2023-2024 Civista
had PPP loans outstanding of $ 326-177 . NOTE 5- ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSESThe following tables present, by
portfolio segment, the changes in the allowance for credit losses, the ending allocation of the allowance for losses and the loan
balances outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 . Allowance for credit losses: December 31,
2024 Beginningbalance Charge- offs Recoveries Provision (Credit) EndingBalance Commercial & Agriculture $ 7, 587 $
(2,197) $ $ $ 6, 586 Commercial Real Estate: Owner Occupied 4, 723 — — (396) 4, 327 Non- Owner Occupied 12, 056
(672) 11, 404 Residential Real Estate 8, 489 (83) 3, 263 11, 866 Real Estate Construction 3, 388 — 3, 708 Farm Real
Estate — — (34) Lease Financing Receivable (881) 1, 925 1, 361 Consumer and Other (82) (105) Unallocated — — (19)
— Total $37,160 $ (3,915) $ $ 5, 885 $ 39, 669 For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company provided $ 5, 885 to
the allowance for credit losses, as compared to a provision of $ 4, 435 for the year ended December 31, 2023. The increase
in the provision was to support strong organic loan growth in the portfolio. For the year ended December 31, 2024, the
allowance for Commercial & Agriculture loans decreased due to and- an 2624-increase in charge- offs, mainly due to two
commercial relationships. The allowance for Commercial Real Estate — Owner Occupied loans decreased due to a
decrease in loan balances. The allowance for Commercial Real Estate — Non- Owner Occupied loans decreased due to an
increase in charge- offs on two commercial relationships. The allowance for Residential Real Estate loans increased due
to an increase in loan balances and a decrease in prepayment speeds from 13. 94 % to 7. 30 %. The allowance for Lease
Financing Receivable increased as a result of an increase in charge- offs. The allowance for Consumer and Other loans
decreased due to a decrease in loan balances . Allowance for credit losses: December 31, 2023 Beginningbalance CECL
Adoption Day 1 Impact Impact of Adopting ASC 326- PCD Loans 1 Charge- offs Recoveries Provision (Credit) EndingBalance
Commercial & Agriculture $ 3,011 $$—$ (1,300)$ $ 5,270 $ 7, 587 Commercial Real Estate: Owner Occupied 4, 565 1,
075 —(951) 4, 723 Non- Owner Occupied 14, 138 (2, 847) — — 12, 056 Residential Real Estate 3, 145 2, 762 (17) 2, 299 8,
489 Real Estate Construction 2, 293 1, 502 — — (444) 3, 388 Farm Real Estate (28) — — — (3) Lease Financing Receivable
1,743 — — (2, 510) Consumer and Other (114) Unallocated (541) — — — Total $ 28,511 $4,296$ $(1,431)$$4,435$
37 160 1 Day 1 1mpdct of $ 1, 668 of ddOptan ASC 326 PCD loans was netted by chdnoes in estimates of $ 771 -Fer—t-he—yea-f

peft-fe-l-te—A one- time CECL ddOpthH ddjustment of 3> 4,296 along Wlth a b 897 ddjustment reldted to ASC 326 ddOpthH was



incurred in the first quarter of 2023. For the year ended December 31, 2023, the allowance for Commercial & Agriculture loans
increased due to an increase in general reserves required for this type as a result of an increase in loan balances, accompanied by
an increase in classified loan balances. The result was represented as an increase in the provision. The allowance for
Commercial Real Estate — Owner Occupied loans increased due to an increase in general reserves required for this type as a
result of increased loan balances, partially offset by a decrease in classified loan balances. The result was represented as an
increase in the provision. The allowance for Commercial Real Estate — Non- Owner Occupied loans decreased due to a decrease
in general reserves required as a result of an increase in loan balances, offset by a decrease in loss rates and classified loan
balances. This was represented as a decrease in the provision. The allowance for Residential Real Estate loans increased due to
an increase in general reserves required for this type as a result of increased loan balances. The result was represented by an
increase in the provmon The allowance for Consumer and Other loans decreased due to a decrease i in loan bahnces This was

31, 2022 -Begl-ﬂﬂ-mg-Ba-}anee-Beglnnmgbalance Charge offs Reeoverlei P10V1§10n (Credit) EndlngBalance Commermal &
Agriculture $ 2, 600 $ (22) $ $ $ 3, 011 Commercial Real Estate: Owner Occupied 4, 464 — 4, 565 Non- Owner Occupied 13,
860 — 14, 138 Residential Real Estate 2, 597 (97) 3, 145 Real Estate Construction 1, 810 — 2, 293 Farm Real Estate — (2)
Lease Financing Receivable — (23) — Consumer and Other (80) (25) Unallocated — — (306) Total $ 26, 641 $ (222) $$ 1,
752 $ 28, 511 For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company provided $ 1, 752 to the allowance for ean-credit losses, as
compared to a provision of $ 830 for the year ended December 31, 2021. The increase in the provision was to support strong
organlc loan growth in the portfoho Of this increase, $ 452, 000 was provided to cover lease production from our CLF

& Agncultule loans increased due to an increase in general reserves required for this type asa result of an increase in loan
balances, accompanied by an increase in classified loan balances. The result was represented as an increase in the provision. The
allowance for Commercial Real Estate — Owner Occupied loans increased due to an increase in general reserves required for this
type as a result of increased loan balances, partially offset by a decrease in classified loan balances. The result was represented
as an increase in the provision. The allowance for Commercial Real Estate — Non- Owner Occupied loans increased due to an
increase in general reserves required as a result of an increase in loan balances, partially offset by a decrease in loss rates and
classified loan balances. This was represented as an increase in the provision. The allowance for Residential Real Estate loans
increased due to an increase in general reserves required for this type as a result of increased loan balances. The result was
represented by an increase in the provision. The allowance for Real Estate Construction loans increased due to an increase in
loan balances. This was represented as an increase in the provision. The allowance for Consumer and Other loans decreased due
to a decrease in loan balances. This was represented as a decrease in the provision. Management feels-determined that the
unallocated amount +s-was appropriate and within the relevant range for the allowance that s-was reflective of the risk in the

portfoho at December 31,2022. 84%%@8%%—&%@%&6@%@%%—%%




ervantes t a otara4; 5 5 2-546,-666-1he
following tables represent credit exposures by internally assigned risk ratings for the periods ended December 31, 2024 and
2023 and2022-. The risk rating analysis estimates the capability of the borrower to repay the contractual obligations of the loan
agreements as scheduled or at all. The Company' s internal credit risk grading system is based on experiences with similarly
graded loans. The Company’ s internally assigned grades are as follows: * Pass — loans which are protected by the current net
worth and paying capacity of the obligor or by the value of the underlying collateral. « Special Mention — loans where a potential
weakness or risk exists, which could cause a more serious problem if not corrected. « Substandard — loans that have a well-
defined weakness based on objective evidence and are characterized by the distinct possibility that Civista will sustain some loss
if the deficiencies are not corrected. * Doubtful — loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in a substandard
asset. In addition, these weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full highly questionable and improbable, based on existing
circumstances. v A—BAN A HNEN S N A INAD A A MENTSDeecembe

» Loss — loans classified as a loss are considered uncollectible, or of such value that continuance as an asset is not
warranted. «-Unrated—Homogeneous loans, Generally-generally -Residential Real Estate, Real Estate Construction , and
Consumer and Other loans , are not risk- graded, except when collateral is used for a business purpose. These loans are
monitored based on performance, with performing loans included as Pass and nonperforming loans included in
Substandard. Term Loans Amortized Cost Basis by Origination Year Revolving LeansRevelving-Converted-December 31,
2023-2024 Prior Loans te—Ferm-Total Commercial & Agriculture Pass § 56-74 |, 359-397 § 55, 540 $ 37, 078 $ 33, 64-164 ;256
$52-7 , 258477 $ 4713 , 622449 $ 9-86 , 51+6-804 $ +4-307 , 909 088-$-82,-982-$—$297-675-Special Mention —1, 699-225
1,286 — —4, 173 7, 482 Substandard 5, 629 1, 942 3, 004 11 626-Substandard-3-, 412 668—4;-692-Doubtful — — — —
— ———1,685 1, 685 Total Commercial & Agriculture $ 80,281 $ 58, 707 $ 38, 002 $ 33,285 $ 8, 766 $ 13, 781 $ 95,
666 $ 328, 488 Commercial & Agriculture: Current- period gross charge- offs $1,520$$$ $$$ —$ 2, 197 Commercial
Real Estate- Owner Occupied Pass $ 26, 677 $ 40,344 $ 72, 901 $ 62, 663 $ 52,478 $ 97,293 $ 8, 358 $ 360, 714 Special
Mention — 3, 525 4, 987 10, 230 Substandard — — — — — 3,189 3,423 Doubtful ——— — — — — — Total
Commercial Real Estate- Owner Occupied $ 26, 677 $ 43,869 $ 77, 888 $ 63, 518 $ 52, 861 $ 100, 784 § 8, 770 $ 374, 367
Commercial Real Estate- Owner Occupied: Current- period gross charge-offs$ —$ —$—$—$—$—$—$—
Commercial Real Estate- Non- Owner Occupied Pass $ 59, 635 $ 227, 608 $ 299, 079 $ 170, 534 $ 121, 313 §$ 280, 870 § 29,
219 $ 1, 188, 258 Special Mention — — 7, 166 — — 10, 533 — 17, 699 Substandard — — — 8, 000 — 12, 034 — 20, 034
Doubtful ————M — — — — Total Commercial Real Estate- Non- Owner Occupied $ 59, 635 §$ 227, 608 $ 306, 245 $
178,534 $ 121, 313 $ 303, 437 $ 29, 219 § 1, 225, 991 Commercial Real Estate- Non- Owner Occupied: Current- period
gross charge- offs§ —$—$—9$—$— $ $ — $ Residential Real Estate Pass $ 97,552 $ 127,090 $ 113, 877 $ 90, 198 $
64,528 $ 91, 785 $ 168, 840 $ 753, 870 Special Mention — 1, 932 Substandard — 2, 655 1, 180 6, 652 Doubtful 1, 115 —
— ———1, 415 Total Residential Real Estate $ 98, 738 $ 127, 692 $ 114, 844 $ 91, 633 $ 65, 295 $ 94, 921 $ 170, 746 $
763, 869 Residential Real Estate: Current- period gross charge- offs $$ —$—$ $ — $ $ — $ Revolving December 31,
2024 Prior Loans Total Real Estate Construction Pass $ 90,417 $ 133, 695 $ 52,564 $ 10,348 $ 6,841 $2,369 $9,449 §
305, 683 Special Mention — — — — — Substandard —— — — — — — — Doubtfu] — — — — — — — — Total Real
Estate Construction $ 90, 571 $ 133, 695 § 52, 564 $ 10,503 $ 6,841 $ 2,369 $ 9, 449 § 305, 992 Real Estate Construction:
Current- period gross charge- offs$ —$ —8$ —8$ —8 —$%—3$—$ — Farm Real Estate Pass $$2,125$$ 2,099 $ 4,
122 $11,525$ 1, 490 $ 22, 427 Special Mention — — — — Substandard —— — — — — — — Doubtful — — — — —
— — — Total Farm Real Estate $ $2,125$$2,099 $4,122 $ 11,683 $ 1, 552 $ 23, 035 Farm Real Estate: Current-
period charge-offs§ —$ —$—$—9$—9$—9$—$ — Lease Financing Receivables Pass $ 18, 783 $ 16, 516 $ 6, 955 $
1,563 $$ $ —$ 44, 308 Special Mention 1, 107 —— — — — — 1, 107 Substandard — 1, 000 — — — 1, 485 Doubtful
—————— —- Total Lease Financing Receivables $ 19, 890 $ 16,982 $ 7,955 $ 1,563 $ $ $ — $ 46, 900 Lease
Financing Receivables: Current- period charge- offs$ —$$$ $$ —$ — § Consumer and Other Pass $ 2,521 $ 3,717 $
2,329%$1,787$$ 81,3398 12, 576 Special Mention — — — — — — — — Substandard — — — — — Doubtful — —
—————— Total Consumer and Other $ 2,521 $3,720$2,329$1,796$$$1,339$ 12,588 Consumer and
Other: Current- period charge- offs $ $ $$ $ $ $ — $ Total Loans $ 378, 884 $ 614, 398 $ 600, 710 $ 382, 931 $ 260, 320 $
527,246 $ 316, 741 $ 3, 081, 230 Total Loans: Current- period charge- offs $ 1,547 $$$$$$ — $ 3, 915 Term Loans
Amortized Cost Basis by Origination Year Revolving December 31, 2023 Prior Loans Total Commercial & Agriculture




Pass $ 56,359 $ 64,250 $ 52,258 $ 17,622 $ 9,516 $ 14, 088 $ 82, 982 $ 297, 075 Special Mention — 1, 690 — 3, 026
Substandard 3, 668 4, 692 Doubtful —— — — — — — — Total Commercial & Agriculture $ 57, 529 $ 64,336 § 52, 612
$19,443$9,787 $ 14,267 $ 86, 819 $—9$ 304, 793 Commercial & Agriculture: Current- period gross charge- offs $ —$ $ $
ial Real Estate- Owner Occupied Pass $ 36, 030 $ 82, 502 $ 67, 904 § 56, 069 $ 29, 784 $
92,750 $ 5, 844 $ —$-370, 883 Special Mention- — —-2, 187 Substandard — — — 3, 098 — —4, 251 Doubtful
————— Total Commercial Real Estate- Owner Occupied $ 36, 556 $ 82, 950 $ 68, 643 $ 56, 586 $ 32, 882 $ 93,860 $ 5,
844 $ —$-377, 321 Commercial Real Estate- Owner Occupied: Current- period gross charge- offs$ —$ —$ —$ —$ —$ —
$ — $ — $—Commercial Real Estate- Non- Owner Occupied Pass $ 183, 439 $ 269, 334 $ 198, 832 $ 136 031 $ 120,659 $
206,267 $ 23,016 $ —$-1, 137, 578 Special Mention — 5, 774 6, 171 —— 8, 68
284 ——3,406 Doubtful —— — — — — — — — Total Commercial Real Estate- Non- Owner Occupled $ 183,439 % 275
108 $ 205,003 $ 136,031 $ 120, 781 $ 218,239 $ 23,293 § —$-1, 161, 894 Commercial Real Estate- Non- Owner Occupied:
Current- period gross charge- offs 124,
695 $97,661$ 71,379 $ 33,534 % 78,894 $ 157,083 $ —$-654, 016 Special Mention — — — — —Substandard 2, 063 1,
323 —5,262 Doubtful —— — — — — — — Total Residential Real Estate $ 90, 956 $ 125,037 $ 98, 566 $ 71, 558 $ 34,

116 $ 81,202 $ 158, 406 $—9 659, 841 Residential Real Estate: Current- period gross charge- offs§ —$$—8$—$—$$
—3$ Term Loans Amortlzed Cost Bas1s by Orlglnatlon Year —$—8€'—GHH—S%BANGSHARE—S—I—N&N@¥E—SJPG
. \ 4

MW@H@R@REBFPE@SSES—G@OW@-RCVO]VIHE -I:e&ns—Revel-Hﬂg—Geﬂveﬁed-December 3 1,
2023 Prior Loans te—Ferm-Total Real Estate Construction Pass $ 108, 606 $ 105, 222 $ 20,960 $ 6, 739 $ 2,699 $ 2, 635 $ 9,
335 $ —%-256, 196 Special Mention — 1, 226 2, 019 — — — —4, 171 Substandard — — — — — — —Doubtful
—————— Total Real Estate Construction $ 108, 606 $ 106,448 $ 21,928 $ 8,758 $2,699 $ 2, 635$ 9, 335 $—5
260, 409 Real Estate Construction: Current- period gross charge- offs$ —$ —8$ —$—$ —$-—$—F% — $ — Farm Real
Estate Pass $ 2,207 $$2,256$4,462$$ 12,528 $ 1,292 § —$-24, 501 Special Mention — — — — — — —Substandard
—————— —Doubtful — — — — — — —Total Farm Real Estate $ 2,207 $$2,256$4,462$$ 12,798 $ 1,
292 $—3$ 24, 771 Farm Real Estate: Current- period ch 5 5 $—T ease Financing
Receivables Pass $ 28, 177 $ 13,924 $ 6, 620 $ 3,678 $ 1, 725 $ $ — $ —$-54, 125 Special Mention — — — — — — — = —
—Substandard — — —Doubtful — — — Total Lease Financing Receivables $ 28, 177 $ 14,071 $ 6, 658 $ 3,754 $ 1,
964 $ $ -—$—35 54, 642 Lease Financing Receivables: Current- period charge- offs$ —$ —$ —$—$—$—$—5—$%
—Consumer and Other Pass $ 6, 51084, 135$3,61581,578$$$ 1,424 $—3 18, 019 Special Mention — — — — — —
— — —Substandard — — — —Doubtfu] —— — — — — — — — Total Consumer and Other $ 6, 510 $ 4, 137 $ 3,629 $
1,593$$8$ 1,424 $—=5 18, 056 Consumer and Other: Current- period charge- offs $§ $ $ $ $ $ $§ § —$-Total Loans $ 513, 980
$ 673, 054 $ 459,295 $ 302, 185 $ 203, 527 $ 423, 273 $ 286, 413 $—35 2, 861, 727 Total Loans: Current- period charge- offs
$$$$$$$$4$—1 43188%%@8%%%—&%@%&6@%@%%%%

The following tables include an aging analysis of the recorded investment
of past due loans outstanding as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-. December 31, 2623-2024 30- 59DaysPast Due 60-
89DaysPast Due 90 Daysor Greater Total PastDue Current Total Loans Past Due90 DaysandAccruing Commercial &
Agriculture $ $ 8§ 1, 228374 $ 2 $+- 999-313 $ 3-326 , 698-175 $ 30+-328 , 695488 § — 364, 793-$-Commercial Real Estate:

IFH9437732— 374, 142 374, 367 Non- Owner Occupied —8, 000 2, 514 10, 583 1, +6+215 |
894408 1, 161225 . 894-991 — Residential Real Estate 4-5 , 581504 1, 18601634 2 , 6427273 9 , 403652411 754 , 438659

— 2423 | FH24-035 23 , 74035 — Lease Financing Receivables 1, #733-52-835 45 | é99-065 46, 900 — Consﬁmer and
Other 12,367 12,588 — Total $ 7,54-154 $ 10, 136 $ 7, 298 $ 24, 588 $ 3, 056 , 642 —Consumerand-Other 1785918056
—Fotal-$ 63 , 081 93552 230 984—$—4—1—3«9—$—1—3—1§-8—$—2—848%69—$—2—86-1—7—2—7—$ December 31, 20222023 30- 59DaysPast

Due 60- 89DaysPast Due 90 Daysor Greater Total PastDue Current Total Loans PurehasedCredit—ImpairedoansTotalboans



Past Due90 DaysandAccruing Commercial & Agriculture $ 1 $$-$-$276- 873-228 § $ 2781 , 595999 § —3, 698 $ 301, 095 $
304, 793 § Commercial Real Estate: Owner Occupied 369— 377 , 6491194 377 , 321 9883H;+47— Non- Owner Occupied
———1,464-161, 894 |, 161 +641-, 894 % Residential Redl Estate 34 ,433-581 1, 180 +67-5,-097546;
276-1, 4-1-4552—642 7, -7’-8—1—403 652, 438 659, 841 — Recal Estate Construction — —242—9%% 260 127409 260, 409
— Fdrm Real Estate — — — — 24, 771 #64—24, 788771 — Lease Financing Receivables 1, 646-733 52, 909 54, 642
Consumer and Other 17, 859 18, 056 — Total $ 6,935 $ 2,084 $4,139 § 13, 158 $ 2, 848, 569 $ 2,861,727 $ The
following table presents loans on nonaccrual status as of December 31, 2024. December 31, 2024 Nonaccrual loans with a
related ACL Nonaccrual loans without a related ACL Total Nonaccrual loans Interest Income Recognized Commercial
& Agriculture $ 8,901 $ 3,370 $ 12, 271 $ Commercial Real Estate: Owner Occupied — Non- Owner Occupied 2, 514 8,
000 10, 514 — Residential Real Estate 4, 745 2, 131 6, 876 Real Estate Construction — —- — Farm Real Estate — — —
Lease Financing Receivables |, 238 38+35;41+6- 36;797Consumer and Other 20;35826; 775~ Total § 416 , 74+-849 §
14 $3- 545101 $ 9-30 , 253-950 $ 253302854, 385-$2,546:-666-5—The following table presents loans on nonaccrual
status as of December 31, 2023. December 31, 2023 Nonaccrual loans with a related ACL Nonaccrual loans without a related
ACL Total Nonaccrual loans Interest Income Recognized Commercial & Agriculture $ $ 4, 891 $ 5, 805 $§ Commercial Real
Estate: Owner Occupied Non- Owner Occupied — 1, 167 1, 167 — Residential Real Estate — 4, 633 4, 633 Real Estate
Construction — — Farm Real Estate — — — — Lease Financing Receivables — Consumer and Other — Total § 1, 198 § 11,
269$12467$ A AN A N N N A NCADN A A W N

fGeﬂt-rﬁuedﬁ—The followmo table presents loans on nondccrual status as of December 31 2022 December 31, exeluding PEE
2022 Total Nonaccrual loans —Interest Income Recognized Commercial & Agrlcultme $ $§ — Commercial Real Estate:
Owner Occupied Non- Owner Occupied 1, 109 — Residential Real Estate 3, 926 Real Estate Construction — Farm Real Estate
— — Lease Financing Receivables — — Consumer and Other Total § 6, 507 § Nonaccrual Loans: Loans are considered for
nonaccrual status upon reaching 90 days delinquency, unless the loan is well secured and in the process of collection, although
Civista may be receiving partial payments of interest and partial repayments of principal on such loans. When a loan is placed
on nonaccrual status, previously accrued but unpaid interest is deducted from interest income. A loan may be returned to
accruing status only if one of three conditions are met: the loan is well- secured and none of the principal and interest has been
past due for a minimum of 90 days; the eants-a—FBR-andthe-borrower has made a minimum of six months payments; or the
principal and interest payments are reasonably assured and a sustained period of performance has occurred, generally six
months. The gross interest income that would have been recorded on nonaccrual loans in 2024, 2023 -and 2022 and-2024-if the
loans had been current in accordance with their original terms and had been outstanding throughout the period or since
origination, if held for part of the period, was $ 657, $ 446 -and $ 384 and-$307-, respectively. The amount of interest income
on such 1ocms recoomzed on a cash bzms was b 256 i 1n 2024 $ 343 i in 2023 —and $451 in 2022 aﬂd—$—7-1-6—rn%92—1— T—BRs—&ﬂd

2022- 02, Financial lnstruments C Iedlt Losses (TOplC 326): Troubled Debt Restructurings and Vintage Disclosures, accounting
guidance for Troubled Debt Restructurings ("' TDRs ") for creditors has been eliminated. New guidance with respect to
recognition, measurement, and disclosures of loans for borrowers experiencing financial difficulties supersedes guidance on
TDRs. Under ASU 2022- 02, the Company is required to evaluate whether a loan modification represents a new loan or a
continuation of an existing loan. The amendment enhanced existing disclosure requirements and introduced new requirements
related to certain modifications of receivables made to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty under criteria of principal
forgiveness, interest rate reduction, other- than- insignificant payment delay, or term extension. Of the loans modified as of
December 31, 2024, $ 16. 6 million were on non- accrual status and partial charge- offs have in some cases been taken
against the outstanding balance. The allowance for credit losses incorporates an estimate of lifetime expected credit
losses and is recorded on each loan upon loan origination or acquisition. The starting point for the estimate of the
allowance for credit losses is historical loss information, which includes losses from modifications of loans to borrowers
experiencing financial difficulty. The Company uses probability of default / loss given default, discounted cash flows or



remaining life method to determine the allowance for credit losses. An assessment of whether a borrower is experiencing
financial difficulty is made on the date of a modification. Because the effect of most modifications made to borrowers
experiencing financial difficulty is already included in the allowance for credit losses because of the measurement
methodologies used to estimate the allowance, a change to the allowance for credit losses is generally not recorded upon
modification. The following table shows the amortized cost basis at the end of the reporting period of the loans modified
to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty, disaggregated by loan category and type of modification granted during
the year ended December 31, 2024. The percentage of the amortized cost basis of loans that were modified to borrowers
experiencing financial difficulty as compared to the amortized cost basis of each class of loan category is also presented
below: Loans Modifications Made to Borrowers Experiencing Financial Difficulty December 31, 2024 (Dollars in
Thousands) Term Extension Payment Deferral Loan Type Amortized Cost Basis Percent of total loans bycategory
Amortized Cost Basis Percent of total loans bycategory Commercial & Agriculture $ 4,549 1. 38 % $ 0. 13 %
Commercial Real Estate: Owner Occupied — — — — Non- Owner Occupied 8, 000 0. 65 % 2, 514 0. 21 % Residential
Real Estate 1, 115 0. 15 % — — Real Estate Construction — — — — Farm Real Estate — — — — Consumer and
Other — — — — Total Loan Modifications $ 13, 664 $ 2, 949 The following table describes the financial effect of the
modifications made to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty: Term ExtensionLoan Type Financial
EffectCommercial & Agriculture- 6 month, 12 month and 62 month term extensionsCommercial Real Estate: Owner
Occupied Non- Owner Occupied- 6 month term extensionResidential Real Estate- 35 month term extensionReal Estate
Construction Farm Real Estate Consumer and Other Payment DeferralL.oan Type Financial EffectCommercial &
Agriculture- S month payment deferralCommercial Real Estate: Owner Occupied Non- Owner Occupied- 5 month and
7.5 month payment deferralResidential Real Estate Real Estate Construction Farm Real Estate Consumer and Other
Upon the Company' s determination that a modified loan (or portion of a loan) has subsequently been deemed
uncollectible, the loan (or a portion of the loan) is written off. Therefore, the amortized cost basis of the loan is reduced
by the uncollectible amount and the allowance for credit losses is adjusted by the same amount. There were no
modification loans that had a payment default during the year ended December 31, 2024 and were modified in the twelve
months prior to that default to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty. There were no loans modified to borrowers
experiencing financial difficulty during the period ended December 31, 2023. There were no loans modified in a troubled
debt restructuring during the period ended December 31, 2022. The Company closely monitors the performance of the
loans that were modified to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty to understand the effectiveness of its modification
efforts. Twelve of the modified loans are on nonaccrual as of December 31, 2024. Individually Evaluated Loans: Larger
(greater than $ 350) Commercial & Agricultural and Commercial Real Estate loan relationships, and-as well as Residential Real
Estate and Consumer loans and Lease financing receivables that are part of a larger relationship are individually evaluated
tested-for-impatrment-on a quarterly basis , when they do not share similar risk characteristics with the collectively
evaluated pools . These loans are analy LLd to determine if it is probable that all amounts will not be collected according to the
contractual terms of the loan agreement. If management determines that the value of the #mpeaired-loan is less than the recorded
investment in the loan (net of previous charge- offs, deferred loan fees or costs and unamortized premium or discount),
impairment is recognized through an allowance estimate or a charge- off to the allowance. The Company’ s policy for
recognizing interest income on #mpaired-individually evaluated loans does not differ from its overall policy for interest
recognition. The following table-tables presents— present the amortized cost basis of collateral dependent loans, which are
individually evaluated to determine expected credit losses, and the related allowance for credit losses allocated to these loans.
December 31, 2024 Real Estate Other Allowance for Credit Losses Commercial & Agriculture $ —$ 8,179 $ 1, 679
Commercial Real Estate: Owner Occupied — — — Non- Owner Occupied 10, 514 — Residential Real Estate 2, 131 —
— Real Estate Construction — — — Farm Real Estate — — — Lease Financing Receivables — Consumer and Other
— ——Total $ 12,645 $ 8,844 $ 2, 359 December 31, 2023 Real Estate Other Allowance for Credit Losses Commercial &
Agriculture $ — $ 4, 674 $ Commercial Real Estate: Owner Occupied — Non- Owner Occupied 1, 167 — Residential Real
Estate — — Real Estate Construction — — — Farm Real Estate — — — Lease Financing Receivables — Consumer and Other
— ——Total $ 1,624 $ 4,735 $ 1, 265 Collateral- dependent loans consist primarily of Residential Real Estate, Commercial
Real Estate and Commercial and Agricultural loans. These loans are individually evaluated when foreclosure is probable or
when the repayment of the loan is expected to be provided substantially through the operation or sale of the underlying
collateral. In the case of Commercial and Agricultural loans secured by equipment, the fair value of the collateral is estimated
by third- party valuation experts. Loan balances are charged down to the underlying collateral value when they are deemed
uncollectible. Note that lhu (ompany dld not elect to use the collateral maintenance agreement pldulml CX])LdlLl]l available
under CECL. 9 - NC P A NAD vHED




FarmRealEstate Total $1,522-$-$1-632-$-Foreclosed assets acquired in settlement of loans are carried at fair value less
estimated costs to sell and are included in Other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023
and2022- there were no foreclosed assets included in Other assets. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622- the
Company had 1n1t1ated formal fmeclo%ure procedure% on$ 669 and $ 1 018 a-nd—$—3r99— reipectlvely, of Residential Real Estate

as—e-ﬁBeeeﬁrber—}-l—E@%}—aﬁd%@%%—fespeefwe}y— Allowance for Credlt Loqqe% on Off- Balance Sheet Cledlt Expo%urei The

Company estimates expected credit losses over the contractual period in which the Company is exposed to credit risk from a
contractual obligation to extend credit. The allowance for credit losses on off- balance —sheet credit exposures is adjusted
recorded within accrued expenses and other liabilities ton— on —interestexpense-the Consolidated Balance Sheet with
adjustments recorded in provision for credit losses on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The estimated credit loss
includes consideration of the likelihood that funding will occur and an estimate of expected credit losses on commitments
expected to be funded over its estimated life. The estimate of expected credit loss is based on the historical loss rate for the loan
class in which the loan commitments would be classified as if funded. The following table lists the allowance for credit losses
on off- balance sheet credit exposures as of December 31, 2023-2024 : Twelve Months Ended December 31, Beginning of
Period —$ 3,901 — CECL adoption adjustments — 3, 386 —Charge- offs — — Recoveries — — Provision —(521) End of
Period $ 3, 380 3,901 —NOTE 6- OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) The following table presents the
components of other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax, as of December 31, 2024, 2023 ;and 2022 and2624—: Before Tax
Tax Effect Net of Tax Year Ended December 31, 2023-2024 Net unrealized losses on investment securities: Other
comprehensive loss before reclassifications $ (7, 338) $ (1, 537) $ (5, 801) Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive loss (33) (7) (26) Net unrealized losses on investment securities (7, 371) (1, 544) (5, 827) Defined benefit
plans: Other comprehensive income before reclassifications — — — Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive loss — — — Defined benefit plans, net — — — Other comprehensive loss $ (7, 371) $ (1, 544) $ (5, 827)
Year Ended December 31, 2023 Net unrealized gains on investment securities: Other comprehensive gain before
reclassifications $ 12, 330 $ 2, 583 $ 9, 747 Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss — — — Net
unrealized tosses-gains on investment securities 12, 330 2, 583 9, 747 Defined benefit plans: Other comprehensive income
before reclassifications Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive #reeme-loss — — — Defined benefit
plans, net Other comprehensive loss $ 13,302 $ 2, 787 $ 10, 515 Year Ended December 31, 2022 Net unrealized losses on
investment securities: Other comprehensive loss before reclassifications $ (85, 517) $ (18, 079) $ (67, 438) Amounts reclassified
from accumulated other comprehensive loss (10) (2) (8) Net unrealized losses on investment securities (85, 527) (18, 081) (67,
446) Defined benefit plans: Other comprehensive income before reclassifications Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive ineeme-loss — — — Deﬁned benefit plans, net Other comprehen@lve 1099 $ (84 791) $ (17 926) $ (66, 865)
The following table presents Yes d es:

changes in each component of

December 31 2024 2023 and 2022 aﬁd%@%l— For the Year EndedDecember 31 %92—3—2024 For the Year EndedDecember 31,
2022-2023 For the Year EndedDecember 31,2024-2022 UnrealizedGains andLos%es onAvailablefor SaleSecurities
DefinedBenefitPensionltems Total UnrealizedGains andLosses onAvailablefor SaleSecurities DefinedBenefitPensionltems
Total UnrealizedGains andLosses onAvailablefor SaleSecurities DefinedBenefitPensionltems Total Beginning balance $ ( 43,
024) $ (4,506) $ (47,530) $ (52, 771) $(5,274) $ (58, 045) § 14, 675 § (5, 855) $ 8, 820 $24447-$6;-828)-$+4-619-Other
comprehensive income (loss) before classifications (5, 801) — (5, 801) 9, 747 10, 515 (67, 438) (66, 857 H6; 775988
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (26) — (26) — — — (8) — (8 3+) Net current-
period other comprehensive income (loss) (5, 827) — (5, 827) 9, 747 10, 515 (67, 446) (66, 865) €6F7€5-799-Ending
balance $ (48, 851) $ (4, 506) $ (53,357) $ (43,024)$ (4,500) $ (47, 530) $(52,771) $(5,274) $ (58, 045) $H4-675$(5;
855)$8;-820-The following table presents the amounts reclassified out of each component of accumulated other comprehensive
loss as of December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and2024-. Amount Reclassified fromAccumulated OtherComprehensive Loss
(a) For the year ended December 31, Details about Accumulated OtherComprehensive Income (Loss) Components Affected
Line Item in theStatement Where Net Income isPresentedUnrealized gains (losses) on available for sale securities $ $ — $ Net
gain on sale of securitiesTax effect (7) — (2) —Income taxes — Amortization of defined benefit pension items Actuarial losses
— (b) — (b) — 246)(b) Other operating expensesTax effect — — — Income taxes — — — 496)-Total reclassifications for
the period $ —$ — $ €899+(a) Amounts in parentheses indicate expenses and other amounts indicate income. (b) These



accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) components are included in the computation of net periodic pension cost.
NOTE 7- PREMISES AND EQUIPMENTYear- end premises and equipment were as follows: At December 31, Land and
improvements $ 8, 303 $ 8, 392 $F-949-Buildings and improvements 39-40 , 874-35-494 40 , 438-418 Furniture and equipment
6166 , 335-63-352 76 , 933-564 Total +09-115 , 664366-149 125 , 690-374 Accumulated depreciation (5267 , 832-983 ) (42
68 , 872605 ) Premises and equipment, net $ 47, 166 $ 56, 769 $-64-848-Depreciation expense was $ 9, 545 in 2024, $ 10, 760
in 2023 ;-and $ 4, 456 in 2022 . The Company is the lessor of equipment under operating leases to customers. The
operating lease assets are presented within furniture and equipment in the table above and classified on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets as premises and equipment. The total cost of leased assets at December 31, 2024 and 2023,
was $ 31, 168 and $ 41, 730, respectively, and total accumulated depreciation on leased assets was ($ 12, 032) and ($ 15,
163), respectively. Depreciation expense on lease assets for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 was §$ 8,
283,$ 9, 636, and § 1, 976126214918, respectively . The increase in depreciation expense trfrom 2023-2022 is was-t-large
part-due to the acquisition of operating leases at-in connection with the €EF-diviston-whichare-treated-asfixed-assets
acquisition of VFG during the fourth quarter of 2022 resultmg in a partlal year depreclatlon expense NOTE 8-
GOODWILL AND lNTANGlBLE ASSETSThe Carrying

i tstt dis i3 he-balance ofgoodwrll was $ 125
520 at December 31 2—92—3—2024 and $ 125 695—520 at December 31 %922—2023 Management performs an evaluation of
goodwill for impairment on an annual basri or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the asset
might be impaired. Management performed an evaluation of the Company’ s goodwill during the fourth quarter of 2623-2024 .
Based on this test, management concluded that the Company’ s goodwill was not impaired at December 31, 2823-2024 .
Acquired intangible assets were as follows as of year- end. GrossCarryingAmount AccumulatedAmortization
NetCarryingAmount GrossCarryingAmount AccumulatedAmortization NetCarryingAmount Core deposit intangible assets (1):
Core deposit intangibles 12, 668 7, 662 5, 006 12, 668 6, 178 6, 490 42:-953-4:-883-8-076-Total core deposit intangible assets $
12,668 $7,662$5,0068$ 12,668 $ 06, 178 $ 6, 490 $42:-953-$4,-883-$-8;-676-(1) Excludes fully amortized core deposit
intangible assetsAggregate core deposit intangible amortization expense was $ 1, 484, $ 1,579 ;-and $ 1, 296 and-$-896-for
2024 2023 sand 2022 a-nd%@%l— re%pectlvely %MAP@GS}L*REST}N%NGTESJFG-GGNSGE}BAJPEB

GGGDX%&*PHB—HJWG%BJ:E%;—SSET—S—G@@M&%ACUWW for mortgage servicing rlghtq (MSR%) and the related
valuation allowance follows: Mortgage Servicing Rights: Beginning of year $ 3, 018 $ 2, 689 $ 2, 642 Additions Disposals —

— — Amortized to expense Other Charges — — — Change in valuation allowance — — — End of year $ 2, 877 $ 3, 018 § 2,
689 Valuation allowance: Beginning of year § — $ — $ — Additions expensed — — — Reductions credited to operations —
— — Direct write- offs — — — End of year §— $ — $ — The unpaid principal balance of mortgage loans serviced for third

parties was $ 419, 407 at December 31, 2024, compared to $ 442, 635 at December 31, 2023 and ;eemparedto-$ 456, 149 at
December 31, 2022 and-$405786-atPeeember31,202+- Aggregate mortgage servicing rights (MSRs) amortization was $
343, $ 330 ;-and $ 350 and-$-572-for 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and2024-, respectively. Mortgage loan contractual servicing fees
were $ 1, 085,81, 137 and $ 1, 063 and-$947-for 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and2024- respectively. Mortgage loan contractual
servicing fees are included in Other income on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The fair value of servicing rights was
$3,854,%$3,018,and $ 2, 689 at year- end 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively . Fair value at year- end 2024 was determined
using a discount rate range of 5. 3 % to 10. 4 % with the average discount rate of 6. 96 %, weighted average prepayment
speed of 10. 83 %, depending on the stratification of the specific right, and a weighted average default rate of 0. 0 % .
Fair value at year- end 2023 was determined using a discount rate of 12. 0 %, prepayment speeds ranging from 4. 6 % to 11. 0

%, dependlng on the %tratlhcatron of the qpecrﬁc right, and awetghfed—average—default rate of 0.0 %—Fa-rr—va-l-ue—&t—yea-r-—eﬂé

sfr&frﬂeaﬁefre-ﬁﬂ&&speetﬁeﬂght—&ﬂdﬁr&efat&ﬁafe-ef—e—}*% E%trmated amortrzatron expenqe for each of the next ﬁve years
and thereafter is as follows: MSRs Core depositintangibles Total § § 1, 489-316 S 1, 481 659+-3H-1;480-1, 193 1, 366-356 1,
071 1, 234230 Thereafter 2, +94-086 2, $38-448 $ 3-2 , 648-877 $ 65 , 496-006 & 9—7 508-883 NOTE 9- INTEREST—
BEARING DEPOSITSInterest- bearing deposits as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ﬁﬂd—2-92—2—were as follows: Demand $ 419,
583 $ 449, 449 $-527-879-Savings and Money markets 1, 152, 239 863, 067 876;427Certificates of Deposit: $ 250 and over
120, 543 92, 933 45;380-Other 782, 209 765, 734 229-886-Individual Retirement Accounts 42, 202 42, 146 46;-679-Total $ 2,
516,776 $ 2, 213, 329 $4-723;-65+-Scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit (" CDs"), including IRAs, at December 31,
2623-2024 were as follows: $ 867-888 , 43616-354 34 , 9948928 10 , 26+4-192 5 . 8222-620 5 , 506-719 Thereafter Total $
9606-944 . £13-954 Deposits from the Company’ s principal shareholders, officers, directors, and their affiliates at year- end 2024
and 2023 and2022-were $ 11, 769 and $ 11, 546 and-$3+6;366-, respectively. As of December 31, 2024 and December 31,
2023, CDs and IRAs totaling $ 125, 868 and $ 98, 158 , respectively, met or exceeded the FDIC” s insurance limit of $ 250,
000. As of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, brokered deposits totaled $ 500,265 and $ 517, 190 , respectively .
NOTE 10- SHORT- TERM BORROWINGSShort- term borrowings, which consist of federal funds purchased and other short-
term berrowings-FHLB advances are summarized as follows: At December 31, 2623-2024 At December 31, 26222023
FederalFundsPurchased Short- termBerrowings-term FHLB Advances FederalFundsPurchased Short- termBotrrowings-term
FHLB Advances Outstanding balance at year end $ — $ 339,000 $ — $ 338, 000 $—$-393;-700-Maximum indebtedness
during the year 50, 000 501, 500 — 521 ;-560-56;-066-435-, 500 Average balance during the year 341, 692 — 280, 887 66;8%5
Average rate paid during the year —5. 27 % 5. 23 % — 5. 12 %4-38%3-84-" Interest rate on year end balance — 4. 42 %
— 5. 41 %6—4—24-% Average balances during the year represent daily averages. Average interest rates represent interest
expense divided by the related average balances. These borrowing transactions can range from overnight to six months in
maturity. The average maturity was one day at December 31, 2623-2024 . NOTE 11- FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK




ADVANCES AND OTHER BORROWINGSLong- term advances from the FHLB were $ 1, 501 and $ 2, 392 and-$-3;-578at
December 31, 2623-2024 and December 31, 2622-2023 , respectively. Outstanding balances have a-maturity dates between Faly
May 2624-2025 and June 2028 with fixed rates ranging from 1. 18 % to 2. 97 %. The weighted average rate on outstanding
advances was 2. 3+-44 % at December 31, 2023-2024 . Outstanding advances are prepayable in whole or in part and could be
subject to a termination fee. Other borrowings totaled $ 9-6 , 866-293 at December 31, 2623-2024 , and included borrowings
from the CLF division of Civista. The weighted average rate on these borrowings was 5-6 . 74-72 % and the weighted average
life was 39-30 months. Scheduled principal reductions of FHLB advances outstanding at December 31, 2623-2024 were as
follows: § Fhereafter—Total $ 2-1 , 392-501 In addition to FHLB borrowings, the Company had outstanding letters of credit
with the FHLB totaling $ 128, 400 and $ 24, 400 and-$-5%-5+6-at year- end 2024 and 2023 and2022-, respectively, used for
pledging to secure public funds. FHLB borrowings and the letters of credit were collateralized by FHLB stock and by $ 1, 234,
624 and $ 1, 044, 027 and-$-932,373-of residential mortgage loans under a blanket lien arrangement at year- end 2024 and
2023 and-2022-, respectively. The Company had a FHLB maximum borrowing capacity of $ #94-839 , 637-034 as of December
31,2623-2024 , with remaining borrowing capacity of approximately $ 426-370 , 845-133 . The borrowing arrangement with the
FHLB is subject to annual renewal. The maximum borrowing capacity is recalculated at least quarterly. NOTE 12-
SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE Effective in July 2023, the eempany-Company no longer
sells securities under agreement to repurchase. Prior to that time, securities sold under agreements to repurchase were used to
facilitate the needs of our customers as well as to facilitate our short- term funding needs. Securities sold under repurchase
agreements were carried at the amount of cash received in association with the agreement. We continuously monitor the
collateral levels and may be required, from time to time, to provide additional collateral based on the fair value of the underlying
securities. Securrtres pledged as Collateral under repurchase agreements were maintained with our safekeeping agents. 166

{Continwed)-The following table presents detail regarding the securities pledged as collateral under repurchase agreements as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-. All of the repurchase agreements are overnight agreements. December 31, 2623-2024
December 31, 2622-2023 Securities pledged for repurchase agreements: U. S. Treasury securities § — $ — 25;443-Obligations
of U. S. government agencies — — Total securities pledged $§ — $ —25;4+43-Gross amount of recognized liabilities for
repurchase agreements $§ — § — 25;443-Amounts related to agreements not included in offsetting disclosures above $ — $ —
Information concerning securities sold under agreements to repurchase was as follows: Outstanding balance at year end $ — $
— § 25, 143 $25:495-Average balance during the year — 8, 685 24;-396-24, 390 Average interest rate during the year — 0. 05
% 0. 05 % 8-69-%-Maximum month- end balance during the year § — $ 21, 658 § 26, 044 $34;266-Weighted average interest
rate at year end — — 6-05%0. 05 % NOTE 13- SUBORDINATED DEBENTURESThe following table summarizes the
Company' s subordinated debentures at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622- December 31, 2623-2024 December 31, 2022
2023 Subordinated Note- fixed interest rate until November 30, 2026 then variable interest rate equal to SOFR plus 2. 19 %, the
rate was 3. 25 % at December 31, 2024 and 2023 anrd2622- respectively- $ 75, 000 maturing December 31, 2031 ; net of
unamortized debt issuance costs of $ 1,260 and $ 1, 406 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively 5 73, 740 $ 73,
594 $-73:450-First Citizens Statutory Trust II- variable interest equal to 3- month CME Term SOFR plus 3. 15 %, which was 8.
07 % and 8. 81 %and-6-79-% at December 31, 2024 and 2023 20622- respectively- $ 7, 732 maturing March 26, 2033 7, 732
7, 732 First Citizens Statutory Trust III- variable interest equal to 3- month HHBOR-CME Term SOFR plus 2. 25 %, which was
7.32 % and 7. 91 %and-5-78-% at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, respectively- $ 12, 887 maturing September 20,
2034 12, 887 12, 887 First Citizens Statutory Trust [V- variable interest equal to 3- month CME Term SOFR plus 1. 60 %,
which was 6. 81 % and 7. 27 %and-4—89-"% at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, respectively- § 5, 155 maturing March
23,2037 5, 155 5, 155 Futura TPF Trust I- variable interest rate equal to 3- month CME Term SOFR plus 1. 66 %, which was 6.
87 % and 7. 33 %and4-—95% at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, and respectively- $ 2, 578 maturing June 15, 2035 2,
578 2, 578 Futura TPF Trust II- variable interest rate equal to 3- month CME Term SOFR plus 1. 66 %, which was 6. 87 % and
7. 33 Y%rand4-—95% at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, respectively- § 2, 070 maturing June 15, 2035 ; net of
purchase dlscount of $ 73 1,997 1, 997 Total subordlnated debentures $ 104, 089 $ 103 943 $—1—93—7-99—1—9—1—GHLI-S—T+:

At S e > N p trted n November 30,2021,
the Company entered 1nt0 a Subordmated Note Purchase Agreement pursuant to Wthh the Company sold and issued $ 75, 000
aggregate principal amount of its 3. 25 % Fixed- to- Floating Rate Subordinated Notes due 2031 (the" Notes"). The Notes have a
stated maturity of December 31, 2031. The Notes initially bear interest at a fixed rate of 3. 25 % per annum, from and including
November 30, 2021, to but excluding December 1, 2026, with interest payable semi- annually in arrears. From and including
December 1, 2026, to but excluding the stated maturity date or early redemption date, the interest rate will reset quarterly to an
annual floating rate equal the then- current benchmark rate, which will initially be the three- month Secured Overnight
Financing Rate (SOFR) plus 219 basis points, with interest during such period payable quarterly in arrears. If three- month

SOFR cannot be determined during the applicable floating rate period, a different index will be determined and used in
accordance with the terms of the Notes and underlying Indenture. Prior to December 1, 2026, the Company may redeem the
Notes, in whole but not in part, only under certain limited circumstances as set forth in the Indenture. On or after December 1,
2026, the Company may, at its option, redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, on any interest payment date, subject to the receipt
of any required regulatory approvals. Any redemption by the Company would be at a redemption price equal to 100 % of the
principal amount of the Notes to be redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest to but excluding the date of redemption. On
March 26, 2003, the Company formed First Citizens Statutory Trust II. The Company issued $ 7, 700 of subordinated
debentures to First Citizens Statutory Trust II in exchange for ownership of all the common securities of the First Citizens



Statutory Trust II. The Company is not considered the primary beneficiary of First Citizens Statutory Trust II; therefore, the
trust is not consolidated in the Company' s financial statements, but rather the subordinated debentures are shown as a liability.
The Company' s investment in the common stock of the trust was $ 232 and is included in Other assets. On September 20, 2004,
the Company formed First Citizens Statutory Trust III. The Company issued $ 12, 900 of subordinated debentures to First
Citizens Statutory Trust III in exchange for ownership of all the common securities of the First Citizens Statutory Trust III. The
Company is not considered the primary beneficiary of First Citizens Statutory Trust III; therefore, the trust is not consolidated in
the Company' s financial statements, but rather the subordinated debentures are shown as a liability. The Company' s investment
in the common stock of the trust was $ 387 and is included in Other assets. On March 23, 2007, the Company formed First
Citizens Statutory Trust IV. The Company issued $ 5, 200 of subordinated debentures to First Citizens Statutory Trust IV in
exchange for ownership of all the common securities of the First Citizens Statutory Trust IV. The Company is not considered
the primary beneficiary of First Citizens Statutory Trust IV; therefore, the trust is not consolidated in the Company' s financial
statements, but rather the subordinated debentures are shown as a liability. The Company' s investment in the common stock of
the trust was $ 155 and is included in Other assets. In conjunction with the acquisition of Futura Banc Corp. (" Futura") on
December 17, 2007, the Company assumed $ 4, 700 of subordinated debentures that were recorded at a fair value of § 4, 600 at
the time of acquisition. On June 15, 2005, Futura issued $ 2, 600 of subordinated debentures to Futura TPF Trust I in exchange
for ownership of all the common securities of the trust. On June 15, 2005, Futura issued $ 2, 100 of subordinated debentures to
Futura TPF Trust II in exchange for ownership of all the common securities of the trust. The Company is not considered the
primary beneficiary of Futura TPF Trust I or Futura TPF Trust II; therefore, the trusts are not consolidated in the Company' s
financial statements, but rather the subordinated debentures are shown as a liability. The Company' s investment in the common
stock of the trusts was $§ 148 and is included in Other assets. For all the debentures mentioned above, interest is payable
quarterly. The debentures and the common securities issued by each of the trusts are redeemable in whole or in part on dates
specified in the trust indenture document. All of the subordinated debentures mentioned above may be included in Tier 1 capital
(with certain limitations applicable) under current regulatory guidelines and interpretations. NOTE 14- INCOME
TAXESIncome taxes were as follows for the years ended December 31: Current - federal $ 6,498 $ 8, 256 $ 6, 973 Current-$
5H-State-state Deferred (1, 853) (675) H5349-Income taxes $ 4,891 § 7, 649 § 7, 608 $F-6+F-Effective tax rates differed
from the statutory federal income tax rate of 21 % in 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-2624-due to the following: Income taxes
computed at the statutory federal tax rate $ 7, 681 $ 10, 629 $ 9, 878 $9;988-Add (subtract) tax effect of: Nentaxable-Tax-
exempt interest income, net efnondeduetible-interestexpense-(1, 975) (1, 938) (1, 666 HH3145-) Low income housing tax
ereditinvestments (555) (620) (679 H5462-) Cash surrender value of BOLI ( 471) (233) (207) £2523-Other (189 H2-) Income
tax expense $ 4,891 8 7, 649 $ 7, 608 $F-8+FYear- end deferred tax assets and liabilities were due to the following: Deferred

tax assets J:ease—habﬂ*?y%—Allowance for credlt losses $ 8 554 $ 7, 711 6—1—96—Befeffed-eﬂfnpeﬁs&&eﬁ—l—l§5—l—l-43

Unreahzed loss on securltles avallable for sale 13,104 11, 633 -1-4%1—8—Unreahzed loss on seettﬂt-tes—pttfehased—mlnlmum
pension liability 1, 976-198 1, 966-198 Deferred compensation 1, 241 1, 155 Unfunded commitment liability Deferred loan
fees, net Purchase accounting adjustments Accrued compensation Lease liability Other Deferred tax asset 25-26 , 245-916
24,928-225 Deferred tax liabilities Fax-Fixed assets depreciation inexeess-ofboek-depreeiation-(1, 968) (2, 625-198 ) Prepaid
pension ( 2-1 , +24-602) (1, 343) Loan serv1c1ng rlghts (624) (634 ) Dlscount accretion on securmes ( 244) ( 502 )—(—244—) FHLB

stock dividends ( 126) ( 223)

sale———-Right of use asset ( 231) ( 343) —Prepalds ( 297) (314) (—334)—Other ( 143 -1—949—) (7—35—311 ) Deferred tax hablhty (
6—5 %88—235 ) (6—5 47-9—868 ) Net deferred tax asset $ 21 681 $ 18, 357 $148;449103-CPASTABANCSHARESINE:

e*eept—sh&fe—dafa)—NG:PE—}‘F—}NGGME—]lAééES—(Geﬂ&mﬁAt December 31 %92—3—2024 the Company had no -$—39—1ﬂ—net
operating losses subject to Section 382 limitations. As of December 31, 2023, the Company had $ 30 in net operating losses

subject to Section 382 limitations. No valuation allowance was established at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-, due to
the Company’ s ability to carryforward net operating losses to taxes paid in future years and certain tax strategies, coupled with
the anticipated future income as evidenced by the Company’ s earning potential. There is currently no liability for uncertain tax
positions and no known unrecognized tax benefits. The Company’ s federal tax returns for taxable years through 2019 have
been closed for purposes of examination by the Internal Revenue Service. NOTE 15- RETIREMENT PLANSThe Company
sponsors a savings and retirement 401 (k) plan, which covers all employees who meet certain eligibility requirements and who
choose to participate in the plan. The matching contribution to the 401 (k) plan was $ 1, 688, $ 1, 608 -and $ 1, 377 and-$31;
258-in 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-2062+-, respectively. The Company’ s matching contribution is 100 % of an employee’ s first
three percent contributed and 50 % of the next two percent contributed. The Company also sponsors a pension plan which is a
noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan for all employees who have attained the age of 20 1/2, completed six months
of service and work 1, 000 or more hours per year. Annual payments, subject to the maximum amount deductible for federal
income tax purposes, are made to a pension trust fund. In 2006, the Company amended the pension plan to provide that no
employee could be added as a participant to the pension plan after December 31, 2006. In April 2014, the Company amended
the pension plan again to provide that no additional benefits would accrue beyond April 30, 2014. In October 2015, the
Company, on behalf of it and its subsidiaries, entered into Pension Shortfall Agreements (the “ Shortfall Agreements ) with ten
employees of Civista. When the Company ceased accruals to its defined benefit pension plan on April 30, 2014, the
circumstances of some participants with limited periods until their anticipated retirement dates would not permit them to use
other available alternatives to make up for the shortfall in their expected pension. The Company calculated the total amount of
the shortfall for each of the referenced individuals after considering its contributions to other retirement benefits. Pension
shortfall expense was $ 82in 2024, $ 118 in 2023 ;and $ 145 in 2022 and-$4354r2624 Included in pension shortfall expense



was interest expense, totaling $ 36, $ 36 and $ 24 and-$45-in 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and2024-, respectively, which was also
recorded in and Credlted to the accounts of the ’fen—lndlvrduals covered by this plan MGNE%BANGSHAKE—S—H@G

eﬂepfshﬁ&dﬁa)%@%—&%%%f@mﬁnﬁed}lnformanon about the pension plan is as follows: Change in
benefit obligation: Beginning benefit obligation $ 8,019 § 10, 123 $345;384-Service cost — — Interest cost Curtailment gain
— — Settlement loss — — Actuarial (gain) / loss ( 537) ( 637 3H35455-) Benefits paid ( 910) ( 1, 921 HZ438-) Settlement

payments — — Ending benefit obligation 6, 932 8§, 019 +6;,+23-Change in plan assets, at fair value: Beginning plan assets 9,
953 10, 934 +5;426-Actual return 45988 -Employer contribution — — Benefits paid ( 910) ( 1, 921 HZ498-) Settlement
payments — — Administrative expenses — — Ending plan assets 9, 273 9, 953 +8;-934-Funded status at end of year $ 2,341 §

1, 934 $-Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at December 31, consist of unrecognized
actuanal loss of $ 4, 506, net of § 1, 198 tax in 2024 and $ 4, 506, net of $ 1, 198 tax in 2023 aﬂd—$é—2—74—net—e-f—$—l—492—taaem
2022-. The accumulated benefit oblrgatron for the defined benefit pension plan was $ 6, 932 at December 31,2024 and $ 8,
019 at December 31, 2023 and-$1+0;423-atPeeember3+-2022- The components of net periodic pension expense were as
follows: Service cost § — $ — $ — Interest cost Expected return on plan assets ( 767) ( 605) (732 3£574-) Net amortization and
deferral — — — Net periodic pension cost (benefit) (407) ( 151) (340) Additional loss due to settlement — — — Total
pension cost (benefit) $ (407) $ (151) $ (340) $Net loss (gain) recognized in other comprehensive income $ $ (972) $ (736 3%
£854-) Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost and other comprehensive loss (before tax) $ (407) $ (1, 123) $ (1, 076 ¥$
{83+0-) The components of net periodic benefit cost other than the service cost component are included in the line item “ Other
operating expenses ~ in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. The estimated net loss for the defined benefit pension plan
that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year is $
+65-80 . The Company did not -l-ﬁetlﬂ‘ed-——— incur any settlement costs related to the pension plan in 2024, 2023 -or 2022 and

-P-I:;%N—S—(Geﬁt—mued)—]’he werghted average assumptrons used to determine beneﬁt oblrgatrons at year- end were as follows
Discount rate on benefit obligation 5. 54 % 4. 76 % 4. 95 %52-74-% Long- term rate of return on plan assets 5. 00 % 5. 53 % 4 -
84-%3-. 84 % Rate of compensation increase 0. 00 % 0. 00 % 0. 00 % The weighted average assumptions used to determine net
periodic pension cost were as follows: Discount rate on benefit obligation 4. 76 % 4. 95 % 2. 74 %2-39-% Long- term rate of
return on plan assets 5. 53 % 4. 84 % 3. 84 %54-44-% Rate of compensation increase 0. 00 % 0. 00 % 0. 00 % The Company
uses long- term market rates to determine the discount rate on the benefit obligation. Declines in the discount rate lead to
increases in the actuarial loss related to the benefit obligation. The expectation for long- term rate of return on the pension assets
and the expected rate of compensation increases are reviewed periodically by management in consultation with outside actuaries
and primary investment consultants. Factors considered in setting and adjusting these rates are historic and projected rates of
return on the portfolio and historic and estimated rates of increases of compensation. Since the pension plan is frozen, the rate of
compensation increase used to determine the benefit obligation for 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-262+-was zero. The Company’ s
pension plan asset allocation at year- end 2024 and 2023 and-2622-and target allocation for 2024 by asset category are as
follows: Target Allocation Percentage of Plan Assets at Year- end Asset Category Equity securities 0- 30 % 20. 0 % 20. 0 %
Debt securities 70- 100 80. 0 80. 0 Total 100. 0 % 100. 0 % The Company developed the pension plan investment policies and
strategies for plan assets with its pension management firm. The assets are currently invested in seven diversified investment
funds, which include four equity funds and three bond funds. The long- term guidelines from above were created to maximize
the return on portfolio assets while reducing the risk of the portfolio. The management firm may allocate assets among the
separate accounts within the established long- term guidelines. Transfers among these accounts will be at the management firm’
s discretion based on their investment outlook and the investment strategies that are outlined at periodic meetings with the
Company. The expected long- term rate of return on the plan assets was 5. 00 % in 2024 and 5. 53 % in 2023 and-4—84-%in
2622-. This return is based on the expected return for each of the asset categories, weighted based on the target allocation for
each class. The Company does not expect to make any contribution to its pension plan in 2824-2025 . Employer contributions
totaled $ 0 in 2024 and 2023 ard-2822-. A decrease in the benefit obligations, offset by a decrease in the fair value of plan assets
led to an increase in the funded status from $ 8H-atDeeember34;2022-to-afunded-statusof$-1, 934 at December 31, 2023 to a
funded status of § 2, 341 at December 31, 2024 . Common / Collective Trust Funds Common / Collective Trust Funds are
valued at the daily net asset value (" NAV") as reported by the funds. These funds are not traded in an active market or
exchange, and the NAV per unit is calculated by dividing the net assets of the fund by the number of units outstanding, which
1ncludes observable 1nputs The rnethod descrlbed above may -l-Gé—GHLI-S:Eﬁ—BANGSHARE—S—HJ%NGCPE—S—'FG

dafa)—Ne:PE—lé—RESHREMENT—PJm%N-S{Geﬁﬁued)—produce a farr Value Calculatron that may not be 1nd1cat1ve of net

realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the pension plan believes its valuation method is
appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the
fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date. Certain
investments that are measured at fair value using the NAV per share (or its equivalent) as a practical expedient are not required
to be categorized in the fair value hierarchy tables. Fair Value of Investments in Entities That Use NAV The following table
summarizes investments measured at fair value based on NAV per share as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-,
respectively: December 31, 2823-2024 Fair Value Unfunded Commitments Redemption Frequency (if currently eligible)
Redemption Notice Period Common / collective trust funds $ 9, 953-273 N / A Daily Daily December 31, 2622-2023 Fair Value
Unfunded Commitments Redemption Frequency (if currently eligible) Redemption Notice Period Common / collective trust
funds $ +6-9 ,934-953 N / A Daily Daily The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be



indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the pension plan believes its valuation
methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to
determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.
Expected benefit payments over the next ten years , which reflect expected future service, are as follows: $ 2629-2030 through
20333278 Fetal-$-5;234-2034 2, 564 Supplemental Executive Retirement PlanCivista established a supplemental executive
retirement plan (“ SERP ) in 2011, which covers key members of management. The SERP was amended and restated effective
January 1, 2024. Under the SERP, participants will receive annually, following retirement, a percentage of their base
compensations at the time of their retirement for a maximum of ten years. The SERP liability recorded at December 31, 2623
2024 , was $ 4, 593, compared to $ 4, 083 ;eemparedte-$4,-628-at December 31, 2022-2023 . The expense related to the
SERP was $ 779, $ 233 and $ 420 and-$404-for 2024, 2023 ;and 2022 and-20624- respectively. Distributions to participants
made in 2024, 2023 sand 2022 ard-2024-totaled $ 270, $ 176, and $ 173 ;and-$+67, respectively. NOTE 16- EQUITY
INCENTIVE PLANAt the Company’ s 2014 annual meeting, the shareholders adopted the Company’ s 2014 Incentive Plan (**
2014 Incentive Plan ). The 2014 Incentive Plan autherizes-authorized the Company to grant options, stock awards, stock units
and other awards for up to 375, 000 common shares of the Company. The 2014 Incentive Plan expired in accordance with its
terms on April 16, 2024, and no further awards may be granted under the 2014 Incentive Plan after April 16, 2024. On
February 20, 2024, the Company' s Board of Director' s adopted the Civista Bancshares, Inc. 2024 Incentive Plan (the"
2024 Incentive Plan'"), which was subsequently approved by the shareholders of the Company at the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders held on April 16, 2024. The 2024 Incentive Plan authorizes the Company to grant options, stock awards,
stock units and other awards for up to 450, 000 common shares of the Company. There were 66-438 ., 849-087 shares
available for grants under this plan at December 31, 2823-2024 . No options were kad-beerrgranted under the 2014 Incentive
Plan as-ef-or the 2024 Incentive Plan during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-. Annually rreeent
sears-, the Board of Directors has awarded restricted common shares to senior officers of the Company. The restricted shares
vest ratably over a three- year or five- year period following the grant date. The product of the number of restricted shares
granted and the grant date market price of the Company’ s common shares determines the fair value of restricted shares under
the Company’ s 2044Ineentive-incentive Plan-plans . Management recognizes compensation expense for the fair value of
restricted shares on a straight- line basis over the requisite service period for the entire award. During the twelve months ended
December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 ard-2624, directors of the Company’ s banking subsidiary, Civista, were paid a retainer in
the form of non- restricted common shares of the Company. An aggregate of 10, 626, 11, 817 ;-and 8, 098 and-8;732-common
shares were issued to Civista directors in 2024, 2023 and 2022 ;2024-anrd-2024-, respectively, as payment of their retainer for
their service on the Civista Board of Directors. The issuances were expensed in their entirety when the shares were issued in the
amounts of § 154, $ 189 ;-$496-and $ 196, respectively. The Company includes share- based compensation for employees as “
Compensation expense ” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The following is a summary of the status of the
Company’ s restricted shares, and changes therein during the twelve months ended December 31, 2823-2024 : December 31,
2623-2024 Number ofRestrictedShares WeightedAverageGrant DateFair Value Nonvested at beginning of period 85, 76-670 5
096-6 21. 88 Granted 42, 239 15. 51 Vested (36, 060) 21. 47 Forfeited (1 , 536-518) 21. 41 85—Vesfed—(—39—2€€9£—1—62—119rfeﬁe&
H5H402F4-Nonvested at end of period 85-90 , 67624331 19 . 88-14 The following is a summary of the status of the
Company’ s awarded restricted shares as of December 31, 2023-2024 : At December 31, 2023-2024 Date of Award Shares
Remaining Expense Remaining Vesting Period (Years) March 14,20202,027 $—0. 00 March 3, 2649-- 2021 4,944 1 . 00
March 3, 9%4—$—2022 6,799 2 00 March 3 2022 4, 847 0. 00 March 14, %9%9—2023 4-13 , 062 2651+-06-Mareh-3 7 262+F
e .00 March 14,2023 17,4634-4311 .

00 March -1-4-12 %92—3—2024 2—7—26 8—34—238 4 00 March 12 2024 13 696 2 00 85—August 9 ,2024 676-%-1, +64-287 3. 00 90,
331 $ 1, 052 2. 34%8%%%%%@%&%@%9%%%

-INGEN—’PHLE—P-Im*N-Bt&mg————— Durlng the twelve months ended December 31, 2024 2023 and 2022 a-ﬁd—292—1— the Company
recorded share- based compensation expense of $ 718, $ 801 ;-and $ 630 and-$-506-, re%pectlvely, and-direetorretainerfees-of $
+82-$189-and-$196;respeetively;-for restricted shares granted under the 2644-Company' s Ineentive-incentive Plan-plans .

At December 31, 2023-2024 , the total compensation cost related to unvested awards not yet recognized was $ 1, +64-052 ,
which is expected to be recognized over the weighted average remaining life of the grants of 2. 65-34 years. NOTE 17- FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTGAAP establishes a hierarchal disclosure framework associated with the level of observable pricing
utilized in measuring assets and liabilities at fair value. The three broad levels defined by the hierarchy are as follows: Level 1:
Quoted prices for identical assets in active markets that are identifiable on the measurement date; Level 2: Significant other
observable inputs, such as quoted prices for similar assets, quoted prices in markets that are not active and other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data; Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect the Company’
s own view about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset. Securities: The fair values of securities
available for sale are determined by matrix pricing, which is a mathematical technique widely used in the industry to value debt
securities without relying exclusively on quoted prices for the specific securities, but rather by relying on the securities’
relationship to other benchmark quoted securities (Level 2 inputs). Equity securities: The Company has two types of equity
securities, one is not actively traded in an open market, while the other is listed on an exchange and is less frequently traded.
The fair value of equity securities available for sale not actively traded in an open market is determined by using market data
inputs for similar securities that are observable. (Level 2 inputs) Fair value swap asset / liability: The fair value of swap assets
and liabilities is based on an external derivative model using data inputs as of the valuation date and classified Level 2.

Collateral Dependent Loans: The Company generally measures impairment-onimpaired-the fair value of collateral dependent
loans based on the fair value of the loan’ s collateral. Fair value is generally determined based upon independent third- party



appraisals of the properties. In some cases, management may adjust the appraised value due to the age of the appraisal, changes
in market conditions, or observable deterioration of the property since the appraisal was completed. Additionally, management
makes estimates about expected costs to sell the property which are also included in the net realizable value. If the fair value of
the collateral dependent loan is less than the carrying amount of the loan, a specific reserve for the loan is made in the
allowance for teancredit losses or a charge- off is taken to reduce the loan to the fair value of the collateral (less estimated

sellm(y Costs) and the loan is mcluded in the table below asa Level 3 measurement. Meﬁgage—sememg—ﬂghfs—Meﬁgﬁge

Assets and llabllmes measured at fair value are sumlnallzed below Fair Value Measurements at Deaember 31,2023-2024
using: (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis: Securities available for sale U. S.
Treasury securities and obligations of U. S. Government agencies $ — $ 6797 , 658-387 $§ — Obligations of states and political
subdivisions — 338325 , 599-119 — Mortgage- backed securities in government sponsored entities — 242-225 , 645-561 —
Total securities available for sale — 615-648 , 272-067 — Equity securities — 2, +69-421 — Swap asset — +2-5 , 48+-308 —
Liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis: Swap liability — 42-11 , 484638 — Assets measured at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis: Meﬁg&ge—seﬁ‘ieiﬂg—ﬁgh-ts—Collateral- dependent loans $ — $ — §$3-19 , 648177 Fair Value
Measurements at December 31, 2822-2023 using: (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Assets measured at fair value on a recurring
basis: Securities available for sale U. S. Treasury securities and obligations of U. S. Government agencies $ — $ 6+67 , 625
658 § — Obligations of states and political subdivisions — 3+7338 , 248-599 — Mortgage- backed securities in government
sponsored entities — 237212 , +25-015 — Total securities available for sale — 6+5-618 , 462-272 — Equity securities — 2,
1+96-169 — Swap asset — +6-12 , 579-481 — Liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis: Swap liability — +6-12 ,

579481 — Assets measuled at fau \dlue ona nonlecumng basls CollateralMeﬁgage—seﬁ‘temg—ﬂghfs%—$—$£—68-9—l—}9
A I O ] A A1

E%}R—V%I:U-E—M-EA—SU{%EM-EN—P(Geﬂﬁnuedﬁ-dependent loans $

—8$—385, 083 The followi mg tables presents— present quantitative information about the Level 3 significant unobservable
inputs for assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-.
Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Value MeasurementsDecember 31, 2623-2024 Fair Value ValuationTechnique
Unobservablelnput Range WeightedAverageMortgage—- WeightedAverageCollateral ServieingRights— dependent loans $ 3
19 . 648-177 Appraisals which utilize sales comparison, net income and cost approach Biseetnted-Discounts CashFlovws
ConstantPrepaymentRate-4—6-for collection issues and changes in market conditions 10- 75 % 25 —H-%-6-%DiseountRate
+29%42-% Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Value MeasurementsDecember 31, 2822-2023 Fair Value
ValuationTechnique Unobservablelnput Range WeightedAverageMortgage— WeightedAverageCollateral ServieingRights—
dependent loans $ S, 083 Appraisals which utilize sales comparison, net income and cost approach Discounts for
collection issues and changes in market conditions 20- 50 % 27 % Fair Value of Financial Instruments Much of the
information used to arrive at “ fair value ” is highly subjective and judgmental in nature and therefore the results may
not be precise. Subjective factors include, among other things, estimated cash flows, risk characteristics and interest
rates, all of which are subject to change. With the exception of investment securities, the Company’ s financial
instruments are not readily marketable and market prices do not exist. Since negotiated prices for the instruments,
which are not readily marketable, depend greatly on the motivation of the buyer and seller, the amounts that will
actually be realized or paid per settlement or maturity of these instruments could be significantly different. The carrying
amount of cash and cash equivalents and accrued interest receivable, as a result of their short- term nature, is considered
to be equal to fair value and are classified as Level 1. The carrying amount of investments in time deposits is classified as
Level 2 --689-. It was not practicable to determine the fair value of FHLB stock due to restrictions placed on its
transferability. The Company uses an exit price income approach to determine the fair value of the loan portfolio. The
model utilizes a Biseounted-discounted €ash-cash Flows-Constant-flow approach to estimate the fair value of the loans
using assumptions for the coupon rates, remaining maturities, Prepayment-prepayment Rate-5-%—20-%7%-speeds,
projected default probabilities, losses given defaults, and estimates of prevailing Biseeunt-discount rates. The discounted
cash flow approach models the credit losses directly in the projected cash flows. The model applies various assumptions
regarding credit, interest, and prepayment risks for the loans based on loan types, payment types and fixed or variable
classifications. For all periods presented, the estimated fair value of individually analyzed loans is based on the fair value
of the collateral, less estimated cost to sell, or the present value of the loan’ s expected future cash flows (discounted at
the loan’ s effective interest Rate-rate +2-%12-%). All individually analyzed loans are classified as Level 3 within the
valuation hierarchy. Mortgage servicing rights' fair value is calculated based off a discount rate, prepayment speeds and
default rate and are classified at Level 3. The fair values of noninterest- bearing deposits are considered equal to the
amount payable on demand at the reporting date (i. e., carrying value) and are classified as Level 1. The fair value of
savings, NOW and certain money market accounts are equal to their carrying amounts and are a Level 1 classification.
Fair values of fixed rate certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest

>



rates currently being offered on certificates to a schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities on time deposits
resulting in a Level 3 classification. The fair values of subordinated debentures are estimated using a discounted cash
flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered on subordinated debentures to the schedule of
maturities on the subordinated debt tranches resulting in a Level 3 classification. FHLB advances with maturities
greater than 90 days are valued based on discounted cash flow analysis, using interest rates currently being quoted for
similar characteristics and maturities resulting in a Level 3 classification. The carrying amount and fair value of financial
instruments carried at amortized cost were as follows: December 31, 2024 CarryingAmount TotalFair Value Level 1 Level 2
Level 3 Financial Assets: Cash and due from financial institutions $ 63, 155 $ 63, 155 $ 63, 155 $ — $ — Investments in

time deposits 1, 450 1, 450 — $ 1, 450 — Other securities 30, 352 30, 352 30, 352 — — Loans, held for sale — — Loans,
net of allowance for credit losses 3, 041, 561 2, 919, 899 — — 2, 919, 899 Mortgage servicing rights 2, 877 3, 854 — — 3,
854 Accrued interest receivable 13, 453 13, 453 13, 453 — — Financial Liabilities: Nonmaturing deposits 2, 266, 916 2,
266, 916 2, 266, 916 — — Time deposits 944, 954 948, 734 — — 948, 734 Short- term FHLB advances 339, 000 339, 000
339, 000 — — Long- term FHLB advances 1, 501 1, 418 — — 1, 418 Subordinated debentures 104, 089 101, 175 — —
101, 175 Other borrowings 6, 293 6, 293 — — 6, 293 Accrued interest payable 9, 518 9, 518 9, 518 — — December 31,

2023 CarryingAmount TotalFair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Financial Assets: Cash and due from financial institutions $ 60,
406 $ 60,406 $ 60, 406 $ — $ — Investments in time deposits 1, 225 1,225 —$ 1, 225 — Other @ecuritie@ 29,998 29,998

988 ——2, 679, 988 Mortgage serv1c1ng rlghts 3 -Ban-leewned—h—fe—rﬁs*dfaﬁee-é-l— 33561018 3, 018 3—35—6—1—3—3% — 3 018

Accrued interest receivable 12, 819 12, 819 12, 819 — — Financial Liabilities: Nonmaturing deposits 2, 084, 216 2, 084, 216 2,
084, 216 — — Time deposits 900, 812 899, 443 — — 899, 443 Short- term FHLB advances 338, 000 337, 267 337,267 — —
Long-

Seeurities-sold-underagreement-torepurehase————————
Subordinated debentures 103, 943 101, 563 — — 101, 563 Other borrowings 9, 859 9, 859 — — 9, 859 Accrued interest
payable 9 525 9,5259, 525 %MWH%W&G%@EHW

AND OF F BALANCE SHEET RISKSome ﬁnanClal instruments, such as loan commitments, credit lmeq letters of credit, and
overdraft protection are issued to meet customer financing needs. These are agreements to provide credit or to support the credit
of others, as long as conditions established in the contract are met, and usually have expiration dates. Commitments may expire
without being used. Off- balance- sheet risk to credit loss exists up to the face amount of these instruments, although material
losses are not anticipated. The same credit policies are used to make such commitments as are used for loans, including
obtaining collateral at exercise of the commitment. The contractual amount of financial instruments with off- balance- sheet risk
was as follows at year- end. FixedRate VariableRate FixedRate VariableRate Commitments to extend credit: Lines of credit and
construction loans $ 31,940 $ 657, 401 $ 58, 318 $ 668, 893 $42:484-$-599;485-Overdraft protection 55, 085 59, 489 45482
Letters of credit $ 32, 732 $ 712, 730 $ 59, 149 § 728, 655 $43:354-$-644-997-Commitments to make loans are generally made
for a period of one year or less. Fixed- rate loan commitments included above had interest rates ranging from 3. 1 % t0 8. 9 %
at December 31, 2024 and 3. 5 % to 8. 5 % at December 31, 2023 and-3—25%to-8—06-%at Deeember3+2622- Maturities
extend up to 30 years. Civista is required to maintain certain reserve balances on hand in accordance with the Federal Reserve
Board requirements. The average reserve balance maintained in accordance with such requirements was $ 0 en-as of both
December 31, 2623-2024 and December 31, 2022-2023 respeetively-. CBI and Civista are parties to various claims and
proceedings arising in the normal course of business. Management, after consultation with legal counsel, believes that the
liabilities, if any, arising from such proceedings and claims will not be material to the consolidated balance sheet or results of
operations. NOTE 19- CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS AND RESTRICTION ON RETAINED EARNINGSCBI and Civista
(collectively, the “ Companies ) are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory- and possibly additional discretionary-
actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the financial statements. Under capital adequacy
guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Companies must meet specific capital guidelines that
involve quantitative measures of the Companies’ assets, liabilities, and certain off- balance- sheet items as calculated under U. S.
GAAP, regulatory reporting requirements, and regulatory capital standards. The Companies’ capital amounts and classification
are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors. Quantitative
measures established by regulatory capital standards to ensure capital adequacy require the Companies to maintain minimum
amounts and ratios (set forth in the following table) of total and Tier 1 capital to risk- weighted assets, common equity Tier 1
capital to total risk- weighted assets, and Tier 1 capital to average assets. Management believes, as of December 31, 2623-2024 ,
that the Companies met all capital adequacy requirements to which they were subject. As of December 31, 2024, and 2023 ;-and
2622-, the most recent notification from the Federal Reserve Bank categorized Civista as well capitalized under the regulatory
framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized, Civista must maintain minimum total risk- based
capital, Tier 1 risk- based capital, common equity Tier 1 risk- based capital, and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the table



below. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed Civista’ s category. The
Company’ s and Civista’ s actual capital levels and minimum required capital levels at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622
were as follows: To Be Well Capitalized Under For Capital Prompt Corrective Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Purposes
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Total Risk Based Capital Consolidated $ . 0 %n/a n/ a Civista 3799-363 , 447H-
033 12 . 3 177 6-%196-, 276426 6.0 236 %261, 693-568 8.0 %-CET1 Risk Based Capital Consolidated 342-288 , 384-895 9. 7
133 5-%+47, 324652 4.5 %n / an / a Civista 379-363 , 4471033 12 . 3 133 6-%1H47, 2602069 4.5 192 %242~ 626-211 6.5
%% everage Consolidated 344318 , 844322 8. 8 145 6 %158, 679489 4.0 %n / an/ a Civista 399-363 , 4479-033 10 . 0 145
696157, 823-245 4.0 181 %197, 298-556 5.0 %-Total Risk Based Capital Consolidated $ 395,125 14.1 % $ 217,681 8 429,
080 14.4 % $ 237,604 8.0 %n/an/aCivista 400, 047 13. 5 % 236, 568 8. 0 % $ 295, 710 10. 0 % Tier I Risk Based Capital
Consolidated 318, 322 10. 7 % 178,203 6 .0n/an/...... 1% 8 217,681 8.0%n/an/aCivista366-363 ,377-033 12. 92193
% 177 , 426 6 357-8-6-$27419616- 0 % Fier 1236, 568 8. 0 % CET1 Risk Based Capital Consolidated 293-288 , +6410-895
9.7 % 133, 652 4 +63;26+6-. 6-5 % n/an/a Civista 337363 , 866-033 12. 3 % 133, 069 4. 5 % 192, H-211 —9464;-5176.
5 % Leverage Consolidated 318, 322 8. 8 % 145, 489 4. 0 % 2—}9—357—8—9—GE5PI—RtsleBﬂsed-€a1ﬁ&l-€eﬂsehdated—26377-36
94142244645 / an/a Civista 337363 , 86611033 10 . 9423-0 % 145 , 388245 4. 0 % 181, 556 5 +78;2279-6-5
-I:ever&ge—Gensehd&ted%%—l—é‘H}% O % ﬁ+a—n+a—eﬁﬂsfa—3-377866—}9—9+34,—249-4—9+647959§—9—1—3

RE%%HJ—E—B—EARN-I—NGS—(Geﬂ&nﬂed}CBI s primary source of funds for paying d1V1dend% to its %hareholder% and for operating

expense is the cash accumulated from dividends received from Civista. Payment of dividends by Civista to CBI is subject to
restrictions by Civista’ s regulatory agencies. These restrictions generally limit dividends to the current and prior two years
retained earnings as defined by the regulations. In addition, dividends may not reduce capital levels below minimum regulatory
capital requirements. At December 31, 2023-2024 , Civista had $ 56-51 , 886-007 of net profits available to pay dividends to
CBI without requiring regulatory approval. NOTE 20- PARENT COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL
INFORMATIONCondensed financial information of CBI follows: December 31, Condensed Balance Sheets Assets: Cash $ 8,
879 $ 8, 331 $25-842-FEquity securities 2, 421 2, 169 25,496-Investment in bank subsidiary 460, 070 450, 791 434,263
Investment in nonbank subsidiaries 4, 041 3, 917 3;236-Other assets 18, 841 12, 354 3;332-Total assets $ 494, 252 $ 477, 562 %
444833 iabilities: Defe&ed—rneerne—taxes—aﬁd—eﬂaer—Other liabilities $ 1, 661 $ 1, 618 $-6;499-Subordinated debentures 104,
089 103, 943 +83;-799-Total liabilities 105, 750 105, 561 +89:-998-Shareholders’ Equity: Common stock 312,037 311, 166 3465
+82-Accumulated earnings 205, 408 183, 787 +56;492-Treasury stock (75, 586) (75, 422 3HF3:794-) Accumulated other
comprehensive loss ( 83, 357) (47, 530 358;-645-) Total shareholders’ equity 388, 502 372, 001 334;-835-Total liabilities and
shareholders’ equity $ 494, 252 $ 477, 562 $444,-833For the years ended December 31, Condensed Statements of Operations
Dividends from bank subsidiaries $ 20, 300 $ 28, 100 $ 26, 300 $149;-980-Dividends from non- bank subsidiaries 1, 350 1, 390
1, 150 5-660-Interest expense (4, 931) (4, 849) (3, 781) 956)-Pension benefit expense47H-Other expense, net ( 2,223) (1,
518) (2, 384 ¥45-664-) Income before equity in undistributed net earnings of subsidiaries 14, 903 23, 273 21, 625 48;893
Income tax benefit 1, 418 1, 309 1, 140 Equity in undistributed net earnings of subsidiaries 15, 362 18, 382 16, 662 245228 Net
income $ 31 683 $ 42 964 § 39, 427 -$—49%46—C01nprehen91ve income (10%@) $ 25, 856 $ 53 489 $ (27,438 )—$—34—747—1—1—4

INFORMATHONACeontinted-) For the years ended December 31, Condensed Statements of Cash Flows Operating activities:
Net income $ 31, 683. 00 $ 42, 964 . 00 $ 39, 427 . 00 $40,-546-Adjustment to reconcile net income to net cash from operating
activities: Change in other assets and other liabilities ( 5, 546) (12, 836) 4, 587 2495-Equity in undistributed net earnings of
subsidiaries ( 15, 362) (18, 382) (16, 662 H245228-) Net cash provided by operating activities 10, 775 11, 746 27, 352 245843
Investing activities: Pispesat-ofminerity-interest———5-500-Acquisition and additional capitalization of subsidiary, net of
cash acquired — (14, OOO) (25 960 )—(59—999—) Net Caqh u%ed in 1nvest1ng activities — (14, 000) (25, 960 H38;566-) Financing
activities: Proeeeds debenty e 86-Purchase of treasury stock ( 164) (1, 628)
(16, 887 )—(QQ—}99—) Ca%h d1V1dend§ paid ( 10, 063) ( 9 599) (8 493 H8;-036-) Net cash previded-byused in y-financing
activities (10, 227) (11, 227) (25, 380) 43;--84+Net change in cash and cash equivalents (13, 481) (23, 988) 26;354-Cash and
cash equivalents at beginning of year 8,331 21, 812 45, 800 49;446-Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 8, 879 $ 8, 331
$ 21, 812 $45;880-NOTE 21- EARNINGS PER COMMON SHAREThe factors used in the earnings per share computation
follow. Basic Net income $ 31, 683 $ 42, 964 $ 39, 427 $46,-546-L ess allocation of earnings and dividends to participating
securities 1, 583 Net income available to common shareholders — basic $ 31, 012 $ 41, 381 $ 38, 929 $46,373-Weighted
average common shares outstanding 15, 724, 768 15, 734, 624 15, 162, 032 45;468;863-Less average participating securities
333,029 579, 857 191, 402 65:-648-Weighted average number of shares outstanding used in the calculation of basic earnings per
common share 15, 391, 739 15, 154, 767 14, 970, 630 45;343;245-Basic earnings per share $ 2. 01 $ 2. 73 § 2. 60 $2-63
Diluted Net income available to common shareholders — basic $ 31, 012 $ 41, 381 $ 38, 929 $46,373Net income available to
common shareholders — diluted $ 31, 012 $ 41, 381 $ 38, 929 $46;,373-Weighted average common shares outstanding used in
the calculation of earnings per common share basic 15, 391, 739 15, 154, 767 14, 970, 630 45;343;245-Average shares and
dilutive potential common shares outstanding — diluted 15, 391, 739 15, 154, 767 14, 970, 630 45;:343;245-Diluted earnings
per share $ 2. 01 $2. 73 $ 2. 60 $2-63-Basic earnings per common share are calculated by dividing net income by the
weighted- average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per common share include the
dilutive effect, if any, of additional potential common shares issuable under the equity incentive plan, computed using the
treasury stock method. NOTE 22- DERIVATIVE HEDGING INSTRUMENTSTo accommodate customer need and to support
the Company’ s asset / liability positioning, on occasion we enter into interest rate swaps with a customer and a bank




counterparty. The interest rate swaps are free- standing derivatives and are recorded at fair value. The Company enters into a
floating rate loan and a fixed rate swap with our customer. Simultaneously, the Company enters into an offsetting fixed rate
swap with a bank counterparty. In connection with each swap transaction, the Company agrees to pay interest to the customer on
a notional amount at a variable interest rate and receive interest from the customer on the same notional amount at a fixed
interest rate. At the same time, the Company agrees to pay a bank counterparty the same fixed interest rate on the same notional
amount and receive the same variable interest rate on the same notional amount. These transactions allow the Company’ s
customer to effectively convert variable rate loans to fixed rate loans. Since the Company acts as an intermediary for its
customer, changes in the fair value of the underlying derivative contracts offset each other and do not significantly impact the
Company’ s results of operations unless a significant difference in credit risk emerges between the counterparties at either end of
one of the swap eontraets None of the Company s derlvatlves are de51gnated as hedglng instruments. -1—1-6-GI—VI-ST—A:

share-data - Hitred TheCompany
presents derivative posmons gross on the balance sheet for customers and net for ﬁnanc1al institution counterparty positions
subject to master netting arrangements . The fair value on the asset side was reduced by the margin call adjustment per the
Company' s netting arrangement in the amount of $ 6, 330 as of December 31, 2024 . The following table reflects the
derivatives recorded on the balance sheet as of December 31: Notional Amount Fair Value NotionalAmount Fair Value Swap
TneludedHnotherassets Interest rate swaps with loan customers in an asset position $ 68,621 $ 1,169 $ 44, 773 $ 2, 114 $-6;
980-$-Counterparty positions with financial institutions in an asset position 247, 727 10, 469 228, 873 10, 367 24257016, 318
Total neluded-inother-before netting adjustments 11, 638 12, 481 Netting adjustments- cash collateral posted by
counterparties * (6, 330) — Total Swap asscts $ 5,308 $ 12, 481 Swap $16;579Hneludedinacerned-expensesand-other
liabilities +Interest rate swaps with loan customers in a hablhty posmon $ 179 106 $ 11, 638 $ 184,100 $ 12 481 W@%
1+6;,-579-Counterparty positions with financial institutions in an-as ; 3 h 8
stitattons+n-a liability position — — — — Total mel-uded—m—aeefued—expenses—aﬂd-efhefbefore nettmg adJustments 11 638
12, 481 Netting adjustments- cash collateral posted to counterparties * * — — Total Swap liabilitics $ 11, 638 § 12, 481 §
1+6;-579-* Cash collateral posted by counterparties represents the obligation to return cash collateral received from
counterparties. * * Cash collateral posted to counterparties represents the right to reclaim cash collateral that was paid
to counterparties. Gross notional positions with customers $ 247, 727 $ 228, 873 $242,-576-Gross notional positions with
financial institution counterparties $ 247, 727 $ 228, 873 $242,-576-The effect of swap fair value changes on the Consolidated
Statement of Operatlons for the years ended December 31 2024 2023 sand 2022 and202+4-are as follows: Eeeatterref-Amount
of Gain or (Loss) Dertv AN enated-Recognized in Income on Derivatives Derivative
Not Designated as Hedgmg lnstmments Locatlon of Gain or (Loss) Recognized in Income on Derivative Interest rate swaps
related to customer loans Other income $ — $ — $ — Total § — § — § — The Company monitors and controls all derivative
products with a comprehensive Board of Director approved commercial loan swap policy. All hedge transactions must be
approved in advance by the Lenders Loan Committee or the Directors Loan Committee of the Board of Directors. The Company
classifies changes in the fair value of derivatives with “ Other ” in the Consolidated Statements of Operation. Any fees paid to
enter the swap contract at inception are recognized in earnings when received. Such fees amounted to $ 232 and $ 673 and-$
247-during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, respectively. The Company did not have any cash or
securities pledged as collateral on its interest rate swaps with third party financial institutions at December 31, 2024 or 2023 or
2622- NOTE 23 — QUALIFIED AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROJECT INVESTMENTSThe Company invests in qualified
affordable housing projects. At December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2822-, the balance of the Company’ s investments in qualified
affordable housing projects was $ 15, 850 and $ 15, 122 and-$+4:349-, respectively. These balances are reflected in the Other
assets line on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The unfunded commitments related to the investments in qualified affordable
housing projects totaled $ 5, 668 and $ 5, 722 and-$-5;634-at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022- respectively. These
balances are reflected in the Accrued expenses and other liabilities line on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. During the years
ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-26824-, the Company recognized amortization expense with respect to its
investments in qualified affordable housing projects of § 1,273, $ 1, 035 ;and $ 1, 086 and-$-848-, respectively, which was
included within pre- tax income on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Additionally, during the years ended December
31,2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-202+-, the Company recognized tax credits and other benefits from its investments in affordable
housing tax credits of $ 1,562, $ 1, 655 yand $ 1, 391 and-$35-402-, respectively. During the years ended December 31, 2024,
2023 ;and 2022 ard-26824-, the Company did not incur impairment losses related to its investment in qualified affordable
housing projects. NOTE 24 - REVENUE RECOGNITION The Company accounts for revenues from contracts with customers
under ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Revenue associated with financial instruments, including revenue
from loans and securities are outside the scope of the new standard and accounted for under existing GAAP. In addition, certain
noninterest income streams such as fees associated with mortgage servicing rights, financial guarantees, derivatives and certain
credit card fees are also not in scope of the new guidance. Noninterest revenue streams in- scope of ASC 606 are discussed
below. Service Charges Service charges consist of account analysis fees (i. e., net fees earned on analyzed business and public
checking accounts), monthly service fees, and other deposit account related fees. The Company’ s performance obligation for
account analysis fees and monthly service fees is generally satisfied, and the related revenue recognized, over the period in
which the service is provided. Other deposit account related fees are largely transactional based, and therefore, the Company’ s
performance obligation is satisfied, and related revenue recognized, at a point in time. Payment for service charges on deposit
accounts is primarily received immediately or in the following month through a direct charge to customers’ accounts. ATM /
Interchange Fees Fees, exchange, and other service charges are primarily comprised of debit and credit card income, ATM fees
and other service charges. Debit and credit card income is primarily comprised of interchange fees earned whenever the




Company’ s debit and credit cards are processed through card payment networks such as Mastercard. ATM fees are primarily
generated when a Company cardholder uses a non- Company ATM or a non- Company cardholder uses a Company ATM. The
Company’ s performance obligation for fees, exchange, and other service charges are largely satisfied, and related revenue
recognized, when the services are rendered or upon completion. Payment is typically received immediately or in the following
month. Wealth Management Fees Wealth management fees are primarily comprised of fees earned from the management and
administration of trusts and other customer assets. The Company’ s performance obligation is generally satisfied over time and
the resulting fees are recognized monthly, based upon the month- end market value of the assets under management and the
applicable fee rate. Payment is generally received in the following month through a d1rect charge to customers’ accounts. The
Company does not earn performance based incentives. Fh y Re g A hes Re

-KEGGG%H—"l"—ION—(Geﬂt—mued)—TaX Refund Processmg Fees The Company fa01htates the payment of federal and state income tax
refunds in partnership with a third- party vendor. Refund Transfers (“ RTs ) are fee- based products whereby a tax refund is
issued to the taxpayer after the Company has received the refund from the federal or state government. As part of this agreement
the Company earns fee income, the majority of which is received in the first quarter of the year. The Company’ s fee income
revenue is recognized based on the estimated percent of business completed by each date. The Company exited this line of
business in 2023 resulting in no fee income in 2024 or on a go- forward basis. Other Other noninterest income consists of
other recurring revenue streams such as check order fees, wire transfer fees, safety deposit box rental fees, item processing fees
and other miscellaneous revenue streams. Check order income mainly represents fees charged to customers for checks. Wire
transfer fees represent revenue from processing wire transfers. Safe deposit box rental fees are charged to the customer on an
annual basis and recognized upon receipt of payment. The Company determined that since rentals and renewals occur fairly
consistently over time, revenue is recognized on a basis consistent with the duration of the performance obligation. Item
processing fee income represents fees charged to other financial institutions for processing their transactions. Payment is
typically received in the following month. The following presents noninterest income, segregated by revenue streams in- scope
and out- of- scope of Topic 606, for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-2621-. For the years ended
December 31, Noninterest Income In- scope of Topic 606: Service charges $ 6,114 $ 7, 206 § 7, 074 $5;985-ATM /
Interchange fees 5, 841 5, 880 5, 499 5;443-Wealth management fees 5, 519 4, 767 4, 902 4;-85%Tax refund processing fees —
2,375 2, 375 2,.395-Other 1, 649 10, 220 4, 686 5855 Noninterest Income (in- scope of Topic 606) 19, 123 30, 448 24, 536 19;
635-Noninterest Income (out- of- scope of Topic 606) 18, 625 6, 715 4, 540 H58++Total Noninterest Income $ 37, 748 $ 37,
163 $ 29, 076 $34;452-NOTE 25- LEASES We have operating leases for several branch locations and office space. The
Company’ s lease agreements do not contain any material residual value guarantees or material restrictive covenants. We also
lease certain office equipment under operating leases. Many of our leases include both lease (e. g., minimum rent payments) and
non- lease (e. g., common- area or other maintenance costs) components. The Company accounts for each component separately
based on the standalone price of each component. In addition, we have several operating leases with lease terms of less than one
year and therefore, we have elected the practical expedient to exclude these short- term leases from our right- of- use (ROU)
assets and lease liabilities. Most leases include one or more options to renew. The exercise of lease renewal options is typically
at our sole discretion. The majority of renewals to extend the lease terms are included in our ROU assets and lease liabilities as
they are reasonably certain of exercise. As most of our leases do not provide an implicit rate, we use the fully collateralized
FHLB borrowing rate, commensurate with the lease terms based on the information available at the lease commencement date

in determmmg the present Value of the lease payments H&GWPS%A—BANGSHARES—H%&NG:PESJFG-GGNSGEHBA:PEB

-I:EArS-E—S—fGeﬂt-muedé—The balance sheet 1nformat10n related to our operating leases were as follows as of December 31,2024
and 2023 and-2022-: Classification on the Consolidated Balance Sheet December 31, 2623-2024 December 31, %92—2—2023
Assets: Operating lease Other assets $ 1, 063 $ 1, 632 $2,108-Liabilities: Operating lease Accrued expenses and other liabilities
$ 1,063 $ 1, 632 $2,408-The cost components of our operating leases were as follows for the periods ended December 31,
2024 and 2023 ard2022- December 31, 2023-2024 December 31, 2022-2023 Lease cost Operating lease cost $ $ Short- term
lease cost Sublease income ( 28) (26 3H29-) Total lease cost $ § Maturities of our lease liabilities for all operating leases for each
of the next five years and thereafter is as follows: $ —Thereafter —Total lease payments $ 1, 798222 Less: Imputed Interest
Present value of lease liabilities $ 1, 632-063 The weighted average remaining lease terms and discount rates for all of our
operating leases were as follows as of December 31, 2623-2024 : Weighted- average remaining lease term- operating leases
(years) 4-5 . 29-89 Weighted- average discount rate- operating leases 2. $9-94 % The Company is the lessor of equipment under
operating leases to a wide variety of customers, from commercial and industrial to government and healthcare. The operating
lease assets are presented on the balance sheet as Premises and equipment. The Company records lease revenue over the term of
the lease and retains ownership of the related assets which are depreciated over the estimated useful life, normally two to six
years. The Company also leases equipment to customers under direct financing leases. At the inception of each lease, the lease
receivables, together with the present value of the estimated unguaranteed residual values are presented on the balance sheet as
Loans. The excess of the lease receivables and residual values over the cost of the equipment is recorded as unearned lease
income and will be recognized over the lease term, normally two to six years as well . NOTE 26- SEGMENT
REPORTINGThe Company conducts its operations through one single business segment, which is determined by the
Chief Financial Officer, who is the designated chief operating decision maker, (" CODM"). This decision is based upon
information provided about the Company' s products and services offered. The segment is also distinguished by the level
of information provided to the CODM, who uses such information to review performance of various components of the



business, which are then aggregated if operating performance, products / services, and customers are similar. The
CODM evaluates revenue streams, significant expenses, and budget to actual results in assessing the Company' s
segment and in the determination of allocating resources. The CODM uses revenue streams to evaluate product pricing
and significant expenses to assess performance and evaluate return on assets. The CODM uses consolidated net income
to benchmark the Company against its competitors. The benchmarking analysis coupled with monitoring of budget to
actual results are used in assessment performance and in establishing compensation. Loans and investments provide the
majority of revenues in the banking operation. Interest expense, provision for credit losses, and compensation expense
provide the significant expenses in the banking operation. The Company' s segment assets represent its total assets as
presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. All of the Company' s earnings relate to its operations within the United
States . [tem 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure The Company has
had no disagreements with its independent accountants on matters of accounting principles or practices, financial statement
disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure required to be reported under this Item. Item 9A. Controls and Procedures Evaluation
of Disclosure Controls and Procedures Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and our Principal Accounting Officer, we evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rule 13a- 15 under the Exchange Act, as of the end of the fiscal year covered
by this Annual Report on Form 10- K. Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Principal Accounting
Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2023-2024 , were effective. Management’ s
Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting The “ MANAGEMENT” S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING ” is included in" ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY
DATA" of this Annual Report on Form 10- K. Audit Report of the Registered Public Accounting Firm The “ REPORT OF
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ” is included in" ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA" of this Annual Report on Form 10- K. Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in the Company’ s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Company’ s most
recent fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2623-2024 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect,
the Company’ s internal control over financial reporting. Item 9B. Other Information (a) There was no information the
Company was required to disclose in a current report on Form 8- K during the fourth quarter of 2623-2024 that was not reported.
(b) During the quarter ended December 31, 2023-2024 , no director or officer (as defined under Rule 16a- 1 of the Exchange
Act) adopted or terminated any Rule 10b5- 1 trading arrangements or any non- Rule 10b5- 1 trading arrangements (in each case,
as defined in Item 408 (a) of Regulation S- K). Item 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections
PART III Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate Governance The information contained under the captions
Proposal 1 — Election of Directors ”, “ Beneficial Ownership of Common Shares of the Corporation — Delinquent Section 16 (a)
Reports 7, “ Board of Director Meetings and Committees — Committees of the Board — Audit Committee ™, “ Corporate
Governance — Code of Ethics ”, “ Corporate Governance — Nominating Procedure ” and *“ Executive Officers of the Corporation
” in the 2024-2025 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference in response to this Item. The procedures by which
shareholders of the Company may recommend nominees to the Company’ s Board of Directors are described under the caption
Corporate Governance — Nominating Procedure * in the 2824-2025 Proxy Statement. The procedures by which shareholders of
the Company may recommend nominees to the Company’ s Board of Directors have not materially changed from those
described in the Company’ s definitive Proxy Statement for the 2823-2024 annual meeting of shareholders held on April +8-16 ,
2623-2024 . Insider Trading Arrangements and Policies The Company has adopted an Insider Trading Policy that
governs the purchase, sale, and / or dispositions of the Company’ s securities by directors, officers and employees that is
designed to promote compliance with insider trading laws, rules and regulations, and any listing standards applicable to
the Company. A copy of the Insider Trading Policy is filed as Exhibit 19 to this Form 10- K . [tem | 1. Executive
Compensation. The information contained under the captions *“ 2623-2024 Compensation of Directors ”, “ Compensation
Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation ” and *“ Executive Compensation ” in the 2624-2025 Proxy Statement is
incorporated herein by reference in response to this Item. Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management and Related Stockholder Matters. The information contained under the caption *“ Beneficial Ownership of
Common Shares of the Company ” in the 2024-2025 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference in response to this
Item. The following table shows the number of common shares remaining available for awards under the Company’ s 2644
2024 Incentive Plan at December 31, 2823-2024 . Equity Compensation Plan Information Plan category (a) Number of
CommonShares to be issued uponexerciseof outstanding options, warrants and rights (a) (b) Weighted- averageexercise price
ofoutstanding options, warrants and rights (b) (¢) Number of CommonShares remainingavailable for futureissuance under
equitycompensation plans (excluding commonshares reflected incolumn (a)) Equity compensation plans approved by
shareholders — — 60-438 , 949-087 Equity compensation plans not approved by shareholders — — — Total — — 66-438 ,
649-087 Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence. The information contained under
the caption “ Corporate Governance — Director Independence ” and *“ Corporate Governance — Transactions with Directors,
Officers and Related Persons  in the 2824-2025 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference in response to this Item.
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services. The information contained under the caption “ Audit Committee Matters ” of
the 2024-2025 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference in response to this Item. PART IV Item 15. Exhibit and
Financial Statement Schedules (a) Documents filed as a Part of the Report 1. Financial Statements. Civista Bancshares, Inc.” s
Report of Independent Auditors and Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying notes are filed as part of this
document under Item 8. Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Financial Statements ( Plante & Moran,
PLLC: PCAOB ID: 686-166 ) Consolidated Balance Sheets- December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-Consolidated Statements
of Operations- For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;and 2022 and202+-Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive



Income- For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and2624-Consolidated Statements of Changes in
Shareholders’” Equity- For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-2624-Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows- For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and2624-2. Financial Statement Schedules. All schedules are
omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is shown in the financial statements or notes thereto. 3.
ExhibitsExhibit Description Location 2. 1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated January 10, 2022 by and between Civista
Bancshares, Inc. and Comunibanc Corp. Filed as Exhibit 2. 1 to Civista Bancshares, Inc.” s Current Report on Form 8- K dated
and filed on January 10, 2022 and incorporated herein by reference. (File No. 001- 36192). 2. 2 Stock Purchase Agreement,
dated as of September 29, 2022, by and among Civista Bancshares, Inc., Vision Financial Group, Inc., and Frederick Summers
Filed as Exhibit 2. 1 to Civista Bancshares, Inc.” s Current Report on Form 8- K dated September 29, 2022 and filed on
September 30, 2022 and incorporated herein by reference. (File No. 001- 36192). 3. 1 Second Amended and Restated Articles of
Incorporation of Civista Bancshares, Inc., as filed with the Ohio Secretary of State on November 15, 2018 Filed as Exhibit 3. 1
to Civista Bancshares, Inc.” s Current Report on Form 8- K dated and filed on November 16, 2018 and incorporated herein by
reference (File No. 001- 36192). 3. 2 Amended and Restated Code of Regulations of Civista Bancshares, Inc. (adopted April 15,
2008). Filed as Exhibit 3. 2 to Civista Bancshares, Inc.” s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the period ended September 30,
2017, filed on November 8, 2017 and incorporated herein by reference. (File No. 001- 36192) 4. 1 Indenture dated November
30, 2021, by and between Civista Bancshares, Inc. and UMB Bank, National Association, as Trustee. Filed as Exhibit 4. 1 to
Civista Bancshares, Inc.” s Current Report on Form 8- K dated and filed on November 30, 2022 and incorporated herein by
reference (File No. 001- 36192). 4. 2 Forms of 3. 25 % Fixed- to- Floating Rate Subordinated Notes due 203 1. Included as
Exhibit A- 1 and Exhibit A- 2 to the Indenture filed as Exhibit 4. 1 hereto. 4. 3 Agreement to furnish instrument and agreements
defining rights of holders of long- term debt. Included herewith. 4. 4 Description of Capital Stock of Civista Bancshares, Inc.
Filed as Exhibit 4. 2 to Civista Bancshares, Inc.” s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2021, filed
on March 15, 2021 and incorporated herein by reference (File No. 001- 36192). 10. 1 * Form of Change in Control Agreement
by and among Civista Bancshares, Inc., Civista Bank and certain executive officers. Filed as Exhibit 10. 1 to Civista Bancshares,
Inc.” s Current Report on Form 8- K dated and filed on March 8, 2019 and incorporated herein by reference. (File No. 001-
36192). 10. 2 * Form of Amended and Restated Change in Control Agreement by and among Civista Bancshares, Inc., Civista
Bank and certain executive officers. Filed as Exhibit 10. 1 to Civista Bancshares, Inc.” s Current Report on Form 8- K dated and
filed on March 8, 2019 and incorporated herein by reference. (File No. 001- 36192). 10. 3 * Form of Pension Shortfall
Agreement by and among Civista Bancshares, Inc., Civista Bank and certain executive officers. Filed as Exhibit 10. 2 to Civista
Bancshares, Inc.” s Current Report on Form 8- K dated and filed on October 29, 2015 and incorporated herein by reference.
(File No. 001- 36192). 10. 4 * Civista Bancshares, Inc. Supplemental Nonqualified Executive Retirement Plan , as amended
and restated as of January 1, 2024 Filed as Exhibit 10. +2-1 to Civista Bancshares, Inc.” s Current Report on Form 8- K
dated and filed on February 22, 2024 (File No. 001- 36192). 10. 5 * Civista Bancshares, Inc. 2014 Incentive Plan Filed as
Exhibit 10. 1 to Civista Bancshares, Inc.” s Registration Statement on Form S- 8 filed on February 26, 2015 and
incorporated herein by reference (File No. 333- 202316). 10. 6 * Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under
Civista Bancshares, Inc. 2014 Incentive Plan Filed as Exhibit 10. 8 to Civista Bancshares, Inc.” s Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the year ended December 31, %9—1—1—2018 ﬁled on March 15 %9-1—2—2019 and 1ncorp0rated herern by reference (-F-r}e—Ne— -
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Policy Included herew1th21 1 Sub%rdrarres of Civista Bancshares, Inc Included herewrth23 1 Consent of Plante Moran
Included herewith23. 2 Consent FORVIS MAZARS sEER-Included herewith31. 1 Rule 13a- 14 (a) / 15-d- 14 (a)
Certification of Chief Executive Officer Included herewith31. 2 Rule 13a- 14 (a) / 15- d- 14 (a) Certification of Principal
Accounting Officer Included herewith32. 1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 Included herewith32. 2 Certification of Principal
Accounting Officer pursuant to 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of
2002 Included herewith Clawback Policy Included herewitht04—-- herewith 101 . INS Inline XBRL Instance Document — the
instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File as its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL
document 101. SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema with Embedded Linkbase Documents Cover page formatted as
Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101 * Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement Item 16. Form 10- K
Summary SIGNATURES Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. (Registrant)
Civista Bancshares, Inc. By /s / Dennis G. Shaffer Dennis G. Shaffer, President & CEO (Principal Executive Officer) Date:
March +4-10 , 2624-2025 Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed on
March +4-10 , 2624-2025 by the following persons (including a majority of the Board of Directors of the Registrant) in the



capacities indicated: / s / Dennis E. Murray, Jr. / s / Dennis G. Shaffer Dennis E. Murray, Jr., Chairman of the Board Dennis G.
Shaffer, President & CEO, Vice Chair /s / Ian Whinnem Fedd-A-—Miehel-/ s / John-O-Gerald B . Wurmlan Whinnem
BaeconTodd-A—Michel, Scnior Vice President John-©O-Gerald B .Baee-n—Wurm , Director (Principal Accounting Officer) /s
Darci L. Congrove /s / Mark J. MacioceDarci L. Congrove, Director Mark J. Macioce, Director /s / Julie A. Mattlin / s / James
O. MillerJulie A. Mattlin, Director James O. Miller, Director / s / AderR-Lorina W . Wise Nieldes;- €RA-CFECICA/ s / M.
Patricia Ghveﬁ%Heﬁ—R—OllverLorlna W . Wise Nieldes; CRA-CFE-CIEA-, Director M. Patricia Oliver, Director /s / Clyde A."
Chip" Perfect / s / Harry SingerClyde A Chip" Pu fect, Dmglm Harry Singer, Director / s / Nathan [ Weaks +s+orinaW-
%seN&ﬂa&n————— Nathan E. Weaks e 0 WS d W varar-, Director Exhibit
4.3 [ CIVISTA BANCSHARES, INC. LETTERHEAD] F Street, NE \\ d\hmﬁlon D( )549 RL Civista Bancshares, Inc.
Form 10- K for the fiscal year ended December 3 .%92—3—2024 Ladies and Gentlemen: Civista Bamsh(uus. Inc., an Ohio
corporation (“ CBI ”), is today filing an Annual Report on Form 10- K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2823-2024 (the
Form 10- K), as executed on March +4-10 , 2624-2025 . Pursuant to the instructions relating to the Exhibits in Item 601 (b) (4)
(ii1) of Regulation S- K, CBI hereby agrees to furnish the (‘0mmis>ion, upon request, copies of instruments and agreements
defining the rights of holders of'its long- term debt and of the long- term debt of its consolidated subsidiaries, which are not
being filed as exhibits to the Form 10- K. None of such long- term debt exceeds 10 % of the total assets of CBI and its
subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. Very truly yours, Exhibit 19. 1 Approved by Civista Bancshares, Inc. Board of
Directors: 10 /22 /2024 Approved by Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee: 05 /21 /2024 CIVISTA
BANCSHARES, INC. INSIDER TRADING POLICY STATEMENT OF POLICY Civista Bancshares, Inc. (“ Civista ”
or the “ Company ”) is a public company, the common stock of which is registered under the Securities and Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended (the “ Exchange Act ). Pursuant to the Exchange Act, Civista files periodic reports and proxy
statements with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“ SEC ”). Investment by executive officers and directors in
Civista stock is generally desirable and encouraged. However, such investments should be made with caution and with
recognition of the legal prohibitions against the use of confidential information by" insiders" for their own profit. This
Policy applies to all transactions in the Company’ s securities, including common stock, restricted stock, restricted stock
units, options and warrants to purchase common stock and any other debt or equity securities the Company may issue
from time to time, such as bonds, preferred stock and convertible debentures, as well as to derivative securities relating
to the Company’ s securities, whether or not issued by the Company, such as exchange- traded options. It applies to all
employees, officers and directors of the Company and members of their immediate families who reside with them or
anyone else who lives in their household and family members who live elsewhere but whose transactions in Company
securities are directed by such employees, officers and directors or subject to their influence and control (collectively
referred to as “ Family Members ). This Policy also imposes specific black- out period and pre- clearance procedures on
officers, directors and certain other designated employees who receive or have access to Material Nonpublic Information
(as defined below) regarding the Company and / or are subject to the reporting provisions and trading restrictions of
Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “ Exchange Act ”). As a director or executive officer of a public
company, you have the responsibility not to participate in the market for Civista stock while in possession of material,
non- public information about the Company. There are harsh civil and criminal penalties if you wrongly obtain or use
such material, non- public information when you are deciding whether to buy or sell securities, or if you give that
information to another person who uses it in buying or selling securities. If you do buy or sell securities while in
possession of material non- public information, you will not only have to pay back any money you made, but you could
be found guilty of criminal charges, and face substantial fines or even prison. Additionally, Civista could face
reputational and financial risk as a result of your violations of insider trading laws. As a director or executive officer of a
public company, you also have the responsibility to comply with the “ short- swing profit ” rule in Section 16 (b) and file
periodic reports regarding changes in your ownership of Civista stock pursuant to Section 16 (a) of the Exchange Act.
Violations or failure to comply with these Section 16 restrictions can also result in enforcement actions against you. In
order to avoid these consequences, Civista has developed the following guidelines to briefly explain the insider trading
laws, set forth the Company’ s trading guidelines for executive officers and directors and describe the procedures you
should follow to ensure the timely filing of your Section 16 reports with the SEC. However, it does not address all
possible situations that you may face. While this policy describes some relevant legal requirements, it cannot provide a
comprehensive description of the law on these subjects and is not intended to provide legal advice, you should refer to
the applicable law, rules and regulations and seek appropriate legal advice with respect to these issues. The current «
Insider Trading Compliance Officers ” referred to herein include the General Counsel of the Company and the Chief
Risk Officer. These officers will typically work together to determine if a pre- clearance can be approved. However, in
the event an Insider Trading Compliance Officer is unavailable, each of the Insider Trading Compliance Officers are
able to individually provide a response to a Pre- Clearance Request Form submission. INSIDER TRADING
CONCEPTS What is" Inside" Information? Inside information includes anything you become aware of because of your
“ special relationship ” with the Company as an executive officer or director, which has not been disclosed to the public.
The information may be about the Company or its bank subsidiary or other affiliates. It may also include information
you learn about another company, for example, companies that are current or prospective customers or suppliers to a
bank subsidiary or those with which the Company may be in negotiations regarding a potential transaction. What is
Material Information? Information is material if an investor would think that it is important in deciding whether to buy,
sell or hold stock, or if it could affect the market price of the stock. Either good or bad information may be material. If
you are unsure whether the information is material, assume it is material. Examples of material information typically
include, but are not limited to: * Company financial performance; ¢ estimates of future earnings or losses; * events that




could result in restating financial information; ¢ a proposed acquisition or sale; * beginning or settling a major lawsuit; ¢
changes in dividend policies; * declaring a dividend or stock split; ¢ a stock or bond offering; or * winning a large new
contract (or losing a large contract). What is Non- public Information? Non- public information is information that has
not yet been made public by the company. Information only becomes public when the company makes an official
announcement (in a publicly accessible press release or in SEC filings, for example) and people have had an opportunity
to see or hear it. Therefore, you should not buy or sell stocks or other securities before the public announcement of
material information. It is usually safe to buy or sell stock after the information is officially announced, as long as you do
not know of other material information that has not yet been announced. Even after the information is announced, you
should generally wait about two full trading days before buying or selling securities to allow the market to absorb the
information. TRADING GUIDELINES Prohibition Against Trading While In Possession of Material Non- Public
Information You may not purchase or sell stocks or other securities of Civista or of any other company when you are
aware of any material, non- public information about that company, no matter how you learned the information. You
also must not “ tip ” or otherwise give material, non- public information to anyone, including people in your immediate
family, friends or anyone acting for you (such as a stockbroker). Restricted trading periods (commonly referred to as «
black out ” periods) are periods designated by Civista as times in which you may not trade in Civista stock regardless of
your actual possession or non- possession of material, non- public information. These restricted trading periods are
instituted by Civista for a variety of reasons. One such restricted trading period is instituted prior to Civista releasing its
quarterly results. This restricted trading period begins one full calendar week prior to the end every calendar quarter
and lasts until two full trading days after Civista releases its results for that quarter. Pre- clearance of Trades The
Company has determined that all executive officers and directors and their Family Members must refrain from trading
in the Company’ s securities, without first complying with the Company’ s “ pre- clearance ” process. Each executive
officer or director must contact the Company’ s Insider Trading Compliance Officers not less than two (2) business days
nor more than ten (10) business days prior to commencing any trade in the Company’ s securities. This pre- clearance
requirement applies to any transaction or transfer involving the Company’ s securities, including a stock plan
transaction such as an option exercise, or a gift, transfer to a trust or any other transfer. The Insider Trading
Compliance Officers will confer and the clearance of one or both is required in order for each proposed trade or transfer
to be compliant with this policy. The Insider Trading Compliance Officers are not under any obligation to approve a
trade submitted for pre- clearance, and may determine not to clear a trade in accordance with this policy. To facilitate
the process, the Company has prepared a pre- clearance form, attached hereto as Attachment C, to be completed and
provided to the Insider Trading Compliance Officers. The Insider Trading Compliance Officers will assist with the
approval process. No trade or transfer may be effected until the requesting employee, officer or director has received the
approved Pre- Clearance Request Form, even if two (2) business days have passed since the Pre- Clearance Request
Form was submitted. In other words, the Insider Trading Compliance Officers will endeavor to respond to a submitted
Pre- Clearance Request Form within two days or less. However, even if circumstances prevent these officers from
responding in two days from the date of submission, this should not be considered clearance or an opportunity to trade
until or unless such clearance is provided by the Insider Trading Officer (s). Any executive officer and director who
wishes to implement a trading plan under SEC Rule 10b5- 1 must first pre- clear the plan with the Insider Trading
Compliance Officers. As required by Rule 10b5- 1, an executive officer or director may enter into a trading plan only
when he or she is not in possession of Material Nonpublic Information. In addition, a trading plan may not be entered
into during a Blackout Period. Transactions effected pursuant to a pre- cleared trading plan will not require further pre-
clearance at the time of the transaction. Additional Prohibited Transactions It is improper and inappropriate to engage
in short- term or speculative transactions involving Company securities. It is the Company’ s policy not to engage in any
of the following activities with respect to Company securities: * Purchases of Company securities on margin * Buying or
selling puts or calls. * Trading securities on a short- term basis. Any Company security purchased must be held for a
minimum of six months and ideally longer. Short Swing Profits Section 16 (b) of the Exchange Act contains the “ Short-
Swing Profit ” rules. The rules impose strict liability on officers, directors and 10 % owners for any profits realized from
a purchase and sale or a sale and purchase of the company’ s stock within less than six months. If a person subject to the
rules purchases or sells and then completes an opposite transaction within six months, the rules require the person to
disgorge to the company any profits that would have been realized when the transactions are matched to one another. It
applies regardless of whether the sale or the purchase happens first. For example, if the person sells shares of the
company that he or she already owns and then purchases shares within six months of that date for a lower price, he or
she would owe the company the difference between the sale price and the purchase price. Section 16 (b) permits the
company or the owner of any security in the company to bring a legal action to recover short- swing profits for the
company. It also permits the recovery of attorneys’ fees. SECTION 16 REPORTING Overview The SEC’ s rules under
Section 16 (a) of the Exchange Act as well as Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933 impose reporting requirements
on executive officers, directors and 10 % shareholders. If there is any change in your ownership of Civista securities at
any time, other than through certain exempt Company benefit plans, you will be required to file a Form 4 with the SEC
reporting the change. In virtually all cases, the Form 4 must be filed no later than the second business day following the
execution date of the transaction. Sales of Civista securities by its “ affiliates ” are subject to specific regulations under
the federal securities laws. Rule144 under the Securities Act of 1933 provides a “ safe harbor ” procedure under which
certain sales by affiliates are permitted. Each officer and director is deemed to be an “ affiliate ” and thus each officer of
the Company and director need to comply with Rule 144 when selling common shares held either directly or beneficially.
Form 144 is required if more than S, 000 shares or shares valued at more than $ 50, 000 are sold during any three-



month period. Further, Rule 144 places limitations on the number of common shares that may be sold under the safe
harbor rule. Generally, the number of common shares that may be sold in any three- month period is 1 % of the
outstanding shares of the same class being sold. You are also required to report certain exempt transactions to the SEC
at year- end on a Form 5. The number and types of transactions eligible for Form 5 reporting are very limited. Gifts As
long as a gift of shares is bona fide, it is an exempt transaction and thus not subject to the Section 16 profit recovery
provisions. However, you could be exposed to Section 16 liability if you make a gift of shares to a family member or
related entity and that donee sells the shares within six months. Thus, except in the case of gifts of shares to a public
charity, it is recommended that you have an understanding with the donee to obtain your clearance prior to a sale of any
gifted shares. Although exempt from profit recovery under Section 16, gifts must be reported. Consequences of
Delinquent Filings The consequences of a late filing or the failure to file required Section 16 reports are significant: ¢
public embarrassment to you and the Company from required disclosures in the proxy statement and Form 10- K;
potential SEC enforcement actions against you, such as a cease- and- desist order or injunction against further
wrongdoing; and e for egregious or repeated violations, possible criminal penalties can be imposed which can include
SEC fines of up to $ S, 000 per day for each filing violation and / or imprisonment. Section 16 Compliance Program
Under SEC rules, the preparation and filing of Section 16 (a) reports is your sole responsibility. However, because of the
complexities of compliance with the Section 16 (a) filing requirements and to help prevent inadvertent violations of the
short- swing profit rules, the Company has determined that it is prudent to provide you with assistance in preparing and
filing your reports. In this regard, the following compliance procedures have been implemented: 1. DESIGNATED
FILING COORDINATOR The Executive Assistant (the “ Filing Coordinator ) can assist all executive officers and
directors in preparing, reviewing and filing all Forms 3, 4 and 5. A Form 3 initial report has been filed for all current
Company officers and directors. 2. PREPARATION AND FILING If you have any transaction or change in ownership
in your Company stock or other equity securities (including derivative securities), please report the transaction (s) to the
Filing Coordinator no later than the execution date of the transaction. The Filing Coordinator will contact you each
January to coordinate preparation of your Form 5 (if applicable). Upon receiving the details of the transaction (s) from
you, the Filing Coordinator will prepare each Form 4 and Form S on your behalf. Due to the short two- day period in
which to file the reports, the Filing Coordinator may have the Form executed on your behalf using the power of attorney
that you have granted to the Company for this purpose and will file the completed Form with the SEC. As discussed
above, the SEC must receive the Form 4 no later than the second business day following almost any transaction, and
Form 5 must be received by February 14th each year, so time is of the essence. The Filing Coordinator will send you a
copy of the Form 4 or 5 as filed with the SEC promptly following the filing. Please contact the Filing Coordinator
immediately if you believe there may be any errors in the filing. If so, the Filing Coordinator will promptly amend the
Form. In most cases, the filing of an amendment to correct information will not result in the initial filing being deemed a
late filing; so no proxy disclosure or other penalties should apply. 3. THE ULTIMATE RESPONSIBILITY RESTS ON
YOU While the Company has decided to assist executive officers and directors with Section 16 compliance, you should
recognize that it will remain your legal obligation to ensure that your filings are made timely and correctly, and that you
do not engage in unlawful short- swing transactions. The Company can only facilitate your compliance to the extent you
provide the Company with the information required by this Policy. The Company does not assume any legal
responsibility in this regard. If you would like more detailed information regarding your Section 16 obligations please
contact the Filing Coordinator. RISK IDENTIFICATION & THE CONTROL ENVIRONMENT Review of Policy The
board of directors, or its designee, shall approve this policy at least annually, making such revisions and amendments as
it deems appropriate. Management Oversight / Authority & Responsibility The Chief Risk Officer and the General
Counsel are responsible for the development, implementation and oversight of this policy and the procedures which
support it as outlined above, including maintenance of the list of Directors and employees who are most likely to possess
material non- public information (see Attachment B to this Policy); however, compliance with this policy is the shared
responsibility of the Civista directors and employees listed in Attachment B, and all will be held accountable for
protecting the Company’ s reputation from damage which could be caused by a failure to abide by the provisions
outlined herein. Training & Employee Awareness Training relative to Insider Trading and Section 16 Policy
requirements, internal control objectives, and assigned responsibilities is achieved through the cooperative effort of the
Senior Vice President, Risk Management Officer and Senior Vice President, General Counsel who are responsible for
incorporating these objectives into routine procedures and department controls. This Insider Trading & Section 16
Reporting Policy shall be presented to new members of the Civista Board of Directors, or those of its subsidiaries and /
or affiliates, as applicable, and each new Director shall sign a certification form (Attachment A) acknowledging that he /
she has read the policy, understands its provisions, and agrees to abide by them. The Chief Risk Officer shall present a
copy of this Insider Trading & Section 16 Reporting Policy to all Executive (Section 16) Officers upon designation as
such, as well as to those other individuals who may also have access to material non- public information due to their
positions with the bank, as such determinations are made. The Chief Risk Officer shall provide designated employees
with a brief explanation of the policy and its importance, and shall answer any questions regarding the policy. Following
this introduction, the employee shall read the policy and sign a certification form (Attachment A) acknowledging that
they have done so, that they understand its provisions, and agree to abide by them. On an annual basis, all Section 16
Officers and other individuals listed in Attachment B to this policy shall review and recertify that they have read this
Insider Trading & Section 16 Reporting Policy, understand its provisions, agree to abide by them, and have complied
with them over the past year. The Directors affirmative vote to approve this policy on an annual basis will be used as
support that they have read and understand the provisions of this Insider Trading Policy. Required filings pursuant to



this policy will be kept in accordance with SEC Section 16 guidelines with the Filing Coordinator. ATTACHMENT A
Employee and Director Certification Form I hereby certify that I have received and read the Corporate Policy
Regarding Insider Trading and Section 16 Reporting (Insider Trading Policy). I further certify that I understand the
provisions of the Insider Trading Policy and that I agree to abide by and conform to the requirements of the policy at all
times during my employment or tenure as a Director. I further certify that I had an opportunity to ask questions
regarding the provisions of the Insider Trading Policy and that any questions which I had were answered to my
satisfaction. I understand that my failure to comply with the provisions of the Insider Trading Policy may be cause for
dismissal or other disciplinary actions. Employee or DirectorAcknowledgment Employee’ s or Director’ s Signature Date
Employee’ s or Director’ s Name ATTACHMENT B List of positions that are most likely to possess material non- public
information Members of the Board of Directors ¢ All outside and inside holding company directors * All outside and
inside bank directors * President / CEO ¢ Executive Vice President  Senior Vice President Other individuals who may
have material non- public information due to their position at the subsidiary bank: ¢ Directors solely of subsidiaries ©
Assistant Controller » Financial Reporting Manager  Executive Assistant If at any time other Civista employees, not
listed above are provided with material non- public information, they are to be advised that they are an insider and need
to refrain from trading in Civista stock. It is the responsibility of the employee or director disclosing the material non-
public information to inform the employee at the time they become an insider. PRE- CLEARANCE REQUEST FORM
To: Civista Bancshares, Inc. (the “ Company ”) Insider Trading Compliance Officers General Counsel From: (Print
Name) Re: Proposed transaction in the Company’ s Securities This is to advise you that the undersigned intends to
execute a transaction in the Company’ s securities on, 20 and thereafter until, 20 or until the trading window shall close
due to a blackout and does hereby request that the Company pre- clear the transaction as required by the Company’ s
Insider Trading Policy (the “ Policy ). THE UNDERSIGNED UNDERSTANDS THAT THE START (FIRST) DATE
ABOVE MAY NOT BE LESS THAN TWO (2) BUSINESS DAYS NOR MORE THAN TEN (10) BUSINESS DAYS
FROM THE DATE OF SUBMISSION OF THIS PRE- CLEARANCE REQUEST FORM TO THE INSIDER
TRADING COMPLIANCE OFFICERS. The general nature of the transaction is as follows (i. e., open market purchase
0f 10, 000 shares of common stock through NASDAQ, privately negotiated sale of warrants for the purchase of S, 000
shares of common stock, etc.): The undersigned is not in possession of Material Nonpublic Information (as defined in the
Insider Trading Policy) about the Company and will not enter into the transaction if the undersigned comes into
possession of Material Nonpublic Information about the Company between the date hereof and the proposed trade
execution date. The undersigned has read and understands the Policy and certifies that the above proposed transaction
will not violate the Policy. The undersigned agrees to advise the Company promptly if, as a result of future
developments, any of the foregoing information becomes inaccurate or incomplete in any respect. The undersigned
understands that the Company may require additional information about the transaction, and agrees to provide such
information upon request. Very truly yours, Approved: Dated: SVP / General Counsel and Corporate Secretary Insider
Trading Compliance Officer



